
The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD 
9401 Southwest Freeway Houston, TX 77074 

Board Room #109
Live View:https://theharriscentertx.new.swagit.com/views/834/

Governance Committee Meeting
February 17, 2026 

8:30 am

I. DECLARATION OF QUORUM
II. PUBLIC COMMENTS

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A. Approve Minutes of the Board of Trustees Meeting Held on Tuesday,

November 11, 2025
(EXHIBIT G-1 )

IV. REVIEW AND COMMENT
A. Employee Labor Organization

(EXHIBIT G-2 )

V. CONSIDER AND RECOMMEND ACTION
A. No Changes

1. Continuing Employment Communication and Engagement
Policy
(EXHIBIT G-3 )

2. Accessibility Plan Policy
(EXHIBIT G-4 )

3. Assurance of Individual Rights Policy
(EXHIBIT G-5 )

4. Business Associate and Subcontractor Policy
(EXHIBIT G-6 )

5. Cash Receipts & Bank Deposits Policy
(EXHBIIT G-7 )

6. Charity Care Policy
(EXHIBIT G-8 )

7. Corporate Card Policy
(EXHIBIT G-9 )

8. Development and Management for Mental Health and IDD
Service Wait/Interest List Policy
(EXHIBIT G-10 )

9. Disposal of Fixed Assets Policy
(EXHIBIT G-11 )

10. Dues and Membership Fees Policy
(EXHIBIT G-12 )

11. Employment Policy
(EXHIBIT G-13 )

12. Faxing & Emailing Patient Identifying Information Policy

https://theharriscentertx.new.swagit.com/views/834/


(EXHIBIT G-14 )

13. Patient/Individual Records Administration Policy
(EXHIBIT G-15 )

14. Personal Property Policy
(EXHIBIT G-16 )

15. Pregnant Workers and Accommodations Policy
(EXHIBIT G-17 )

16. Return to In-Patient Care of Furloughed Patient Policy
(EXHIBIT G-18 )

17. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act (The Act) Policy
(EXHIBIT G-19 )

18. Subpoenas Policy
(EXHIBIT G-20 )

19. Tenant Selection Policy
(EXHIBIT G-21 )

B. Policy Changes
1. Behavioral Crisis Safety and Intervention Policy

(EXHIBIT G-22 )

2. Compliance Documentation and Claims Integrity Plan Policy
(EXHIBIT G-23 )

3. Compliance Plan FY26 Policy
(EXHIBIT G-24 )

4. Drug Diversion Reporting and Response Policy
(EXHIBIT G-25 )

5. Pharmacy and Unit Medications/Drug Inventory Policy
(EXHIBIT G-26 )

6. Pharmacy Services and Outpatient Prescriptions Policy
(EXHIBIT G-27 )

7. Prescription Monitoring Program (PMP) Policy
(EXHIBIT G-28 )

8. Screening and Assessment for Mental Health, Substance Use
and Intellectual and Development Disabilities (IDD) Services
Policy
(EXHIBIT G-29 )

9. Workforce Member Network Internet Use Policy
(EXHIBIT G-30 )

C. New Policy's
1. Artificial Intelligence Acceptable Use and Work Productivity

Policy
(EXHIBIT G-31 )

2. Canva Use Policy



(EXHIBIT G-32 )

3. Delegation of Medical Acts Policy
(EXHIBIT G-33 )

4. Drug/Alcohol Testing Post-Employment/For Cause Policy
(EXHIBIT G-34 )

5. Viva Engage use Policy
(EXHIBIT G-35 )

6. Workplace Bullying Policy
(EXHIBIT G-36 )

D. Audit Committee Members Election
(Jim Lykes)

VI. EXECUTIVE SESSION
• As authorized by §551.071 of the Texas Government Code,
the Board of Trustees reserves the right to adjourn into
Executive Session at anytime during the course of this meeting
to seek legal advice from its attorney about any matters listed
on the agenda.

• In accordance with §551.074 of the Texas Government Code,
Discussion of Personnel Matters related to the Nomination of
Individual Board members as members of the Audit Committee.
Mr. James Lykes, Chair of the Governance Committee

VII. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION
VIII. CONSIDER AND TAKE ACTION AS A RESULT OF THE EXECUTIVE

SESSION
IX. ADJOURN

______________________________________
Veronica Franco, Board Liaison
Jim Lykes, Chairman
Governance Committee
The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD



EXHIBIT G-1 



 

 
Board of Trustees 

Governance Committee Meeting (11/11/2025) 

MINUTES 

Page 1 of 5 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

THE HARRIS CENTER for 

MENTAL HEALTH AND IDD 
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 11, 2025 

MINUTES 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mr. Jim Lykes, Chairman called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m. in Conference Room 109, 9401 

Southwest Freeway, noting a quorum of the Committee was present. 

 

RECORD OF ATTENDANCE 
 

Committee Members in Attendance:  Mr. J. Lykes, Mr. G. Womack 

 

 Committee Member Absent: Ms. N. Hurtado 

 

Other Board Member Present: Dr. R. Gearing, Dr. K. Bacon, Dr. M. Miller, Jr., 

 Dr. J. Lankford 
 

1. DESIGNATION OF BOARD MEMBERS AS VOTING COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

Mr. J. Lykes designated Dr. K. Bacon, Dr. M. Miller, Jr. and Dr. J. Lankford as voting members 

of the committee. 

 

2.  DECLARATION OF QUORUM 

 The meeting was called to order at 8:30 a.m.  
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 No public comments.  

 

4.    APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

    Minutes of the Board of Trustees Governance Committee meeting held on Tuesday,  

September 16, 2025 

 

MOTION: WOMACK SECOND: MILLER, JR. 

The Motion passed with unanimous affirmative votes 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED, Minutes of the Board of Trustees Governance Committee meeting held 

on Tuesday, September 16, 2025, EXHIBIT G-1 has been approved and recommended to the 

Full Board.   

 

5. REVIEW AND COMMENT 

 A. Employee Labor Organization-Alma Castillo and Brian Kelley presented to the 

Governance Committee. 

 

Page 4 of 134



 

 
Board of Trustees 

Governance Committee Meeting (11/11/2025) 

MINUTES 

Page 2 of 5 

6. CONSIDER AND TAKE ACTION 

 A. Bylaws of the Board of Trustees-The Harris Center 

MOTION: BACON  SECOND: MILLER, JR. 

The Motion passed with unanimous affirmative votes 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED, Bylaws of the Board of Trustees, has been approved with 

recommended changes from the Board of Trustees and recommended to the Full Board.  

B.     Board Officers 2026 

 Governance Chair Mr. Lykes to discuss in Executive Session 

C.  No Changes 

1. Communication with the Media and Other Entities (Exhibit G-2) 

2. Delegation of Medical Acts for Nurses, Licensed Vocational Nurses, 

Licensed Social Workers and Unlicensed Staff (Exhibit G-3) 

3. Equal Employment Opportunity (Exhibit G-4) 

4. IRB Research Procedures and the Committee for the Protection of Human 

Subjects (Exhibit G-5) 

5. Pharmacy Hazardous Drugs Policy (Exhibit G-6) 

6. Pharmaceutical or Patient Assistance Programs (PAP) (Exhibit G-7) 

7. Payment of Accrued Leave Upon Separation (Exhibit G-8) 

8. Whistleblower (Exhibit G-9) 

 

MOTION: GEARING moved to approve agenda Exhibits G2-G9 

SECOND: BACON moved to approve agenda Exhibits G2-G9 

BE IT RESOLVED, with unanimous affirmative vote, agenda Exhibits G2-G9 

are approved and recommended to Full Board for final approval. 
 

D. Policy Changes 

1. Cellular Phone Distribution and Management (Exhibit G-10) 

    

MOTION: GEARING SECOND: LANKFORD 

The Motion passed with unanimous affirmative votes 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED, Cellular Phone Distribution and Management, EXHIBIT G-10 has been 

approved and recommended to the Full Board.   

 

2. Court-Ordered Outpatient Mental Health Services (Exhibit G-11) 

    

MOTION: WOMACK SECOND: MILLER, JR. 

The Motion passed with unanimous affirmative votes 

 

Page 5 of 134



 

 
Board of Trustees 

Governance Committee Meeting (11/11/2025) 

MINUTES 

Page 3 of 5 

 BE IT RESOLVED, Court-Ordered Outpatient Mental Health Services, EXHIBIT G-11 has 

been approved and recommended to the Full Board.   

 

3. Dressing and Grooming Policy (Exhibit G-12) 

    

MOTION: MILLER, JR. SECOND: LANKFORD 

The Motion passed with unanimous affirmative votes 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED, Dressing and Grooming Policy, EXHIBIT G-12 has been approved 

and recommended to the Full Board. 

4. Drug/Alcohol Testing Pre-Employment (Exhibit G-13) 

    

MOTION: BACON  SECOND: LANKFORD 

The Motion passed with unanimous affirmative votes 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED, Drug/Alcohol Testing Pre-Employment, EXHIBIT G-13 has been 

approved and recommended to the Full Board. 

5. Drug Free Workplace (Exhibit G-14) 

    

MOTION: LANKFORD SECOND: MILLER, JR. 

The Motion passed with unanimous affirmative votes 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED, Drug Free Workplace, EXHIBIT G-14 has been approved and 

recommended to the Full Board. 

6. Employee Counseling, Supervision, Progressive Discipline and 

Termination (Exhibit G-15) 

 

MOTION: GEARING SECOND: LANKFORD 

 

Yes Votes: Dr. Gearing, Mr. Lykes, Dr. Bacon, Dr. Lankford, Dr. Miller, 

Jr. 

No Vote: Mr. Womack 

    

The Motion passed by majority votes. 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED, Employee Counseling, Supervision, Progressive Discipline and 

Termination, EXHIBIT G-15 has been approved and recommended to the Full Board. 

7. Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) (Exhibit G-16) 

    

MOTION: WOMACK  SECOND: LANKFORD 

The Motion passed with unanimous affirmative votes 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED, Family and Medical Leave Act, EXHIBIT G-16 has been approved 

and recommended to the Full Board. 

Page 6 of 134



 

 
Board of Trustees 

Governance Committee Meeting (11/11/2025) 

MINUTES 

Page 4 of 5 

 

8. Infection Control Plan/Airborne Precautions (Exhibit G-17) 

    

MOTION: GEARING SECOND: WOMACK 

The Motion passed with unanimous affirmative votes 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED, Infection Control Plan/Airborne Precautions, EXHIBIT G-17 has 

been approved and recommended to the Full Board. 

9. Moonlighting (Exhibit G-18) 

    

MOTION: WOMACK  SECOND: LANKFORD 

The Motion passed with unanimous affirmative votes 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED, Moonlighting, EXHIBIT G-18 has been approved and 

recommended to the Full Board. 

10. Organizational Development (Exhibit G-19) 

    

MOTION: WOMACK SECOND: BACON 

The Motion passed with unanimous affirmative votes 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED, Organizational Development, EXHIBIT G-19 has been approved 

and recommended to the Full Board. 

11. Outreach Screening Assessment Referral (OSAR) Policy & Procedure 

Manual (Exhibit G-20) 

    

MOTION: GEARING SECOND: WOMACK 

The Motion passed with unanimous affirmative votes 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED, Outreach Screening Assessment Referral, EXHIBIT G-20 has been 

approved and recommended to the Full Board. 

12. Sexual Harassment (Exhibit G-21) 

    

MOTION: BACON  SECOND: LANKFORD 

The Motion passed with unanimous affirmative votes 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED, Sexual Harassment, EXHIBIT G-21 has been approved and 

recommended to the Full Board. 

E. New Policy’s 

 

1. H1-B Visa Request (Exhibit G-22) 

 

MOTION:  MILLER, JR.  SECOND:  GEARING 

Page 7 of 134



 

 
Board of Trustees 

Governance Committee Meeting (11/11/2025) 

MINUTES 

Page 5 of 5 

The Motion passed with unanimous affirmative votes 

BE IT RESOLVED, H1-B Visa Request, EXHIBIT G-22 has been approved and 

recommended to the Full Board. 

 

2. Posting Materials on Agency Property (Exhibit G-23) 

 

MOTION:  LANKFORD  SECOND:  BACON 

The Motion passed with unanimous affirmative votes 

BE IT RESOLVED, Posting Materials on Agency Property, EXHIBIT G-23 has 

been approved and recommended to the Full Board. 

 

 

6. EXECUTIVE SESSION –Mr. Lykes announced the Governance Committee would enter 

into  Executive Session at 9:11 am 

7. RECONVENED INTO OPEN SESSION – The Governance Committee reconvened at 

9:24am 

8. CONSIDER AND TAKE ACTION AS A RESULT OF THE EXECUTIVE SESSION

 No action taken 

    

9.  ADJOURN 

MOTION:  BACON  SECOND:  LANKFORD 

The meeting was adjourned at 9:25 A.M. 

 
 

 

 Respectfully submitted,  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Veronica Franco, Board Liaison 

Jim Lykes, Chairman 

Governance Committee  
THE HARRIS CENTER for Mental Health and IDD                            

Board of Trustees  

 

Page 8 of 134



EXHIBIT G-2



United Workers Proposed Additions HR A 36 

Continuing Employee Communication and Engagement Policy

1. Add executive team to monthly CECE meetings to  include up to 5 execs (CEO, HR, 

Legal counsel, CFO, COO)  with up to 5 UWHC members. We think this could allow for 

expansions of thoughts, knowledge and ideas for collaboration. 

2. Increase meeting time to 2 hours to allow for more thorough coverage of topics

3. UWHC to be included on The Harris Center Board Meeting agenda with opportunity for 

the United Workers of Harris Center to present a report from the CECE meeting in 

addition to a written report in packet. To follow the CEO report of the CECE meeting on 

the agenda each month.

4. Include more detailed language in regard to EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT ACTIVITIES 

as CEO and UWHC differ on interpretation

a. For example, Labor Organization able to meet with, talk to, share information 

(including leaflets, other printed materials at employee entrances, access to 

union boards in employee breakrooms, verbal and electronic Harris Center digital 

boards and Harris Center email) any Harris Center employee, including 

employees attending New Employee orientation and at any Harris Center agency 

location and generally engage with one another regarding activities

b. Labor organization can hold information table at employee wellness and benefit 

fairs as union membership also offers employees access to benefits such as  

training opportunities, scholarships, health insurance, etc

Page 9 of 134



EXHIBIT G-3 ·



Status Pending PolicyStat ID 19541913 

Origination 07/2024 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 02/2025 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Toby Hicks 

Area Human 
Resources 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

HR.A.36 Continuing Employee Communication and 
Engagement 

1. PURPOSE: 
The purpose of this policy is to develop a strategic framework for enhancing all employees' voices and 
engagement across the organization.  The goal of this policy is to establish an equitable and fair process 
for every employee to have opportunities to influence, to build trust and to contribute to a positive work 
environment. 

2. DEFINITIONS: 
The following definitions shall apply: 

1. "Board" shall mean the Board of Trustees of the Harris Center. 

2. "CEO" shall mean the Chief Executive Officer of the Harris Center. 

3. "Employee labor organization" shall be defined consistent with TEX. GOV'T CODE §617.001, that is, any 
organization in which employees participate and that exists in whole or in part, to deal with Harris Center 
concerning grievances, labor disputes, wages, hours of employment, working conditions and that does 
not claim the right to strike. 

4. "Employee representatives" shall mean the representatives of the employee labor organizations. 

5. "Employee Communication Plan" refers to all the measures and methods employed by Harris Center 
Executive Management to engage with front-line employees, solicit feedback, encourage good morale 
and staff retention, and improve working conditions and relationships. 

HR.A.36 Continuing Employee Communication and Engagement. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19541913/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 6

Page 10 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=7537198
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81301
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81301
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470


3. POLICY: 
It is the policy of The Harris Center to develop and implement ongoing processes and programs that 
promote each employee's engagement and improve each employee's experience. The Harris Center has 
a workforce comprised of employees who utilize their skills and talents to deliver quality behavioral 
healthcare and IDD services to Harris County residents. The Harris Center values all employees and is 
committed to continue to develop a work environment in which every employee's voice, suggestions and 
views are respected and sought out without fear of reprisal. 

The Harris Center leadership shall work collaboratively with all employees and utilize their collective 
experiences and feedback to improve retention, employee satisfaction, performance, patient care and 
the overall employee experience. The Harris Center shall establish robust mechanisms for soliciting 
each employee's voice and feedback to ensure the Harris Center aligns its policies, practices and 
priorities with the evolving needs and expectations of the workforce. 

A. COMMITMENT TO EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT 

Crucial components of incorporating each employee's’ voice and perspectives into the Harris Center’s 
policies, practices, priorities and other continuous improvement initiatives include, but are not limited to: 

• Developing an Employee Communication Plan 

•  Evaluate the ongoing impact of the Employee Communication Plan 

• Annual employee surveys soliciting anonymous feedback 

• Routine meetings with Employee groups 

• Regular Townhall meetings at various Harris Center locations 

• Regular employee forums to have dialogue with the CEO and/or other members of the Harris 
Center leadership team 

• Employee Suggestion program for the improvement and implementation of new ideas 

• Team building exercises through collaborative workshops and retreats 

• Celebrate festive events and occasions, such as Employee Appreciation Day 

• Establishing a regular recurring meeting with Employee Labor Organization(s) 

1. MONITORING AND COMPLIANCE 

The development, implementation, evaluation and monitoring of the Employee Communication Plan and 
related initiatives shall be the responsibility of the Vice President of Human Resources.  

2. COMMUNICATION SCHEDULE 

Routine updates at Board meetings, including employee engagement activities, updates from meetings 
with employee labor organizations, the level of employee engagement and policy proposals, will be 
provided by the CEO and Vice President of Human Resources. Also, Harris Center staff will receive 
regular communication via CEO videos, the Harris Center newsletter and Intranet about employee 
engagement initiatives and opportunities for employees to provide feedback. Communication will be 

HR.A.36 Continuing Employee Communication and Engagement. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19541913/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 6

Page 11 of 134



provided to inform employees of updates from suggestions and opportunities identified. These 
communications will be done consistent with employee feedback about preferred types, style and 
means of communication. 

 Updates from meetings with employee labor organizations will be provided to the Board by the CEO at 
the next Board meeting. Updates will include any recommendations to the Board and an account of the 
discussions that have taken place in the meetings with employee labor organizations. In addition to 
Public Comment opportunities and the CEO's report, employee labor organization representatives shall 
have an opportunity to provide a written report related to wages, hours and conditions of employment 
and the notes from the employee labor organization meetings to the Board in the Board packet. 
Employee labor organizations are responsible for adhering to all Harris Center Board meeting 
submission deadlines. 

Also, employee labor organizations shall have the opportunity to present no more than four (4) 
Governance Committee meetings per year provided that they submit a written request to the Chair of the 
Governance Committee and CEO at least nine (9) calendar days prior to the Governance Committee 
meeting. Additional opportunities for presentations to the Governance Committee are not permitted. The 
purpose of the reports is to provide employee labor organizations with the opportunity for the unilateral 
presentation of information to the Governance Committee and are not intended to be a dialogue or 
discussion with the Governance Committee. All topics and presentations must be related to wages, 
hours, and conditions of employment and matters covered by personnel policies. 

The written request must include  a brief description and summary of the topic.  All supporting 
documents and presentation materials must accompany the written request. All reports shall be limited 
to ten (10) minutes unless the Governance Committee approves additional time. 

B. HARRIS CENTER EMPLOYEE LABOR ORGANIZATIONS OR 
UNIONS 

The Harris Center’s Executive leadership and the Board of Trustees support employees’ right to form 
and/or join a union without facing retaliation or disciplinary action.  As a public entity, the Harris Center is 
legally prohibited from collective bargaining that involves a process in which the Harris Center and its 
Board conducts negotiations with representatives of a union with a goal towards reaching a binding, 
enforceable and bilateral agreement between the Harris Center and a union or labor organization. See
Tex. Government Code Ch. 617.  In accordance with Tex. Government Code Ch. 617, the Harris Center is 
also legally prohibited from recognizing a union or labor organization as the bargaining agent for a group 
of employees. 

1. EMPLOYEE LABOR ORGANIZATION MEETINGS 

 The scope of Employee Labor Organization(s) meetings, activity, and discussions shall include wages, 
hours, employment conditions and all matters covered by personnel policies of the Harris Center. 

The Employee Labor Organization(s) meeting shall be composed of up to five representatives from 
employee labor organizations as designated by the organizations and the CEO or designee(s). 

HR.A.36 Continuing Employee Communication and Engagement. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19541913/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 3 of 6

Page 12 of 134



Twelve (12) meetings per calendar year shall be held. Any member of the Employee Labor 
Organization(s) meeting may request items related to wages, hours and conditions of employment to be 
placed on the agenda for discussion. Proposed agenda items must be submitted, in writing, to the CEO 
designee at least one week prior to the scheduled meeting. The meeting agenda shall be included with 
the  meeting notification. 

A written request from the CEO or the employee representatives for additional meetings may be 
submitted. The written request must state the purpose for the proposed meeting and include the 
meeting agenda. A meeting may be scheduled as soon as possible following the receipt of the request 
based on the availability of all parties. 

Good faith efforts will be made to provide information relevant to the agenda in advance of the meetings 
upon request by the Employee Labor Organization(s). As a governmental entity, the Harris Center is 
required to adhere to the Texas Public Information Act.  The Texas Public Information Act remains an 
additional available option for the public to request public information. 

Best efforts will be made to schedule meetings without conflict with employment duties of employee 
representatives participating in the meeting. When a scheduled meeting conflicts with any participant's 
work duties, the CEO's applicable management representative will, to the extent client services are not 
adversely impacted, arrange for that participant to be released from normal work duties to attend the 
meeting. The meeting can be rescheduled if requested by the meeting participants due to schedule 
conflicts. 

2. EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT ACTIVITIES 

Harris Center employees and Employee Labor Organization employee representative(s) are permitted to 
meet with, talk to, share information (printed, verbal, or electronic), and generally engage with one 
another regarding the activities of an Employee Labor Organization before or after those employees' 
shifts or during those employees' breaks or lunch hour in designated locations in Harris Center facilities, 
provided they coordinate with the appropriate supervisor at the work location and that such engagement 
does not impact with work duties or client care. Preparation for any union activities, including, but not 
limited to, meetings or union organizing activities, must be conducted outside the union members' 
regularly scheduled work hours. 

3. REPRESENTATION 

The Harris Center has an employee complaint, grievance and resolution process outlined in the 
Employee Handbook.  Consistent with Harris Center's current practice, every employee filing a grievance 
related to their wages, hours or work conditions may opt to have a representative (including someone 
from an employee labor organization) of their choice represent them. Employees who receive coaching 
or disciplinary action may include their comments and perspective in response to those actions in a 
manner that is included in their personnel file.  Additionally,  employees placed on probation, a 
Performance Improvement Plan (PIP) or terminated by the Harris Center have the right to appeal. With 
advance notice, employees are permitted to have representation (including someone from an employee 
labor organization) at the appeal review hearing. 

HR.A.36 Continuing Employee Communication and Engagement. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19541913/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 4 of 6

Page 13 of 134



Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec [CW] 02/2026 

2nd Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 02/2026 

1st Legal Review Bijul Enaohwo 02/2026 

4.  PAYROLL DEDUCTION OF MEMBERSHIP DUES 

Upon written request by an Employee Labor Organization(s), the Harris Center will collaborate with the 
Employee Labor Organization(s) to develop reasonable procedures for monthly payroll deduction of 
union membership dues. The Harris Center shall remit the dues collected to the Employee Labor 
Organization(s). Each Employee Labor Organization shall ensure employees are offered an alternative 
means by which to pay monthly membership dues other than payroll deduction. 

4. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
This policy applies equally to all Harris Center employees. 

5. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS: 
HR.A.10 Equal Employment Opportunity 
     

HR.A.5 Employee Counseling, Supervision, Progressive Discipline and Termination 
     

HR.A.29 Time and Attendance 

 

6.  PROCEDURE: 
N/A 

7. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 
Collective Bargaining and Strikes, Tex. Government Code Ch. 617 

HR.A.36 Continuing Employee Communication and Engagement. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19541913/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 5 of 6

Page 14 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13233619/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13233625/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/12415851/latest


Compliance Director Review Demetria Luckett 02/2026 

Department Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 02/2026 

Initial Assignment Toby Hicks 01/2026 

HR.A.36 Continuing Employee Communication and Engagement. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19541913/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 6 of 6

Page 15 of 134



EXHIBIT G-4



Status Pending PolicyStat ID 19108548 

Origination 08/2019 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 11/2024 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Eunice Davis: Dir 

Area Environmental 
Management 

Document 
Type 

Agency Plan 

EM.P.6 Accessibility Plan 

Accessibility Plan 
The philosophy of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The Harris Center) and its Board, is that 
all people should have access to services, programs, and activities in which they have an interest. 
Consistent with that philosophy, the Board of Trustees and staff of The Harris Center adopt the 
following, which we will review and modify as appropriate annually. 

The purpose of this Accessibility Plan is to promote accessibility and remove barriers. The Harris Center 
addresses accessibility concerns to enhance the quality of life for those served in our programs and 
services, implement nondiscriminatory employment practices, meet legal and regulatory requirements, 
and meet the expectations of stakeholders in the area of accessibility. This report and improvement plan 
is meant to enhance access to programs, services, facilities, and the community. 

Because we feel persons with disabilities face a variety of challenges, we have prioritized attitudinal, 
architectural, communication, employment, transportation, environmental, and financial barriers as those 
that we want to impact in a positive manner. 

ATTITUDINAL: Staff and board members will continuously involve themselves in training related to the 
abilities and limitations of persons with disabilities while learning to enhance their strengths and 
minimize the impact of their limitations. Attitudinal barriers may include the terminology and language 
that the organization uses in its literature or when it communicates with individuals with disabilities, 
other stakeholders and the public, how individuals with disabilities are viewed and treated by the 
organization, their families, and the community, whether or not client input is solicited and used, whether 
or not the eligibility criteria of the organization screens out individuals with specific types of disabilities. 
Our existing policies on Consumer/Patient Rights and the involvement of consumers in the development 
of their individual plans will help support this effort. We will continue the use of Patent Satisfaction 

EM.P.6 Accessibility Plan. Retrieved 01/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19108548/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 5

Page 16 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195640
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195640
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81299
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81299
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=114203


Surveys for input. 

ARCHITECTURAL: Although the primary responsibility for evaluating and removing barriers to consumer 
access rests with Facility Services, with the support of Risk Management and Safety Committees, all 
staff members are charged with this responsibility. Safety Officers (and managers), as part of their 
quarterly self-inspections, are also evaluating any barriers that might cause our buildings, grounds, 
vehicles, etc., to be inaccessible to persons served. Plans for corrective action are reviewed by VPs, 
Directors/Practice Managers, Risk Management, and Director of Facility Services, with implementation 
occurring as soon as practical and as monies are identified in the budget. Budgeting for this activity will 
be a continuous effort. Transitional plans will be developed for each barrier identified. 

COMMUNICATION: Recognizing our communication is essential in achieving our mission, our 
organization will continue to make communication training available to our staff and members of the 
board. We will continue to address these barriers by making presentations at local business, civic, 
religious, political, and other groups as appropriate in order to enhance the communication issues for 
persons served. We have over 300 staff members who can translate, as well as full-time interpreters for 
persons whose primary language is not English. We also have contracts with multiple vendors to provide 
services to persons with hearing impairments and for other persons who speak foreign languages. We 
will continue to expand the contractors to ensure availability for language needs. 

The Communication Department is updating The Harris Center website to include closed captions for 
the videos posted and is looking at ways to enhance communications to those we serve. 

EMPLOYMENT: One important aspect of our organization, consistent with our goal of maximizing self-
sufficiency, is the eventual employment of the persons that we serve. Employment provides individuals 
with meaningful daily activities so they feel productive, useful, and successful. Employment is a 
fundamental part of life for people with and without disabilities. It provides a sense of purpose, shaping 
who we are and how we fit into our community. Meaningful work has also been associated with positive 
physical and mental health benefits and is a part of building a healthy lifestyle as a contributing member 
of society. Because it is so essential to people's economic self-sufficiency, as well as self-esteem and 
well-being, people with disabilities and older adults with chronic conditions who want to work should be 
provided the opportunity and support to work competitively within the general workforce in their pursuit 
of health, wealth, and happiness. All individuals, regardless of disability and age, can work – and work 
optimally with opportunity, training, and support that build on each person's strengths and interests. 
Individually tailored and preference-based job development, training, and support should recognize each 
person's employability and potential contributions to the labor market. 

The Harris Center recognizes the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADAA) and its policies prohibit 
discrimination in all employment practices, including job application procedures, hiring, firing, 
advancement, compensation, training, and other terms, conditions, and privileges of employment. It 
applies to recruitment, advertising, tenure, layoff, leave, fringe benefits, and all other employment-related 
activities. The Harris Center reviews and updates policies as needed. 

TRANSPORTATION: Every effort will be made to increase the chances of success for our consumers by 
helping to identify and remove transportation barriers that exist for those we serve. Regarding current 
agency vehicles: 

EM.P.6 Accessibility Plan. Retrieved 01/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19108548/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 5

Page 17 of 134



• will try to make them accessible to our consumers; 

• purchase accessible vehicles; or 

• utilize qualified vendors to provide accessible transportation services. 

Staff will collaborate with local transportation services, such as the Metro System, and will act as 
advocates for persons with disabilities to encourage the continued expansion of accessible public 
transportation options. 

ENVIRONMENTAL: Recognizing environmental factors can have a profound effect on the individuals we 
serve as well as agency staff, our organization will continue to ensure all area community service sites 
are free from environmental barriers. Such barriers as insufficient lighting, equipment, and hazards will 
be assessed, and a plan of action will be developed if needed, in regularly scheduled Facility Services 
departmental meetings. Upon discovering a barrier exists, a corrective action plan will be developed. 
Implementation of this plan will occur as soon as practical and as monies are identified in the budget. As 
with architectural barriers, budgeting for this activity will be a continuous effort. 

Although the organization does not conduct a formal assessment in this area, staff are aware of the 
need to accommodate reasonable requests in this area. Examples of general environmental adaptations 
include light alarms for individuals with hearing impairment, hearing protection, climate control, vehicle 
modifications such as seat belt extenders and lifts, ergonomic accommodations such as chairs, tables, 
and computer screens, and other modifications such as revised work schedules that have been made to 
meet requests. 

MEDICAL DIAGNOSTIC EQUIPMENT:  Medical diagnostic equipment, such as examination tables, 
examination chairs, weight scales, and x-ray machines, shall adhere to accessibility standards to ensure 
patients with disabilities have access to services and programs at the Harris Center. The Harris Center 
cannot deny health care services to a patient with a disability that the organization would otherwise 
provide because they lack accessible medical diagnostic equipment. 

FINANCIAL: Staff and board members of The Harris Center understand the importance of finances and 
the direct impact finances have on agency personnel, individuals served, and the community at large. 
The Harris Center will strive to maintain sufficient funds for each and every program of the agency. The 
organization also pledges to educate at local levels and state levels regarding the need for increased 
funds. In the event that financial barriers do occur, such as insufficient funding within a program, the 
Executive Leadership will meet to evaluate the best possible options to support the needs of those being 
served. 

TECHNOLOGY: The Harris Center shall ensure all digital tools comply with WCAG 2.1 standards, require 
accessible design in procurement processes, and offer assistive technologies (e.g. screen readers, voice 
recognition software) where needed. Barriers will be identified through audits and user testing, prioritized 
based on severity and addressed through remediation plans, while engaging users with disabilities in 
continuous feedback and improvement processes. The Technology Accessibility Plan is as follows: 

Assessment- Start by evaluating existing technologies (websites, applications, software, 
hardware) for accessibility. 

Policy: All new technology purchases, updates or developments will be required to meet 

EM.P.6 Accessibility Plan. Retrieved 01/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19108548/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 3 of 5

Page 18 of 134



Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

accessibility standards pursuant to WCAG 2.1 or Section 508. 

Training- Include staff training on accessible technology design and usage. 

Procurement- Ensure contracts with vendors specify accessibility requirements. 

Assistive Technology- Plan for providing assistive devices (e.g. screen readers, voice recognition, 
software) to those who need them. 

Continuous Monitoring- Schedule regular reviews and audits of technology to catch and fix 
accessibility issues. 

Addressing Technology Barriers: 

Identify Barriers- Use audits, user feedback and accessibility testing tools to find barriers (e.g. non-
captioned video, small touch targets, or non-keyboard-navigable forms). 

Prioritize Fixes-Tackle the most critical issues first (those preventing access entirely) and develop 
a timeline for the others. 

Involve Users- Include people with disabilities in testing and reviewing technology to ensure real-
world accessibility. 

Provide Alternatives- Where full accessibility is not immediately possible, offer accessible 
alternatives (e.g. alternative formats or support staff). 

Ongoing Education- Keep technology teams updated with best practices and new tools for 
accessibility. 

ASSESSMENT AND WORK PLAN: 

The agency will use the Accessibility Plan Review Tool to assist in the creation of an agency wide 
detailed work plan. 

The Accessibility Plan will aid in the removal of barriers that limit access to programs and services and 
will provide a detailed outline of the steps to remove the barriers and necessary steps to achieve a 
barrier-free environment. If the time period for achieving compliance is to be longer than one year, the 
work plan will identify interim steps to provide program access. The work plan will identify person(s) 
responsible for implementing the plan. 

The Harris Center will create an annual report. This report will include progress made in the removal of 
identified barriers and areas needing improvement. Copies of the Accessibility Plan will be made 
available upon request to clients, employees, stakeholders, and the public.  Alternative formats will be 
available upon request. 

EM.P.6 Accessibility Plan. Retrieved 01/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19108548/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 4 of 5

Page 19 of 134



Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 01/2026 

2nd Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 12/2025 

1st Legal Review Bijul Enaohwo 11/2025 

Compliance Director Review Demetria Luckett 11/2025 

Compliance 1st Review Christopher Webb: Audit 10/2025 

Initial Assignment Eunice Davis: Dir 10/2025 

EM.P.6 Accessibility Plan. Retrieved 01/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19108548/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 5 of 5

Page 20 of 134



EXHIBIT G-5



Status Pending PolicyStat ID 14688792 

Origination 01/2022 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective 365 Days 
After 
Approval 

Last Revised 02/2026 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Deauc Dentaen 

Area Rights & 
Responsibilities 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

RR.A.2 Assurance of Individual Rights 

1. PURPOSE: 
The purpose of this policy is to assure the protection of civil and human rights for all individuals 
receiving services through The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The Harris Center) and to 
assure that the rights of individuals are not violated. 

2. POLICY: 
It is the policy of The Harris Center that an individual receiving services from The Harris Center shall 
have the same rights, benefits and privileges guaranteed by state and federal laws. The Harris Center will 
ensure the protection of these rights through its policies and procedures. All services shall be provided in 
a manner consistent with recognized professional and ethical standards. The Harris Center shall 
promote the rights of the consumers to be free from humiliation and the right to informed consent or 
refusal or expression of choice regarding composition of the service delivery team. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
All Harris Center employees, contract providers, contract personnel, volunteers, students, clients and 
family/legally authorized representative as applicable. 

4. PROCEDURES: 
• RR.B.2 Assurance of Individual Rights 

RR.A.2 Assurance of Individual Rights. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/
14688792/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 2

Page 21 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=9112161
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=9112161
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81295
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81295
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11064046/latest/


Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 02/2026 

2nd Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 01/2026 

1st Legal Review Bijul Enaohwo 01/2026 

Compliance Director Review Demetria Luckett 01/2026 

Initial Assignment Deauc Dentaen 12/2025 

5. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS: 
• The Harris Center Individual Rights handbook 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 

• Individual Rights Handbook- The Harris Center. 

• Rights of Persons with an Intellectual Disability,  Tex. Health & Safety Code Ch. 592 (2015). 

• Admission and Commitment to Intellectual Disability Services, Tex. Health & Safety Code Ch. 
593 (2015). 

• Rights of Patients,  Tex. Health & Safety Code Ch. 576. 

• Local Mental Health Authority Notification and Appeal, 25 Tex. Admin. Code § 401.464. 

• Rights of Individuals Receiving Mental Health Services, 26 Tex. Admin. Code Ch. 320 (2024). 

• Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation in Local Authorities and Community Centers, 25 Tex. Admin. 
Code § 414.551 (2001). 

• LIDDA, LMHA, and LBHA Notification and Appeal Process, 26 Tex. Admin. Code § 301.155 
(2024). 

• Administrative Hearings Under Texas Health and Safety Code, 40 Tex. Admin. Code 
§4.151-4.162 (2004). 

• CARF: Section 1. Subsection K., Rights of Person Served. 

 

RR.A.2 Assurance of Individual Rights. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/
14688792/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 2

Page 22 of 134



EXHIBIT G-6



Status Pending PolicyStat ID 19152354 

Origination 10/2020 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 02/2026 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Kendra Thomas: 
Counsel 

Area Leadership 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

LD.A.2 Business Associate and Subcontractor Policy 

1. PURPOSE: 
The purpose of this policy is to ensure The Harris Center executes Business Associate agreements in 
compliance with the relevant provisions of Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 
(HIPAA), as amended, to establish the permitted and required uses and disclosures of Protected Health 
Information). 

2. POLICY: 
It is the policy of The Harris Center to enter into business associate agreements in compliance with the 
relevant provisions of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), as 
amended. The Business Associate agreements shall comply with the federal requirements. 

The contracts shall establish the permitted and required uses and disclosures of Protected Health 
Information by the business associate. The contract may not authorize the business associate to use or 
further disclose the information in a manner that would violate the requirements of HIPAA, if done by the 
Harris Center, except that: 

• The contract may permit the business associate to use and disclose protected health 
information for the proper management and administration of the business associate as 
provided by HIPAA 

• To carry out the legal responsibilities of the business associate; and 

• The contract may permit the business associate to provide data aggregation services related 
to the Harris Center's operations. 

A covered entity may disclose Protected Health Information to a business associate and may allow a 

LD.A.2 Business Associate and Subcontractor Policy. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/
policy/19152354/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 3

Page 23 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4197055
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4197055
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81303
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470


business associate to create, receive, maintain, or transmit Protected Health Information on its behalf, if 
the covered entity obtains satisfactory assurances that the business associate will appropriately 
safeguard the information. A covered entity is not required to obtain such satisfactory assurances from 
a business associate that is a subcontractor. A business associate may disclose Protected Health 
Information to a business associate that is a subcontractor and may allow the subcontractor to create, 
receive, maintain, or transmit Protected Health Information on its behalf, if the business associate 
obtains satisfactory assurances, that the subcontractor will appropriately safeguard the information. 

The Business Associate must sign a Business Associate Agreement prior to the disclosure of protected 
health information on behalf of The Harris Center and must document the satisfactory assurances. 

A covered entity is not in compliance, if the covered entity knew of a pattern of activity or practice of the 
Business Associate that constituted a material breach or violation of the business associate's obligation 
under the contract or other arrangement, unless the covered entity took reasonable steps to cure the 
breach or end the violation, as applicable, and, if such steps were unsuccessful, terminated the contract 
or arrangement, if feasible. A covered entity is not in compliance, if the covered entity knew of a pattern 
of activity or practice of a subcontractor that constituted a material breach or violation of the 
subcontractor's obligation under the contract or other arrangement, unless the covered entity took 
reasonable steps to cure the breach or end the violation, as applicable, and, if such steps were 
unsuccessful, terminated the contract or arrangement, if feasible. 

If a Business Associate discovers a breach, the breaching party will have the opportunity to cure the 
breach or end the violation. If the breaching party does not cure the breach or end the violation within a 
reasonable time frame, or if a material term of the agreement has been breached and a cure is not 
possible, the non-breaching party may terminate the agreement, upon written notice to the breaching 
party. A business associate is not in compliance with the federal standards, if the business associate 
knew of a pattern of activity or practice of a subcontractor that constituted a material breach or violation 
of the subcontractor's obligation under the contract or other arrangement, unless the business associate 
took reasonable steps to cure the breach or end the violation, as applicable, and if such steps were 
unsuccessful, terminated the contract or arrangement, if feasible. 

3. PROCEDURES: 
LD.B.1 Business Associate 

4. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
All Harris Center programs, employees, volunteers, interns, contractors, subcontractors and business 
associates. 

5. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS: 
Business Associate Agreement 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/

LD.A.2 Business Associate and Subcontractor Policy. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/
policy/19152354/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 3

Page 24 of 134



Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 02/2026 

2nd Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 01/2026 

1st Legal Review Bijul Enaohwo 12/2025 

Compliance Director Demetria Luckett 12/2025 

Initial Assignment Kendra Thomas: Counsel 10/2025 

STANDARDS: 
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996,45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164 

LD.A.2 Business Associate and Subcontractor Policy. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/
policy/19152354/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 3 of 3

Page 25 of 134



EXHIBIT G-7



Status Pending PolicyStat ID 18455933 

Origination 04/1987 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 10/2025 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Stanley Adams 

Area Fiscal 
Management 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

FM.A.14 Cash Receipts & Bank Deposits 

1. PURPOSE 
The purpose of this policy is to establish The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The Harris 
Center) policy for the handling of all cash receipts, to include currency, coin, checks, ACH transactions, 
and credit card transactions. To ensure all cash received and deposited are recorded, processed and 
secured appropriately. 

2. POLICY 
It is the policy of The Harris Center that clinics will establish proper and adequate controls to ensure the 
safeguarding of cash and checks received by the Center for payment of consumer services. Deposits will 
be made tn a timely basis to allow for more efficient use of Agency funds. Reports will be prepared 
timely and consistently to allow for accurate financial reporting. Finance will maintain all related 
procedures. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE 
This policy applies to all Harris Center staff, contractors, visitors, and individuals served. 

4. PROCEDURES 
5. RELATED POLICES/FORMS: 
6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/

FM.A.14 Cash Receipts & Bank Deposits. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/
18455933/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 2

Page 26 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=9361626
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=9361626
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470


Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 02/2026 

Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 01/2026 

Compliance Director Review Demetria Luckett 12/2025 

Department Review Stanley Adams 11/2025 

Compliance 1st Review Christopher Webb: Audit 10/2025 

Initial Assignment Stanley Adams 10/2025 

STANDARDS: 

FM.A.14 Cash Receipts & Bank Deposits. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/
18455933/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 2

Page 27 of 134



EXHIBIT G-8



Status Pending PolicyStat ID 18455932 

Origination 08/2022 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 01/2026 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Stanley Adams 

Area Fiscal 
Management 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

FM.A.11 Charity Care Policy 

1. PURPOSE: 
The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The Harris Center) is committed to providing charity care 
to persons who have health-care needs and are uninsured, under-insured, or otherwise unable to pay, for 
medically necessary care based on their individual financial situation.  The Harris Center strives to 
ensure that the financial capacity of clients who need quality health care services does not prevent them 
from seeking or receiving care. 

2. POLICY: 
It is the policy of The Harris Center to manage its resources responsibly and to allow the Harris Center to 
provide the appropriate level of assistance to the greatest number of people in need, the Board of 
Trustees establishes the following guidelines for the provision of client charity care.  

Clients are expected to cooperate with the Harris Center’s procedures for obtaining charity care or other 
forms of payment or financial assistance, and to contribute to the cost of their care based on their 
individual ability to pay subject  to the rules, regulations, and contractual requirements of the Harris 
Center's various funding agencies 

• Includes eligibility criteria for financial assistance – free and discounted (partial charity care) 

• Describes the basis for calculating amounts charged to clients served eligible for financial 
assistance under this policy 

• Describes the method by which clients served may apply for financial assistance 

• Describes how the Center will widely publicize the policy to the Community 

• Limits the amounts that the Center will charge for eligible services provided to clients 

FM.A.11 Charity Care Policy. Retrieved 01/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18455932/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 2

Page 28 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=9361626
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=9361626
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470


Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 11/2025 

Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 10/2025 

Compliance Director Review Demetria Luckett 10/2025 

Department Review Stanley Adams 10/2025 

Compliance 1st Review Christopher Webb: Audit 10/2025 

Initial Assignment Stanley Adams 07/2025 

qualifying for financial assistance to the amount generally billed (received by) the Center for 
private and public insurance (Medicaid, Medicare, etc.). 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
This applies to all persons served who meet the eligibility criteria and have a financial need. 

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS: 
ACC.A.11 Financial Assessment 

5. PROCEDURES: 
FM.B.11 Charity Care 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 
Health and Human Services Commission 

FM.A.11 Charity Care Policy. Retrieved 01/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18455932/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 2

Page 29 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14496191/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/12187503/latest


EXHIBIT G-9



Status Pending PolicyStat ID 18455904 

Origination 06/2013 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 01/2026 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Stanley Adams 

Area Fiscal 
Management 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

FM.A.15 Corporate Card 

1. PURPOSE: 
The purpose of the Corporate Card is to provide The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The Harris 
Center) Executive Team with an efficient and controllable method for making authorized purchases and 
paying for the expenses of The Harris Center. 

2. POLICY: 
It is the policy of The Harris Center to issue corporate cards only to personnel who have been approved 
by the Chief Executive Officer. The corporate card may only be used for Harris Center- related expenses. 
Unauthorized or personal purchases are prohibited and the card holder will be subject to disciplinary 
action up to and including termination and prosecution for any violation of this policy. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
This policy applies to all The Harris Center employees and/or staff issued or in possession of a 
Corporate Card. 

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS: 
Corporate Card Agreement 

5.  PROCEDURE: 
 

FM.A.15 Corporate Card. Retrieved 01/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18455904/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 2

Page 30 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=9361626
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=9361626
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470


Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 01/2026 

Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 01/2026 

Compliance Director Review Demetria Luckett 11/2025 

Department Review Stanley Adams 10/2025 

Compliance 1st Review Christopher Webb: Audit 10/2025 

Initial Assignment Stanley Adams 07/2025 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 
 

FM.A.15 Corporate Card. Retrieved 01/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18455904/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 2

Page 31 of 134



EXHIBIT G-10



Status Pending PolicyStat ID 18449743 

Origination 02/2019 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 10/2025 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Lance Britt: Dir 

Area Assessment, 
Care & Continuity 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

ACC.A.3 Development and Management for Mental Health 
and IDD Service Wait/ Interest List 

1. PURPOSE: 
To define the policy, the development, and maintenance of waiting/interest lists, when The Harris Center 
for Mental Health and IDD (The Harris Center) has reached or exceeded its capacity to provide services. 
This is in accordance with the Texas Health and Human Services Commission (HHSC) performance 
contracts and Texas Administrative Codes (TAC). 

2. POLICY: 
It is the policy of The Harris Center that the Executive Management Team review the capacity of The 
Harris Center's services and will approve the establishment of waiting/ Interest lists for Center services. 
These determinations will be consistent with HHSC requirements. The Board of Trustees will be 
informed at the first regular board meeting following the establishment of the waiting list. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
The Harris Center programs. 

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS: 
 

ACC.A.3 Development and Management for Mental Health and IDD Service Wait/ Interest List. Retrieved 02/2026. Official
copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18449743/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and
IDD

Page 1 of 2

Page 32 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195433
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195433
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81296
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81296
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470


Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 02/2026 

Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 01/2026 

Compliance Director Review Demetria Luckett 01/2026 

1st Legal Review Bijul Enaohwo 12/2025 

Departmental Review Keena Pace: Exec 12/2025 

Compliance 1st Review Christopher Webb: Audit 10/2025 

Initial Assignment Lance Britt: Dir 10/2025 

5. PROCEDURE: 
ACC.B.3 Development and Management for Mental Health and IDD Services Wait/Interest list 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS 

• Texas Health and Human Services Commission. (2021). Information Item R: Texas Resilience 
and Recovery (TRR) Waiting List Maintenance Manual. 

• LIDDA, LMHA, and LBHA Responsibilities Related to the PASRR Process, 26 Tex. Admin. Code 
§ 303.302 (2024). 

• Texas Health and Human Services Commission. (2023). Report on Waiting Lists for Mental 
Health Services: As Required by Senate Bill 1, 87th Legislature, Regular Session, 2021 (Article 
II, HHSC, Rider 50). 

• Texas Health and Human Services Commission. (2015). HCS and TxHmL Interest List Manual: 
Attachment J – Interest List Maintenance. 

• HCS Interest List, 26 Tex. Admin. Code § 263.103 (2023). 

ACC.A.3 Development and Management for Mental Health and IDD Service Wait/ Interest List. Retrieved 02/2026. Official
copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18449743/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and
IDD

Page 2 of 2

Page 33 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13592849/latest


EXHIBIT G-11 



Status Pending PolicyStat ID 18455936 

Origination 10/2005 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 10/2025 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Stanley Adams 

Area Fiscal 
Management 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

FM.A.2 Disposal of Fixed Assets 

1. PURPOSE: 
The purpose of this policy is to establish Agency requirements related to maintaining an accurate record 
of equipment owned by or in the custody of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The Harris 
Center) and the disposal of equipment. 

2. POLICY: 
It is the policy of The Harris Center that each Unit Manager is accountable for all the fixed asset 
equipment items assigned to their unit(s). Therefore, it is necessary to properly record and account for 
the disposal of all fixed assets. The Harris Center has set forth guidelines for deleting and disposing of 
equipment: 

1. The Harris Center fixed assets that are obsolete, worn-out, or unusable tangible property can 
be disposed. 

2. Unit Managers are responsible for ensuring the retention of the property while the equipment 
is in the department's custody. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
This applies to all employees, staff, unit managers and departments within the agency. 

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS: 
FM.A.7 The Requisitioning and Purchasing of Goods and/or Services 

FM.A.2 Disposal of Fixed Assets. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18455936/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 2

Page 34 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=9361626
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=9361626
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/12504621/latest


Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 02/2026 

Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 01/2026 

Compliance Director Review Demetria Luckett 12/2025 

Department Review Stanley Adams 11/2025 

Compliance 1st Review Christopher Webb: Audit 10/2025 

Initial Assignment Stanley Adams 07/2025 

5. PROCEDURE: 
FM.B.2 Disposal of Fixed Assets 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 
CARF: Section 1. Subsection F.6.a., Financial Planning and Management 

FM.A.2 Disposal of Fixed Assets. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18455936/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 2

Page 35 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13817221/latest


EXHIBIT G-12 



Status Pending PolicyStat ID 18455930 

Origination 03/1976 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 10/2025 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Stanley Adams 

Area Fiscal 
Management 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

FM.A.16 Dues and Membership Fees 

1. PURPOSE: 
The purpose of this policy is to determine responsibility for payment of dues and membership fees for 
employees of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The Harris Center). 

2. POLICY: 
It is the policy of The Harris Center as a general rule, that the Agency will not cover the cost of dues and 
professional memberships for employees, unless approved by the Chief Executive Officer. However, the 
Agency will assume the expense for Agency memberships when appropriate. In cases where an Agency 
membership cannot be assigned to the Agency itself but must be assigned to an individual, the Chief 
Executive Officer will designate the appropriate individual. 

Employees are responsible for any licenses, dues, or membership fees that are conditions of their 
employment. If a specific fee is not a condition of employment but arises due to additional job duties, the 
Agency will cover this expense one (1) time only. Upon renewal, the employee is responsible for covering 
the cost. 

Approval of dues and membership fees, whether for individuals or Agency memberships, rests with the 
discretion of the Chief Executive Officer. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
The Harris Center employees, contractors, interns and volunteers. 

FM.A.16 Dues and Membership Fees. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/
18455930/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 2

Page 36 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=9361626
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=9361626
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81300
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470


Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 02/2026 

Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 01/2026 

Compliance Director Review Demetria Luckett 12/2025 

Department Review Stanley Adams 11/2025 

Compliance 1st Review Christopher Webb: Audit 10/2025 

Initial Assignment Stanley Adams 10/2025 

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS: 
None 

5. PROCEDURE: 
 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 
None 

FM.A.16 Dues and Membership Fees. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/
18455930/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 2

Page 37 of 134



EXHIBIT G-13 · 



Status Pending PolicyStat ID 17873265 

Origination 03/1993 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 02/2026 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Toby Hicks 

Area Human 
Resources 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

HR.A.8 Employment 

1. PURPOSE: 
The purpose of this policy is to extend equal employment opportunities, based on individual merit and 
qualifications, to all applicants for employment and to all The Harris Center for Mental Health and 
Intellectual and Developmental Disability (The Harris Center) employees. 

2. POLICY: 
The Harris Center has a strong commitment to equal employment opportunity. It is the policy of The 
Harris Center to provide equal opportunity to employment matters including, but not limited to, 
recruitment, hiring, testing, compensation, transfer, promotion, upgrade, realignment, demotion, training, 
layoff, and discharge regardless of race, creed, color, national origin, religion, sex, pregnancy, childbirth or 
a related medical condition, age, veteran status, disability, or any characteristic as protected by law. 
Additionally, The Harris Center will make reasonable accommodations for qualified individuals with 
known disabilities unless doing so would result in an undue hardship to the Agency. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
This policy applies to all staff employed by The Harris Center, including both direct and contracted 
employees. 

4. PROCEDURES: 
HR.B.8 Employment Procedure 

HR.A.8 Employment. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/17873265/. Copyright ©
2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 2

Page 38 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=7537198
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81301
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81301
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470


Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 02/2026 

2nd Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 01/2026 

1st Legal Review Bijul Enaohwo 12/2025 

Compliance Director Review Demetria Luckett 12/2025 

Department Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 10/2025 

Initial Assignment Toby Hicks 10/2025 

5. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS: 
HR.A.4 Employee Job Descriptions 

HR.A.25 Transfers, Promotions, Demotions 

HR.A.2 Criminal History Clearance 

HR.A.14 Licensure, Certification, and Registration 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 
The Harris Center's Policy and Procedure Handbook 

HR.A.8 Employment. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/17873265/. Copyright ©
2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 2

Page 39 of 134



EXHIBIT G-14 



Status Pending PolicyStat ID 19152353 

Origination 10/2000 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 01/2026 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Rita Alford: Dir 

Area Information 
Management 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

HIM.EHR.A.7 Faxing & Emailing Patient Identifying 
Information 

1. PURPOSE: 
The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The Harris Center) will protect the confidentiality and 
privacy of patient/individual identifying information and safeguard such information against 
impermissible disclosure when faxing and emailing patient/individual identifying information. 

2. POLICY: 
It is the policy of The Harris Center to ensure that staff protect all patient health information during all 
electronic communication. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
This policy applies to all departments, divisions, facilities and/or programs within The Harris Center. 

4. PROCEDURES: 
HIM.EHR.B.7 Faxing & Emailing Patient Identifying Information 

5. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS: 
HIM.EHR.A.3 Confidentiality and Disclosure of Patient Identifying Information 

LD.A.19 Incident Reporting 

HIM.EHR.A.7 Faxing & Emailing Patient Identifying Information. Retrieved 01/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19152353/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 2

Page 40 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195246
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195246
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81298
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81298
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14121263/approve
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/17504202/latest


Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 01/2026 

Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 01/2026 

Compliance Director Review Demetria Luckett 12/2025 

Department Review Mustafa Cochinwala: Dir 11/2025 

Initial Assignment Rita Alford: Dir 11/2025 

Patient Information Facsimile Cover Sheet 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 

• Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, 45 CFR Part 164 

• Confidentiality of Substance Use Disorder Patient Records, 42 CFR Part 2, Subpart B 

• Physician-Patient Communication, Tex. Occupation Code Ch. 159 

• Medical Records Privacy, Tex. Health and Safety Code Ch. 181 

• Mental Health Records, Tex. Health and Safety Code Ch. 611 

HIM.EHR.A.7 Faxing & Emailing Patient Identifying Information. Retrieved 01/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19152353/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 2

Page 41 of 134



EXHIBIT G-15 



Status Active PolicyStat ID 19152349 

Origination 05/1998 

Last 
Approved 

01/2026 

Effective 01/2026 

Last Revised 01/2026 

Next Review 01/2027 

Owner Rita Alford: Dir 

Area Information 
Management 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

HIM.EHR.A.9 Patient/Individual Records Administration 

1. PURPOSE: 
An adequate and accurate medical record must be maintained for each patient/individual receiving 
service from The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The Harris Center). Throughout each Division, 
patient/individual records (electronic or paper-based) must be uniformly organized so that information 
can be located quickly and easily. 

2. POLICY: 
It is the policy of The Harris Center that the medical record, as a legal document, must also be 
completely accurate and true, containing all information pertinent to the services received by the patient/
individual. All direct care staff will be responsible for documenting and authenticating the care rendered 
to patients/individuals in accordance with professional standards of documentation and specifically 
mandated regulatory, legal, and/or accrediting standards. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
This policy will be used by all employees, contractors, interns, and volunteers within The Harris Center. 

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS: 
HIM.IT.A.2 Information Security Policy 

HIM.EHR.A.1 Agency Abbreviation List 

HIM.EHR.A.3 Confidentiality and Disclosure of Patient/ Individual Health Information 

HIM.EHR.A.14 Retention of Patient/Individual Records 

HIM.EHR.A.9 Patient/Individual Records Administration. Retrieved 01/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19152349/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 2

Page 42 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195246
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195246
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81298
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81298
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470


Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit 01/2026 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 01/2026 

Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 01/2026 

Compliance Director Review Demetria Luckett 12/2025 

Department Review Mustafa Cochinwala: Dir 11/2025 

Initial Assignment Rita Alford: Dir 11/2025 

HIM.EHR.A.5 Content of Patient/Individual Records 

HIM.EHR.A.6 Correcting Documentation and Coding Errors 

5. PROCEDURES: 
HIM.EHR.B.9 Patient/Individual Records Administration 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 
Mental Health Records, Tex. Health & Safety Code Ch. 611 

Medical Records System, 26 Tex. Admin. Code §301.329 
Medical Records, 22 Tex. Admin. Code Ch.163, Subchapter A 
Psychological Records, Test Data, & Test Materials, 22 Tex. Admin. Code §465.22 

HIM.EHR.A.9 Patient/Individual Records Administration. Retrieved 01/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19152349/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 2

Page 43 of 134



EXHIBIT G-16 



Status Pending PolicyStat ID 18106544 

Origination 02/2022 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 01/2026 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Lance Britt: Dir 

Area Assessment, 
Care & Continuity 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

ACC.A.12 Personal Property 

1. PURPOSE: 
The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines relating to the handling of excluded or allowable 
personal items brought into programs by both employees and visitors. 

2. POLICY: 
It is the policy of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The Harris Center) to exclude all weapons, 
illegal drugs, and tobacco products from the premises of all Harris Center facilities and authorized 
program locations to the maximum extent allowable by law. Items, including legal drugs and prescription 
medications, are allowable based on regulations and laws governing transport and storage. 

The Harris Center will post a list of excluded items in a visible location in all facilities. Storage for items 
will be provided based on the setting as described in the Personal Property procedure. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
All Harris Center employees, contractors, volunteers, and visitors. 

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS: 
LD.A.19 Incident Reporting                                                                                                                                    

MED.NUR.A.1 Least Restrictive Interventions and Management of Aggressive Behavior                                
    

MH Outpatient Property Management Form 

ACC.A.12 Personal Property. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18106544/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 2

Page 44 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195433
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195433
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81296
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81296
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/17504202/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16214779/latest


Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 02/2026 

Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 01/2026 

Compliance Director Review Demetria Luckett 12/2025 

1st Legal Review Bijul Enaohwo 12/2025 

Departmental Review Keena Pace: Exec 12/2025 

Compliance 1st Review Christopher Webb: Audit 10/2025 

Initial Assignment Lance Britt: Dir 10/2025 

Neuropsychiatric Center Patient Property Management Form    

Statement of Weapon Confiscation 

5. PROCEDURES: 
ACC.B.12 Personal Property                                         

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 
The Harris Center’s Policy and Procedure Handbook 

Weapons, Tex. Penal Code Ch. 46. 

Trespass by License Holder with a Concealed Handgun,  Tex. Penal Code § 30.06 (2025). 

Trespass by License Holder with an Openly Carried Handgun, Tex. Penal Code § 30.07 (2025). 

License to Carry a Handgun,  Tex. Govt. Code Ch.  411. 

Restrictions on Prohibiting Employee Transportation or Storage of Certain Firearms or Ammunition, Tex. 
Lab. Code §§ 52.061- 52.064. 

Texas Controlled Substances Act,  Tex. Health & Safety Code Ch. 481. 

 CARF: Section 2. Subsection A., General Program Standards 

ACC.A.12 Personal Property. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18106544/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 2

Page 45 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/17351612/latest/


EXHIBIT G-17 



Status Pending PolicyStat ID 19108528 

Origination 06/2023 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 09/2025 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Eunice Davis: Dir 

Area General 
Administration 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

GA.A.3 Pregnant Workers and Accommodations 

1. PURPOSE: 
To ensure that temporary reasonable accommodations are provided to pregnant job applicants and 
employees at The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The Harris Center) as set forth under the 
Pregnant Workers Fairness Act (PWFA).  

2. POLICY: 
It is the policy of The Harris Center to provide a reasonable accommodation to a qualified job applicant 
and employee's known limitations, related to pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical conditions unless 
providing the accommodation would impose an undue hardship on the Harris Center.  

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
This policy applies to Harris Center employees. 

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS: 
HR.A.8 Employment Policy 

Pregnancy Accommodation Request Form 

5. PROCEDURES: 
GA.B.3 Pregnant Workers and Accommodations 

GA.A.3 Pregnant Workers and Accommodations. Retrieved 01/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/
policy/19108528/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 2

Page 46 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195640
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195640
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81302
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81302
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/12432688/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13156854/latest


Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 01/2026 

Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 01/2026 

Compliance Director Review Demetria Luckett 12/2025 

Initial Assignment Eunice Davis: Dir 12/2025 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 

• Pregnant Workers Fairness Act, 42 U.S.C. §2000gg 

• Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended by the Pregnancy Discrimination Act of 
1978, 42 U.S.C. sec. 2000e 

GA.A.3 Pregnant Workers and Accommodations. Retrieved 01/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/
policy/19108528/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 2

Page 47 of 134



EXHIBIT G-18 



Status Pending PolicyStat ID 19042780 

Origination 02/1992 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 10/2025 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Lance Britt: Dir 

Area Assessment, 
Care & Continuity 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

ACC.A.9 Return to In-Patient Care of Furloughed Patient 

1. PURPOSE: 
The purpose of this policy is ensure The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The Harris Center) 
complies with current state laws regarding furlough of patient receiving inpatient treatment pursuant to a 
temporary or extended commitment. 

2. POLICY: 
It is the policy of a The Harris Center to comply with all requirements and special conditions associated 
with patients released on furlough. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE 
This policy applies to all residential programs of The Harris Center. 

4. PROCEDURES 
ACC.B.9 - Return to In-Patient Care of Furloughed Patient 

5. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS: 
6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 
CARF: Section 3. Subsection J., Inpatient Treatment 

ACC.A.9 Return to In-Patient Care of Furloughed Patient. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19042780/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 2

Page 48 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195433
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195433
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81296
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81296
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14478007/approve


Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 02/2026 

Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 01/2026 

Compliance Director Review Demetria Luckett 12/2025 

1st Legal Review Bijul Enaohwo 12/2025 

Departmental Review Keena Pace: Exec 12/2025 

Compliance 1st Review Christopher Webb: Audit 10/2025 

Initial Assignment Lance Britt: Dir 10/2025 

Court-Ordered Mental Health Services, 7 Tex. Health & Safety Code §§ 574.001- 574.203. 

ACC.A.9 Return to In-Patient Care of Furloughed Patient. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19042780/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 2

Page 49 of 134



EXHIBIT G-19 



Status Pending PolicyStat ID 17873300 

Origination 06/2008 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective 365 Days 
After 
Approval 

Last Revised 01/2026 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Eunice Davis: Dir 

Area Environmental 
Management 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

HR.A.1 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act ("The Act') and, 
the American with Disabilities Act ("ADA") (Consumers) 

1. PURPOSE: 
The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines to ensure that qualified individuals with disabilities at 
The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The Harris Center) are protected from discrimination as set 
forth in Federal and State laws and regulations. 

2. POLICY: 
It is the policy of The Harris Center to provide reasonable accommodation(s) to qualified individuals with 
disabilities. No qualified individual with a disability shall, by reason of such disability, be excluded from 
participation in or be denied the benefits of the services, programs, or activities of The Harris Center, or 
be subjected to discriminatory action by the Center or its agents. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
This policy applies to all Harris Center services and programs. 

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS: 
• RR.A.2 Assurance of Individual Rights 

• EM.P.6 Accessibility Plan 

• The Use of Service and Assistance Animals in the Harris Center Facilities Pertaining to 

HR.A.1 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act ("The Act') and, the American with Disabilities Act ("ADA") (Consumers).
Retrieved 01/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/17873300/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris
Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 2

Page 50 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195640
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195640
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81299
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81299
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11000898/latest/
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16573984/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/10787277/latest/


Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 01/2026 

2nd Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 12/2025 

1st Legal Review Bijul Enaohwo 10/2025 

Compliance Director Review Demetria Luckett 10/2025 

Compliance 1st Review Christopher Webb: Audit 10/2025 

Initial Assignment Eunice Davis: Dir 09/2025 

Patients and Visitors 

• EM.A.18 Reasonable Accommodation (Employees) 

5. PROCEDURES: 
 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 

• Consumer Rights Protection Handbook 

• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. § 794. 

• Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. § 12101. 

HR.A.1 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act ("The Act') and, the American with Disabilities Act ("ADA") (Consumers).
Retrieved 01/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/17873300/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris
Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 2

Page 51 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/10787277/latest/
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16338966/latest


EXHIBIT G-20



Status Pending PolicyStat ID 19152356 

Origination 08/2019 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 01/2026 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Kendra Thomas: 
Counsel 

Area Leadership 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

LD.A.8 Subpoenas 

1. PURPOSE: 
To ensure all staff of The Harris Center for Mental Health and Intellectual and Developmental Disability 
(The Harris Center) properly respond and meet deadlines to comply with legal obligations with respect to 
subpoenas. 

2. POLICY: 
It is the policy of The Harris Center to comply and timely respond to subpoenas to avoid any delay in the 
legal proceedings while protecting the legal rights of The Harris Center, its staff and persons served. 

The Harris Center's Legal Services Department/General Counsel Office is administratively responsible for 
all legal matters related to The Harris Center, including management of litigation. A person who is served 
with a subpoena related to behavioral healthcare services provided to persons served or any business 
conducted by The Harris Center must immediately notify the Legal Services Department. The subpoena 
and any accompanying documents shall be immediately forwarded to The Legal Services Department to 
review and ensure the subpoena is proper and meets legal requirements, to avoid delay and to protect 
the interests of The Harris Center, staff/volunteers/interns/contractors and persons served. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
All Harris Center Staff, contractors, volunteers and interns. 

LD.A.8 Subpoenas. Retrieved 01/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19152356/. Copyright ©
2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 2

Page 52 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4197055
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4197055
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81303
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470


Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 01/2026 

2nd Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 01/2026 

1st Legal Review Bijul Enaohwo 12/2025 

Compliance Director Demetria Luckett 12/2025 

Initial Assignment Kendra Thomas: Counsel 10/2025 

4. PROCEDURES: 
5. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS: 
N/A 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 

• Subpoenas, TEX. R. Civ. P. 176 

• Subpoena & Attachment, Tex. Code Crim. Proc. Ann. Art 24 

• Subpoena, FED. R. Crim. P. 17. 

• Subpoena, FED. R. Civ. P. 45. 

• Confidentiality of Substance Use Disorder Patient Records, 42 C.F.R. §§ 2.13; 2.61 — 2.67 

• Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996,45 C.F.R. §§ 160.314; 
160.520; 164.512 CARF: Section 1. Subsection E.2., Legal Requirements 

LD.A.8 Subpoenas. Retrieved 01/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19152356/. Copyright ©
2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 2

Page 53 of 134



EXHIBIT G-21 



Status Pending PolicyStat ID 18455942 

Origination 08/2024 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 09/2025 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Christina 
Gerardo: 
Paralegal 

Area Environmental 
Management 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

EM.A.13 Tenant Selection Policy 

1. PURPOSE: 
The purpose of this policy is to establish a tenant selection process to determine applicants’ 
eligibility to reside in subsidized housing to comply with the rules governing tenancy. 

2. POLICY: 
It is the policy of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The Harris Center) to strongly 
support the goals of equal access to housing and will comply with all applicable federal laws 
and any state or local law prohibiting discrimination in housing. All applicants of subsidized 
housing must meet eligibility criteria established in the tenant selection plan to qualify for 
tenancy. The Harris Center will provide a copy of the Tenant Selection Plan to each applicant 
before their application is processed. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
This policy applies to all applicants of Harris Center’s subsidized housing programs. 

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS: 
• EM.P.6 Tenant Selection Plan 

EM.A.13 Tenant Selection Policy. Retrieved 01/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18455942/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 2

Page 54 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195851
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195851
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81299
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81299
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/16271540/latest


Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 11/2025 

2nd Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 10/2025 

1st Legal Review Bijul Enaohwo 10/2025 

Compliance Director Review Demetria Luckett 10/2025 

Compliance 1st Review Christopher Webb: Audit 09/2025 

Initial Assignment Christina Gerardo: Paralegal 09/2025 

5. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 

• Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988, 42 U.S.C. §§3601-3620 (2018), amended by Housing 
for Older Persons Act of 1995. 

• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. § 794. 

• Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. § 12101. 

• Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d–2000d-7. 

• Age Discrimination Act of 1975, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6101-6107. 

• Texas Fair Housing Act, Tex. Prop. Code Ann. § 301 (West 2025). 

• Exec. Order No. 11063, 3 C.F.R. 652 (1962). 

EM.A.13 Tenant Selection Policy. Retrieved 01/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18455942/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 2

Page 55 of 134



EXHIBIT G-22



Status Pending PolicyStat ID 18489365 

Origination 09/2023 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 01/2026 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Maheshkumar 
Patel 

Area Medical Services 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

MED.MH.A.1 Behavioral Crisis Safety and Intervention 

1. PURPOSE: 
To ensure the safety of consumerspersons served and employees to the fullest extent possible by 
providing timely, prudent and the least restrictive action when a person poses a threat of harm to self or 
others. 

2. POLICY: 
It is the policy of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The Harris Center) to protect the health, 
safety, and well-being of its consumers and employees by taking timely, prudent and the least restrictive 
action to prevent, assess the risk of, intervene in and respond to threats of harm to self (suicide), others 
(violence) and or behavioral health crisis. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
All Harris Center programs and locations. 

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference 
only): 

• The Harris Center’s Policy and Procedure Handbook (hyperlink) 

• Event Report (RLS) 

• The Harris Center Suicide Prevention CARE PATHWAY (include hyperlink here) 

• HPD CIRCULAR (review if it needs to be in a procedure) (include hyperlink here) 

MED.MH.A.1 Behavioral Crisis Safety and Intervention. Retrieved 01/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18489365/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 3

Page 56 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=9249657
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=9249657
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470


Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Wayne Young: Exec 01/2026 

Legal 2nd Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 12/2025 

Legal 1st Review Bijul Enaohwo 12/2025 

Compliance Director Review Demetria Luckett 12/2025 

4th Department Review Luming Li: Chief Medical Ofcr 
(1101 1817) 

12/2025 

5. PROCEDURES: 
N/A 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 

• TAC Title 37 Part 11 Chapter 380 Subchapter C. Division 4. Health Care Services. Rule 
380.9187. Suicide Alert Definitions 

• American Association of Suicidology. https://suicidology.org/resources/warning-
signs/https://suicidology.org/resources/warning-signs/ 

• Mental Health Community ServicesService Standards, 26 Tex. General ProvisionsAdmin. Texas 
Administrative Code Subchapter G, Ch. Title 26 Part 1. Chapter 301. Subchapter G. Division 1. 
Rule 301.303. Definitions. 

• Texas Mental Health Code Chapter 571. General Provisions: Sec 571.002 

• Provider Clinical Responsibilities Mental Health Services, 25 Tex. Admin. Code, Part 1, Chapter 
415 

• Prescribing of Psychoactive MedicationsMedication, 2526 Tex. Admin. Code, Part 1, Chapter 
415, Subchapter A § 320.201. 

• Interventions in Mental Health Services, 2526 Tex. Admin. Code, Part 1, Chapter 415, 
Subchapter F § 320.105. 

• Determination of Manifest Dangerousness, 25 Tex. Admin. Code, Part 1, Chapter § 415, 
Subchapter G.301. 

• Emergency Detention, Tex. Health and& Safety Code, Title 7 Mental Health and Intellectual 
Disability, Subtitle C Texas Mental Health Code, Chapter Ch. 573 

MED.MH.A.1 Behavioral Crisis Safety and Intervention. Retrieved 01/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18489365/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 3

Page 57 of 134

https://suicidology.org/resources/warning-signs/
https://suicidology.org/resources/warning-signs/


3rd Department Review Maheshkumar Patel 11/2025 

2nd Department Review Kia Walker: Chief Nursing 
Officer 

11/2025 

1st Department Review Danyalle Evans 11/2025 

Initial Maheshkumar Patel 10/2025 

MED.MH.A.1 Behavioral Crisis Safety and Intervention. Retrieved 01/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18489365/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 3 of 3

Page 58 of 134



EXHIBIT G-23 ·



Status Pending PolicyStat ID 17150382 

Origination 01/2024 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 10/2025 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Demetria Luckett 

Area Plans 

Document 
Type 

Agency Plan 

EM.P.4 Compliance Documentation and Claims Integrity 
Plan 

Corporate Compliance Documentation and 
Claims Integrity Plan 

I. PURPOSE: 

A. It is the practice of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The Harris Center) 
to obey the law and to follow ethical business and service practices, especially as it 
pertains to quantitative and qualitative documentation requirements of professional 
services and fee and claims billing. The Harris Center requires its employees, 
volunteers, and contract providers to be fully informed about and in compliance with 
all applicable laws, regulations, and regulatory requirements. 

B. The Harris Center has developed a fraud and abuse compliance program that sets 
out the responsibilities and obligations of all employees, volunteers, and contract 
providers regarding submissions for reimbursement to Medicare, Medicaid, and 
other government payers for services rendered by The Harris Center and any of its 
employees, volunteers and contract providers, subsidiaries, divisions, and 
contractors. In addition, this Policy is intended to apply to all business arrangements 
with physicians, vendors, contract providers, and other persons who may be 
impacted by federal or state laws relating to claims of fraud and abuse. 

C. In order to support this commitment, The Harris Center has established the 
following: 

1. Designation of the Compliance Director as The Harris Center employee responsible for 
directing the effort to enhance compliance, including implementation of the Policy. 

EM.P.4 Compliance Documentation and Claims Integrity Plan. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/17150382/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 14

Page 59 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=8159812
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=8159812
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=96650
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=114203


2. Incorporation of standards and procedures that guide The Harris Center employees, 
volunteers, contract providers, and others involved with operational practices and 
administrative guidelines; 

3. Identification of legal issues that may apply to business relationships; 

4. Development of compliance initiatives/requirements at the unit level; 

5. Coordinated training of clinical and administrative staff, volunteers, and contract providers 
concerning applicable compliance requirements and The Harris Center procedures; 

6. A uniform mechanism for employees, volunteers, and contract providers, to raise questions 
and receive appropriate guidance concerning operational compliance issues; 

7. Regular review and audit to assess compliance to identify issues requiring further education 
and to identify potential problems; 

8. A process for employees, volunteers, and contract providers to report possible compliance 
issues and for such report to be fully and independently reviewed by the Corporate Compliance 
Director; 

9. Enforcement of standards through well-publicized disciplinary guidelines. 

10. Formulation of corrective action plans to address any compliance problems which are 
identified; 

11. Regular review of the overall compliance effort to ensure that operational practices reflect 
current requirements that other adjustments are made to improve The Harris Center 
operations; 

12. Coordination between The Harris Center departments and divisions and contract providers to 
ensure effective compliance in areas where activities might overlap. 

II.SCOPE 

A. This Plan applies to all The Harris Center staff, volunteers, contractors, and service activities 
and administrative actions governed by federal and state regulations related to health care 
providers. 

B. It is the intent of The Harris Center that the scope of all documentation and claims compliance 
policies, and procedures should promote integrity, support objectivity and foster trust between 
providers and clients and payors. 

III.Compliance Director 

A. The primary responsibility for implementing and managing The Harris Center 's compliance 
Policy shall be assigned to The Harris Center Compliance Director. The Compliance Director 
will report documentation, ethical or compliance issues to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), to 
the General Counsel, ---directly to the Board of Trustees. The Harris Center Board of Trustees 
endorses this activity and requires that all The Harris Center staff, volunteers, contract 
providers and affiliates to comply with state and federal guidelines related to billing and claims 
as well as federal and state laws related to fraud, waste and abuse. 

B. The Compliance Director will, with oversight of the CEO of The Harris Center and General 
Counsel, perform the following activities: 

1. Review and amend as necessary, the Code of Conduct for all The Harris Center 

EM.P.4 Compliance Documentation and Claims Integrity Plan. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/17150382/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 14

Page 60 of 134



employees, volunteers and contract providers. 

2. Assist in the review, revision, and formulation of appropriate guidelines for all 
activities and functions of The Harris Center, which involve issues of compliance. 

3. Develop methods to ensure The Harris Center employees, volunteers and contract 
providers and vendors are aware of The Harris Center Code of Conduct and 
Corporate Compliance Policy and understand the importance of compliance. 

4. Developing and delivering educational and training programs. 

5. Coordinate compliance reviews and audits in accordance with The Harris Center 
procedures. 

6. Receive and investigate instances of suspected compliance issues, as set forth in 
Sections IX, X and XI of this Policy. 

7. Assist in the development of appropriate corrective actions as set forth in Section XI 
of this Policy. 

8. Prepare Annual Compliance Review, as set forth in Section XII of this Policy. 

9. Prepare Annual Corporate Compliance Work Policy, as set forth in Section XIII of this 
Policy 

10. Prepare proposed revisions to the Compliance Policy, as set forth in Section XIV of 
this Policy. 

11. Provide other assistance as directed by the Harris Center Board of Trustees, General 
Counsel, CEO and COO. 

IV. STAFF TRAINING 

A. All staff, volunteers and contract providers providing services or involved in the billing and 
claims process must participate in billing and claims compliance training. This training shall 
be documented and all staff must demonstrate competency before they are allowed to submit 
bills and claims of services rendered. Individual staff are responsible for maintaining 
compliance with The Harris Center billing and claims procedures and their managers are 
required to assure staff under their supervision is performing as required. The Harris Center 
has also adopted a Code of Conduct to guide all of its business activity. 

B. All new hires receive Corporate Compliance training at new employee orientation. They 
demonstrate corporate competence and acknowledge the Code of Conduct as a condition of 
The Harris Center employment. All staff will take Corporate Compliance training (self-study), 
demonstrate corporate citizenship and acknowledge the Code of Conduct annually thereafter. 
Management staff may request additional Corporate Complianceompliance training at any 
time. At a minimum the training shall include: 

1. A review of The Harris Center 's Corporate Compliance program, 

2. An overview of the fraud and abuse laws as they relate to the claim development and 
submission process; 

3. An overview of the federal agencies that take the lead in combating fraud, waste and 
abuse; 

4. An overview of the fraud, waste and abuse laws as they relate to prohibitions against 

EM.P.4 Compliance Documentation and Claims Integrity Plan. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/17150382/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 3 of 14

Page 61 of 134



payments for referrals, kickbacks and rebates and other illegal inducements; 

5. The consequences to both individuals and The Harris Center of failing to comply 
with applicable laws. 

C. Documentation of Corporate Compliance Training. 

The Harris Center shall document the training provided (class or self- study) to each employee, volunteer 
and contract provider. The documentation shall include the name of the employees, volunteers and 
contract providers, the date and duration of the educational activity or program; and a brief description of 
the subject matter of the education. 

All training materials and curriculum directed to address regulatory compliance issues will be reviewed 
and updated as needed by the Compliance Director. 

V. PHYSICIAN CONTRACTS 

A. It is the policy of The Harris Center that all Federal and state anti-kickback and physician self-
referral laws, which prohibit the offer or payment of any compensation to any party for the 
referral of clients, be followed. All physician contracts as applicable shall be reviewed and 
approved by legal counsel prior to the execution to avoid violation of federal anti-kickback or 
self-referral laws. 

B. To comply with applicable laws regarding client referrals, The Harris Center : 

1. Shall comply with the polices governing gifts set forth in The Harris Center Employee 
Handbook; 

2. Shall not submit nor cause to be submitted a bill or claim for reimbursement for services 
provided pursuant to a prohibited referral. 

The Harris Center also shall ensure that any physician with whom an agreement is executed, and/or who 
serves as an attending physician in the facility, has current valid licenses as required by law and has not 
been excluded from participation in the Medicare and Medicaid programs. 

VI. DOCUMENTATION AND CLAIMS AUDITS 

A. Ongoing review and audit of allaudits within The Harris Center's operations, including 
contracted services will occur and will be coordinated by The Harris Center Compliance 
Director. Such reviews and audits will be regular and ongoing, the results of which will be 
reported to The Harris Center 's CEO. 

B. The Harris Center Compliance Director may, after consultation with the CEO and The Harris 
Center's legal counsel, engage external experts to perform focused reviews as needed. 
Monitoring shall occur at the provider level as well as with through third party review 
coordinated by the Compliance Director. Billing and claims issues identified through reviews 
shall be reported by T he Harris Center Compliance Director to the CEO and The Harris Center 
's legal counsel and others as needed. 

C. In order to assure compliance with Medicare/Medicaid and other government funded 
healthcare payment programs, The Harris Center has adopted a billing audit procedure to 
assist in its efforts to monitor the accuracy of claims. This procedure is adopted to ensure that 
representative claims from all The Harris Center 's individual and institutional providers are 

EM.P.4 Compliance Documentation and Claims Integrity Plan. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/17150382/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 4 of 14

Page 62 of 134



periodically reviewed in a manner which will enable The Harris Center to promptly identify 
deficiencies in the claim development and submission process, which could result in 
inaccurate claims. 

D. AUDIT PROCESS 
The Harris Center will conduct audits on a regular basis. The audits will be executed in 
accordance with the policies and procedures contained in the applicable auditing tool or 
protocol utilized by The Harris Center . The Harris Center will devote such resources as are 
reasonably necessary to ensure that the audits are initiated by persons with appropriate 
knowledge and experience to reflect changes in applicable laws and regulations. 

E. AUDIT POLICY 

1. Chart Audits. It is the policy of The Harris Center and the responsibility of each 
department manager to ensure that employees, volunteers and contract providers 
who have a direct impact on the claim development and submission to process are 
provided adequate and appropriate training. One mechanism for ensuring the 
accuracy of The Harris Center 's claims is to ensure that each new employee, 
volunteers and contract providers adequately understands the essential elements of 
his/her jobs functions. In furtherance of this objective, it is the policy of The Harris 
Center to review the work of employees, volunteers and contract providers in the 
manner set forth below: 

2. Billers and Coders. Each employee, volunteer and contract provider whose principle 
function includes the billing or coding of claims to be submitted to the Medicare or 
Medicaid program shall have alla sample of such employee's, volunteer's and 
contract provider's claim related work reviewed by the employee's, volunteer's and 
contract provider's supervisor for a period of not less than 15 days following the 
commencement date, or such later date as the manager is satisfied that the 
accuracy of the employees, volunteers and contract provider's claims justify 
cessations of the reviews. 

a. Clinical Staff. Patient care providers shall be provided written guidelines 
with respect to documentation services rendered by such providers at 
least one (1) time during the first 60 days of employment of client care 
personnel, the providers (manager, supervisor, or other appropriate 
persons) shall review alla sample of the provider's documentation to 
ensure that the provider is accurately and completely documenting the 
services rendered by the provider. For the purpose of this policy, the term 
provider includes physicians, nurses, allied health professionals and other 
persons who may document the delivery of services in The Harris Center 's 
records (including medical records). 

b. Periodic Audits. The Harris Center will conduct periodic audits of claims 
submitted to the Medicare and Medicaid programs. At a minimum, The 
Harris Center's audit activities shall consist of: (1) individual provider 
audits – the audit of not less than 100 claims annually of a sample 
randomly selected within an individual program site. Focus audits may 
also be conducted on individual staff. 

c. Complaint Audits/Focused Reviews. Upon receipt of a credible allegation 
or complaint alleging improper or inaccurate billing practices at The Harris 

EM.P.4 Compliance Documentation and Claims Integrity Plan. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/17150382/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 5 of 14

Page 63 of 134



Center, The Harris Center shall undertake a review of the matter, including 
an extensive audit as dictated in The Harris Center Corporate Compliance 
Policy. 

VII. COST REPORT SUBMISSIONS 

A. The Harris Center is required to submit various cost reports to federal and state governments 
in connection with its operation and to receive payment. Such reports will be prepared as 
accurately as possible and in conformity with applicable laws and regulations. If errors are 
discovered, billing personnel shall contact an immediate supervisor promptly for advice 
concerning how to correct the error(s) and notify the appropriate payor. In some instances, 
errors shall also be reported to The Harris Center Compliance Director if it is suspected that 
the error has affected The Harris Center-wide billing process or jeopardized The Harris Center's 
on-going participation in federally funded programs. 

B. In the preparation of cost reports for Medicare or Medicaid or any other state or federal cost 
reporting documents, all employees, volunteers, and contract providers involved in the 
preparation shall ensure that: 

1. Information provided for or used in the cost report is adequately supported by 
documentation. 

2. Non-allowable costs are properly identified and removed; 

3. Statistics are based on reliable information; 

4. Related parties are identified and their services treated in accordance with program 
rules; and 

5. Costs claimed in non-conformity with program rules, as interpreted by the Medicare 
or Medicaid program or the fiscal intermediary, either are disclosed in a letter 
accompanying the cost report or are in protested amounts. 

VIII. REPORTING COMPLIANCE ISSUES 

A. Billing and claims shall be made only for services provided to clients, directly or under contract, 
pursuant to all terms and conditions specified by the government or third-party payor and 
consistent with industry practice. The Harris Center and its employees, volunteers, and 
contract providers shall not make or submit any false or misleading entries on any bills or 
claim forms, and no employees, volunteers, or contract providers shall engage in any 
arrangement or participate in such an arrangement at the direction of another employees, 
volunteers and contract providers (including any supervisor), that results in such prohibited 
acts. Any false statements on any bill or claim form shall subject the employees, volunteers, 
and contract providers to disciplinary action by The Harris Center, including possible 
termination of employment. 

B. False claims and billing fraud may take a variety of different forms, including but not limited to 
false statements supporting claims for payment, misrepresentation of material facts, 
concealment of material facts, or theft of benefits or payments from the part entitled to 
receive them. The Harris Center and employees, volunteers, and contract providers shall 
specifically refrain from engaging in the following billing practices: 

1. Making claims for items or services not rendered or not provided as claimed; 

EM.P.4 Compliance Documentation and Claims Integrity Plan. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/17150382/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 6 of 14

Page 64 of 134



2. Submitting claims to any payor, including Medicare and Medicaid, for services or 
supplies that are not medically necessary; 

3. Submitting claims for items or services that are not provided as claimed; 

4. Submitting claims to any payor, including Medicare and Medicaid, for individual 
items or services when such items or services either are included in The Harris 
Center's per diem rate or are of the type that may be billed only as a unit and not 
unbundled; 

5. Double billings (billing for the same item or service more than once); 

6. Paying or receiving anything of financial benefit in exchange for Medicare or 
Medicaid referrals (such as receiving non-covered medical products at no charge in 
exchange for ordering Medicare-reimbursed products); or 

7. Billing clients for services or supplies that are included in the per diem payment from 
Medicare, Medicaid, a managed care Policy or other payor. 

8. Submitting a false statement, false information, misrepresentation, or omitting 
pertinent facts to obtain greater compensation than the provider is legally entitled to. 

9. Submitting false statements, false information, or misrepresentation, or omitting 
pertinent facts on any application or any document requested as a prerequisite for 
payment. 

C. If an employee, volunteer or contract provider has any reason to believe that anyone (including 
themselves) is engaging in false billing practices, that employee, volunteer, or contract provider 
shall immediately report the practice to The Harris Center's Compliance Director or at 
www.fraudhl.com; 1-855-372-8345 (1-855-FRAUD-HL). All reports to The Harris Center shall 
remain confidential. 

D. Failure to act when an employee, volunteer or contract provider has knowledge that someone 
is engaged in false billing practices shall be considered a breach of that employee's, 
volunteer's or contract provider's responsibilities and shall subject him/her to disciplinary 
action by The Harris Center, including possible termination of employment and prosecution. 

E. Questions about operational issues should be directed to the person(s) having supervisory 
responsibility for a specific clinical provider, program or unit. Training materials will instruct 
The Harris Center employees, volunteers and contract providers that they need to report to The 
Harris Center's Compliance Director any activity that they believe to be inconsistent with The 
Harris Center's policies and or legal requirements. The materials will explain how the 
Compliance Director can be contacted. 

F. Employees, volunteers and contract providers must immediately report all known or suspected 
instances of documentation and claims fraud to the Compliance Director. Employees, 
volunteers and contract providers who become aware of potential violations of professional 
licensing and certification requirements are to report them immediately to their immediate 
supervisor and to the Compliance Director. 

G. The Qui Tam Act- Whistleblowers Protection Act protects all employees, volunteers and 
contract providers who report in good faith of known or suspected compliance issues. No 
employees, volunteers or contract providers shall be subjected to retaliation or harassment of 
any kind. Concerns about possible retaliation or harassment should be reported to the 

EM.P.4 Compliance Documentation and Claims Integrity Plan. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/17150382/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 7 of 14

Page 65 of 134



Compliance Director, who will immediately report to the CEO. 

H. The Harris Center Compliance Director will maintain a log of compliance concerns that are 
reported to the Compliance Office. All reports will be undertaken with a preliminary 
investigation, which will determine if a full investigation is warranted. In instances where a full 
inquiry is not warranted, the log should explain why no investigation was undertaken. This log 
will record the issue, the clinical providers, units, departments and/or organizations affected, 
the result of the any investigation and whether the issue has been addressed. The log reports 
should note any issues, which remain open. This log is to be treated as a confidential 
document and access will be limited to the Corporate Compliance Director and to the CEO. 

IX. COMPLIANCE HOTLINE 

The Harris Center has established a telephone "FRAUD Hotline" to permit compliance issues to be 
reported on a confidential basis. The Hotline 1-855-FRAUD-HL (1-855-372-8345) available 24 hours a day, 
seven days a week. Use the Company ID "Harris" to submit a report. 

X. INVESTIGATING COMPLIANCE ISSUES 

A. Whenever conduct is inconsistent with The Harris Center's Corporate Compliance operating 
procedures and is reported, The Harris Center's Compliance Director should determine 
whether there is reasonable cause to believe that a material compliance issue may exist. If a 
preliminary review indicates a problem may exist, an inquiry into the matter will be undertaken. 
Responsibility for conducting the review will be decided on a case–by–case basis. The results 
of the inquiry will be made available to the General Counsel, CEO and COO. 

B. The Harris Center employees, volunteers, and contract providers will be expected to cooperate 
fully with inquiries undertaken pursuant to this Policy. To the extent practical and appropriate, 
efforts should be made to maintain the confidentiality of such inquiries and the information 
gathered. 

C. Investigation of all calls and reports of potential fraud shall occur according to the following 
guidelines: 

1. Purpose of the Investigation. The purpose of the investigation shall be to identify those 
situations in which the laws, rules, and standards of the Medicare and Medicaid programs may 
not have been followed; and to identify individuals who may have knowingly or inadvertently 
caused claims to be submitted or processed in a manner which violated Medicare or Medicaid 
laws, rules or standards; to identify individuals who may have knowingly or inadvertently 
violated the Codes of Conduct; to identify individuals who may have knowingly or inadvertently 
violated The Harris Center policies or procedures; to facilitate the correction of any practices 
not in compliance with the Medicare or Medicaid laws, rules and standards; to implement 
those procedures necessary to insure future compliance; to protect The Harris Center in the 
event of civil or criminal enforcement actions, and to preserve and protect The Harris Center 's 
assets. 

2. Control of Investigations. All reports received, whether by a manager of The Harris Center's 
program component or directly through an internal audit shall be forwarded to the Compliance 
Director. The Compliance Director will be responsible for directing the investigation of the 
alleged problem or incident or recommending that legal counsel conduct the investigation. 
Under the direction of the CEO, in undertaking this investigation, the Compliance Director may 

EM.P.4 Compliance Documentation and Claims Integrity Plan. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/17150382/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 8 of 14

Page 66 of 134



solicit the support and assistance of legal counsel and internal or external auditors, and 
internal or external resources with knowledge of the applicable laws and regulations and 
required policies, procedures or standards that relate to the specific problem in question. 

3. Investigative Process. Upon receipt of an employee's, volunteer's, or contract provider's 
complaint, report, or other information (including audit results), that suggests that the 
existence of a serious pattern of conduct in violation of the compliance policies, or applicable 
laws or regulations, an investigation under the direction and control of the Compliance Director 
shall be commenced. Steps to be followed in undertaking the investigation shall include at a 
minimum: 

a. The Compliance Director will notify the CEO, General Counsel and the COO of the 
nature of the complaint and the Compliance Director will conduct a preliminary 
investigation into the allegation to determine the level of investigation necessary 
based on the seriousness of the allegation. After the CEO, General Counsel and COO 
review the preliminary investigation, they will determine and advise the Compliance 
Director whether to proceed with a full formal investigation. In some instances, a 
complaint may be resolved with a simple phone call, while others will require a 
formal investigation. If the Compliance Director has reasonable cause to believe that 
a risk issue exists, the Compliance Director will report the issue to the CEO, General 
Counsel and COO, who will make a case-by-case decision as to whether an 
employee, volunteer, or contract provider should be removed from his/her work area 
during the investigation. 

b. The investigation shall be commenced as soon as possible but in no more than five 
(5) business days following the receipt of the complaint or report. A full investigation 
will not exceed more than 30 business days. In instances where additional time is 
needed, a request by the Compliance Director with an explanation as to why may be 
sent to and approval may be granted by the CEO. The investigations shall include, as 
applicable, but need not be limited to: 

1. An interview of the complainant, the person who is the focus of the 
complaint, and other persons who may have knowledge of the alleged 
problem or process and a review of the applicable laws and regulations 
which might be relevant to or provide guidance with respect to the 
appropriateness or inappropriateness of the activity in question, to 
determine whether or not a problem actually exists. 

a. If the preliminary review results in conclusions or findings that 
are permitted under applicable laws, regulations or policy or that 
the complained of act did not occur as alleged or that it does not 
otherwise appear to be a problem, the investigation shall be 
closed. The CEO, COO, and the person who is the focus of the 
investigation will be notified that the case has been closed. 

b. If the preliminary investigation concludes that there is the 
existence of a serious pattern of conduct in violation of the 
compliance Policy, improper billing occurring, that practices are 
occurring which are contrary to applicable law, inaccurate claims 
are being submitted, or that additional evidence is necessary, the 
investigation shall proceed to the next step—a full formal 

EM.P.4 Compliance Documentation and Claims Integrity Plan. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/17150382/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 9 of 14

Page 67 of 134



investigation. If a full formal investigation is required, the CEO, 
General Counsel, COO and the appropriate Executive 
Management Team member shall be notified a formal 
investigation will be required. 

2. The identification and review of representative bills or claims submitted to 
the Medicare/Medicaid programs to determine the nature of the problem, 
the scope of the problem, the frequency of the problem, the duration of the 
problem, and the potential financial magnitude of the problem. 

3. Identifying witnesses, taking written statements, and interviews of the 
person or persons in the departments and institutions who appeared to 
play a role in the process in which the problems exists. The purpose of the 
interview will be to determine the facts related to the complained of 
activity, and may include, but shall not be limited to: 

a. Individual understanding of the Medicare and Medicaid laws, 
rules and regulations. 

b. Collecting documentary and demonstrative evidence such as 
medical records, financial records, Human Resource files and 
records, copies of contracts or agreements with employees, 
agents, vendors an external contractors which describe 
business relationships; 

c. The identification of persons with supervisory or managerial 
responsibility in the process; 

d. The adequacy of the training of the individuals performing the 
functions within the process; 

e. The extent to which any person knowingly or with reckless 
disregard or intentional indifference acted contrary to the 
Medicare or Medicaid laws, rules or regulations; 

f. The nature and extent of potential civil or criminal liability of 
individuals or The Harris Center ; and 

g. Drawing conclusions and reporting investigative findings and 
preparation of a summary report which (1) defines the nature of 
the problem (2) summarizes the investigation process, (3) 
identifies any person whom the investigator believes to have 
either acted deliberately or with reckless disregard or intentional 
indifference toward the Medicare/Medicaid laws, rules and 
policies, (4) if possible, estimates the nature and extent of the 
resulting overpayment by the government, if any. 

h. When an investigation is concluded, and a case has been 
confirmed, the Compliance Director will notify the CEO, General 
Counsel, COO and the appropriate VP of the findings. The 
Federal False Claims Act requires that persons holding 
management positions be held responsible for awareness and 
practices of their staff. Persons in management positions may 

EM.P.4 Compliance Documentation and Claims Integrity Plan. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/17150382/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 10 of 14

Page 68 of 134



be held accountable for the foreseeable failure of staff to adhere 
to standards, policies, regulations and laws whether there is 
actual knowledge, deliberate ignorance or reckless disregard on 
the part of the management staff. 

i. When an investigation is concluded and a case has been found 
to be unconfirmed, inconclusive or unfounded, the Compliance 
Director will notify the CEO, General Counsel, COO, and the 
appropriate VP of the findings. The person who is the focus of 
the investigation will be notified that the case has been closed. 

j. Investigation reports will have one of the four findings: 

i. Confirmed—An allegation that is supported by evidence collected during an investigation. 

ii. Unconfirmed—Evidence collected during the investigation proved that the allegation did not 
occur. 

iii. Inconclusive—Evidence collected during the investigation led to no conclusion or definite result 
due to a lack of witnesses or other relevant evidence. 

iv. Unfounded—Allegation is determined not to be true prior to any investigation. 

D. ORGANIZATIONAL RESPONSE 

1. Criminal Activity. In the event The Harris Center uncovers what appears to be criminal activity 
on the part of any employees, volunteers, and contract providers or program component, it 
shall undertake the following steps. 

a. Immediately stop all billing related to the problem in the unit(s) where the problem 
exists until such time as the offending practices are corrected. 

b. Initiate appropriate disciplinary action against the person or persons whose conduct 
appears to have been intentional, willfully indifferent, or with reckless disregard for 
the Medicare and Medicaid laws. Appropriate disciplinary action shall include, at a 
minimum, the removal of the person from any position with oversight for or impact 
upon the claims submission or billing process and may include, in addition, 
suspension, demotion, and discharge. 

c. Make reports to governmental authorities and law enforcement officials as 
appropriate. 

2. Non-Criminal Activity. In the event the investigation reveals billing or other problems, that do 
not appear to be the result of conduct, that is intentional, willfully indifferent, or with reckless 
disregard for the Medicare and Medicaid laws, The Harris Center shall nevertheless undertake 
the following steps. 

a. Improper Payments: In the event the problem results in duplicate payments by 
Medicare or Medicaid, or payments for services not rendered or provided other than 
as claimed, it shall: 

1. Correct the defective practice or procedure as quickly as possible; 

2. Calculate and repay to the appropriate governmental entity duplicate 
payments for improper payments resulting from the act or omission; 

EM.P.4 Compliance Documentation and Claims Integrity Plan. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/17150382/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 11 of 14

Page 69 of 134



3. Initiate such disciplinary action, if any, as may be appropriate given the 
facts and circumstances. Appropriate disciplinary action may include, but 
is not limited to, reprimand, demotion, suspension and discharge. 

4. Promptly undertake a program of education at the appropriate business 
unit to prevent future similar problems. 

b. No improper Payment: In the event the problem has or does not result in an 
overpayment by the Medicare or Medicaid program, The Harris Center : 

1. Correct the defective practice or procedure as quickly as possible. 

2. Initiate such disciplinary action, if any, as appropriate given the facts and 
circumstances. Appropriate disciplinary action may include but is not 
limited to, reprimand, demotion, suspension, and discharge. 

3. Promptly undertake a program of education at the appropriate business 
unit to prevent future similar problems. 

E. STAFF DISCIPLINE 
Employees, volunteers and contract providers may be subject to adverse personnel action for failing to 
participate in organizational compliance efforts, including but not limited to: 

1. The failure of an employee, volunteer or contract provider to comply with The Harris Center 
policy and procedure and/or perform any obligation required of the employees, volunteers or 
contract providers relating to compliance with the program or applicable laws or regulations. 

2. The failure to report suspected violations of compliance programs laws or applicable laws or 
regulations to an appropriate person; and 

3. The failure on the part of a supervisory or managerial employee, volunteer, and contract 
provider to implement and maintain policies and procedures reasonably necessary to ensure 
compliance with the terms of the program or applicable laws and regulations. 

Disciplinary actions will follow The Human Resources policies and procedures. 

XI. CORRECTIVE ACTION POLICY 

A. Whenever a compliance issue has been identified, the Compliance Director has the 
responsibility and authority to take or direct appropriate action to address the issue. The 
corrective action will be set forth in writing. In developing the Corrective Action Policy, the 
Compliance Director should obtain advice and guidance from others as necessary, such as the 
CEO and COO and The Harris Center's legal counsel if needed. Information about corrective 
action plans shall be provided to the CEO and General Counsel. 

B. Corrective Action shall be pre-approved by, at a minimum, the CEO and General Counsel. 
Corrective action should be designed to ensure not only that the specific issue at hand is 
addressed but also systems are placed in operation, which would prohibit the repeat of similar 
problems. Corrective actions may require certain functions to be reassigned, training to take 
place, restrictions on personnel, reassignment of duties, terminating contractual relationships, 
that repayment be made, or that the matter be disclosed externally. Corrective action may 
include recommendations that a sanction or disciplinary action be imposed. Moreover, if the 
Compliance Director believes that any non-compliance has been willful, that belief and the 
basis for it shall be reported to the CEO and General Counsel. The Harris Center employees, 

EM.P.4 Compliance Documentation and Claims Integrity Plan. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/17150382/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 12 of 14

Page 70 of 134



volunteers, and contract providers who have engaged in willful billing and claims misconduct 
will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination and criminal prosecution. 

XII. ANNUAL COMPLIANCE REVIEW 

A. On or before the end of each fiscal year, the Compliance Director will arrange for a review of 
The Harris Center's current compliance and regulatory operations. The purpose of the review is 
to ascertain whether the compliance operations of The Harris Center are within standards. 

XIII. ANNUAL REPORT (Memorandum of Record) 

A. On or before September 1, the Compliance Director shall prepare and distribute to the General 
Counsel and CEO a report describing the compliance efforts during the preceding fiscal year. 
The report shall include the following elements: 

1. A summary of the general compliance activities undertaken during the preceding fiscal year, 
including any changes made to the Compliance Policy; 

2. A summary of the Hotline log for the preceding fiscal year; 

3. A summary of the preceding fiscal year's Compliance Review; 

4. A description of actions taken to ensure the effectiveness of the training and education efforts; 

5. A summary of actions to ensure compliance with The Harris Center 's policy on dealing with 
excluded persons; 

6. Recommendations and result of recommendations for changes in the policy that might 
improve the effectiveness of The Harris Center 's compliance effort; and 

7. Any other information specifically requested by the General Counsel, CEO and the Board of 
Trustees. 

XIVXIl. REVISIONS TO THE INTEGRITY POLICYPLAN 

A. This Compliance Policy is intended to be flexible and readily adaptable to changes in 
regulatory requirements and in the health care system as a whole. The Policy shall be regularly 
reviewed to assess whether it is working and effective. The Harris Center 's CEO shall have the 
authority to amend the Policy at any time. 

XVXlll. EXCLUDED PERSONS 

A. The Harris Center complies with 42 U.S.C. 1320a-7a(a)(6), which imposes penalties for 
"arranging (by employment or otherwise) with an individual or entity that the person knows or 
should know is excluded from participation in a Federal health care program for the provision 
of items or services for which payment may be made under such a program". Accordingly, prior 
to employing or contracting with any provider for whom The Harris Center intends to submit 
bills to a Federal health program and on a monthly basis, The Harris Center confirms the 
provider has not been excluded from participation in federally funded programs. Those steps 
will include checking the provider's name against the HHS/OIG Cumulative Sanctions list and 
the GSA Debarred Bidders List. The Harris Center's Compliance Director will ensure that The 
Harris Center staff responsible for credentialing has addressed this with each new hire. The 
Harris Center will neither use nor hire a provider who is barred from participation in a federally 
funded program. If The Harris Center learns that any of its current providers (either as 

EM.P.4 Compliance Documentation and Claims Integrity Plan. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/17150382/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 13 of 14

Page 71 of 134



Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Wayne Young: Exec 02/2026 

2nd Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 02/2026 

1st Legal Review Bijul Enaohwo 10/2025 

Compliance Director Review Demetria Luckett 10/2025 

Compliance 1st Review Christopher Webb: Audit 10/2025 

Initial Demetria Luckett 10/2025 

employees, volunteers or contract providers) has been proposed for exclusion or excluded, it 
will remove such persons from any involvement in or responsibility for Federal health 
insurance programs until such time that The Harris Center has confirmed the matter has been 
resolved. 

XVIXlV. REFERENCES: 

A. The Deficit Reduction Act-2005 

B. The Federal Anti-Kickback Statute 

C. The Stark Law 

D. The Texas Illegal Remuneration Statute 

E. Civil Money Penalties Statute 

F. The Federal False Claims Act 

G. The Medicaid Fraud Prevention Act 

H. Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services 

I. Office of the Attorney General 

J. U.S. Department of Justice / Federal Bureau of Investigation 

XVIIXV. ATTACHMENTS 

Code of Conduct 

EM.P.4 Compliance Documentation and Claims Integrity Plan. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/17150382/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 14 of 14

Page 72 of 134



EXHIBIT G-24



Status Pending PolicyStat ID 19107920 

Origination 11/2022 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 02/2026 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Christopher 
Webb: Audit 

Area Plans 

Document 
Type 

Agency Plan 

LD.P.1 Compliance Plan FY26 

1. TABLE OF CONTENTS 
1.1. I. INTRODUCTION 
1. Overview 

2. Application of Compliance Plan Guidance 

3. The Harris Center's Purpose, Mission, Vision, and Core Values 

1.2. II. COMPLIANCE DEPARTMENT REPORTING 
STRUCTURE 

1.3. III. STATUTES, LAWS, REGULATIONS/
REGULATORY BODIES 

1.4. IV. COMPLIANCE PLAN ELEMENTS 1 – 7 
Element 1. Written Policies and Procedures 

A. Standards of Behavior 

B. Common Risk Areas 

C. Claim Development and Submission Process 

D. Integrity of Data Systems 

LD.P.1 Compliance Plan FY26. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19107920/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 28

Page 73 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=5098508
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=5098508
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=96650
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=114203


E. Retention of Records 

F. Compliance as an Element of a Performance Plan 

Element 2. Designation of a Compliance Director and an Audit/Compliance Committee 

A. Compliance Director 

B. Audit/Compliance Committee 

Element 3. Conducting Effective Training and Education 

Element 4. Developing Effective Lines of Communication 

Element 5. Enforcing Standards through Well-Publicized Disciplinary Guidelines 

Element 6. Auditing and Monitoring 

Element 7. Responding to Detected Offenses and Developing Corrective Action Initiatives 

A. Violations 

B. Investigations/Reporting Procedure 

C. Corrective Actions 

1.5. V. THE HARRIS CENTER COMPLIANCE PROGRAM 
EFFECTIVENESS 
1. Code of Conduct 

2. Regular Review of Compliance Program Effectiveness 

1.6. VI. SELF-REPORTING 

1.7. VII. CONCLUSION 

2. I. INTRODUCTION 
1. Overview. 

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The Harris Center) is proud of the standards that drive our 
success. These standards help create an environment and culture that places great value on business 
ethics and personal integrity, which are demonstrated through the services we provide. The Harris Center 
is committed to conducting its business in an ethical and law-abiding fashion. We are intolerant of 
violations of any applicable federal, state, or local laws, and regulations. The Harris Center will maintain 
a business culture that builds and promotes compliance consciousness and encourages employees to 
conduct all business with honesty and integrity. The Harris Center's commitment to compliance includes 
communicating to all employees and contractors, clear business ethical guidelines to follow; providing 
general and specific education regarding applicable laws, regulations, and policies; and providing 
monitoring and oversight to help ensure that The Harris Center meets our compliance commitment. The 

LD.P.1 Compliance Plan FY26. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19107920/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 28

Page 74 of 134



Harris Center promotes open and free communication regarding our ethical and compliance standards 
and provide a work environment free of retaliation. 

As we strive to become the most innovative behavioral health system in the country, it is imperative we 
understand and adhere to the standards and principles set forth in this document and protect the 
integrity of The Harris Center. The goal of the Compliance Department (Compliance) is to continually 
improve the agencyHarris Center's awareness and accountability, while increasing the agencyHarris 
Center's responsiveness to those we serve using a corporate compliance model. The compliance model 
is developed in accordance with guidance provided by the Office of Inspector General (OIG) of the 
Department of Health and Human Services Commission concerning the elements of an effective 
compliance plan. 

2. Application of Compliance Plan Guidance 

The purpose of The Harris Center's Compliance Plan is to provide uniform guidance for the provision of 
services by The Harris Center, including billing and accounting activities. The Harris Center's Clinical 
Transformation & Quality Department (formerly Program Improvement Department) maintains The 
Harris Center's quality management and performance improvement plans, protocols, and processes that 
support the overarching agency Compliance Plan; please refer to the Performance Improvement Plan for 
further details. The Harris Center's Compliance Plan is a comprehensive strategy to ensure: 

a. Services are provided and documented according to applicable regulations. 

b. Claims submitted to all payers, including private entities, government agencies, and 
consumers, are consistently accurate. 

c. Accounting of collections is consistently accurate. 

d. The Harris Center's employees comply with the applicable laws, policies/procedures and 
regulations, and payer requirements relating to their participation in these programs. 

3. THE HARRIS CENTER'S Purpose, Mission, Vision, and Core Values 

Our Purpose 

The Harris Center is committed to providing professional, comprehensive, and quality care to individuals 
with mental health and intellectual and developmental disabilities (IDD). The obligation to implement this 
plan is shared by all employed by The Harris Center, including direct care staff, administrative staff, 
support staff, contracted providers, and other agency affiliates. 

Health-care is one of the most highly regulated industries in the country, and there are many laws and 
regulations which may not be directly addressed herein. Although an exhaustive list of all applicable 
regulations is not presented here, all regulations are essential to The Harris Center and may be 
addressed elsewhere within the agency's governing documentation. 

The Compliance Plan serves to outline the agency's ethical commitment, standards of conduct, and legal 
and regulatory requirements. This plan also communicates the organization's pledge to operate by 
established guidelines, statutes, rules, regulations, and policies set by the government, executive 
leadership of THE HARRIS CENTER, and negotiated agreements. 

LD.P.1 Compliance Plan FY26. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19107920/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 3 of 28

Page 75 of 134



Our Mission 

Transform the lives of people with behavioral health and IDD needs. 

Our Vision 

Empower people with behavioral health and IDD needs to improve their lives through an accessible, 
integrated and comprehensive recovery-oriented system of care. 

Our Core Values 

• Collaboration 

• Compassion 

• Excellence 

• Integrity 

• Leadership 

• Quality 

• Responsiveness 

• Safety 

II. COMPLIANCE DEPARTMENT REPORTING 
STRUCTURE: 
Framework: 

The Harris Center's Compliance Plan has the following primary components: 

The Audit Committee: 

The Audit Committee shall consist of Harris Center Board members elected annually by the Harris 
Center Board of Trustees. 

Chief Executive Officer: 

Serves as the Chief Executive Directorleader for all operations at The Harris Center. Reports to the Board 
of Trustees. 

General Counsel 

Oversees the Department of Compliance and Rights Office. Works closely with the Executive Team and 
actively engages in critical operations and top emerging issues to provide guidance in developing 
effective compliance strategies. Researches, recommends, and implements best practice tools and 
methodologies for The Harris Center. 

Compliance Director: 

LD.P.1 Compliance Plan FY26. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19107920/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 4 of 28

Page 76 of 134



Oversees the development, administration and oversight of the Harris Center Compliance Plan. 

Compliance Auditor: 

The compliance auditor is tasked with helping to ensure that The Harris Center is adhering to federal, 
state, and local laws and regulations relevant to its business practices and services rendered. The 
compliance auditor will have specialized training and appropriate credentials and is responsible for 
coordinating and/or assisting with the management of both internal agency audits and external audits or 
reviews as necessary. Compliance auditors, during or at the close of a review, will make 
recommendations based on audit findings to assist the agency in adopting changes to procedures or 
practices that are out of compliance with stated regulations. Compliance auditors will also analyze 
potential risks and gaps within operational areas of The Harris Center in order to avoid non-compliance. 

The Harris Center's compliance auditors will conduct audits in accordance with an approved audit 
schedule, which allows for review of agency programs at least annually, but more frequently for 
programs or areas requiring more intensive review. All audits and reviews will be executed in accordance 
with appropriate standards, policies, procedures and within the scope of the authority that is granted. 
The Harris Center shall ensure that audits are adequately developed, initiated by persons with 
appropriate knowledge and experience, and utilize audit tools and protocols that are periodically updated 
to reflect changes in applicable laws and regulations. 

Compliance auditors will also monitor any violations reported against The Harris Center and actively 
assist in the development of responses and plans, including education and training, to address the 
violations. 

Operational Vice Presidents: 

The Vice Presidents are responsible for divisional oversight and assuring that the compliance plan is 
implemented and adhered to throughout the divisions they supervise. They are responsible for being 
aware of divisional monitoring activities and will be required to sign audit and review reports, 
acknowledging awareness of findings for programs within their divisions. 

Program Directors/Practice Managers: 

Program Directors/Practice Managers have day-to-day oversight of program activities and are 
responsible for assuring that program operations align with agency standards and the compliance plan. 

Personnel: 

All agency personnel have the responsibility to ensure that all services provided, and the documentation 
thereof is in accordance with the standards set forth in the compliance plan. 

III. Statutes, Laws, Regulations/Regulatory Bodies: 
1. Code of Conduct – A code of conduct is a collection of rules and regulations that include what 

is and is not acceptable or expected behavior. 

2. Health and Human Service Commission (HHSC) - The federal agency that oversees CMS, 
which administers programs for protecting the health of all Americans, including Medicare, the 

LD.P.1 Compliance Plan FY26. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19107920/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 5 of 28

Page 77 of 134



Marketplace, Medicaid, and the Children's Health Insurance Program (CHIP). 

3. Office of Inspector General (OIG) - The Office of Inspector General for the United States 
Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) is charged with identifying and combating 
waste, fraud, and abuse in the HHS's more than 300 programs, including Medicare and 
programs conducted by agencies within HHS. 

4. Texas Administrative Code (TAC) - The Texas Administrative Code is a compilation of all state 
agency rules in Texas. 

5. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) – The Health Insurance 
Portability and Accountability is a federal law enacted in 1996 that protects continuity of 
health coverage when a person changes or loses a job, that limits health-plan exclusions for 
preexisting medical conditions, that requires that patient medical information be kept private 
and secure, that standardizes electronic transactions involving health information, and that 
permits tax deduction of health insurance premiums by the self-employed. HIPAA established 
a Social Security Act Section that created the Health Care Fraud and Abuse Control Program to 
coordinate federal, state and local law enforcement efforts relating to health care fraud and 
abuse with respect to health plans; conduct investigations, audits, and inspections and 
evaluations relating to the delivery of and payment for health care in the United States; 
facilitate enforcement of all applicable remedies for fraud; and provide education and 
guidance regarding complying with current health care law. 

6. Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (HITECH) - The Health 
Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (HITECH Act) is part of the 
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA). The HITECH Act was created to 
motivate the implementation of electronic health records (EHR) and supporting technology in 
the United States. 

7. Stark Law- Stark Law is a healthcare fraud and abuse law that prohibits physicians from 
referring patients for certain designated health services paid for by Medicare or Medicaid 
programs to any entity in which they have a "financial relationship." The federal government 
interprets the term "financial relationship" broadly to include any direct or indirect ownership or 
investment interest by the referring physician, any financial interests held by any of the 
physician's immediate family members or a compensation arrangement between the physician 
(or immediate family member) and the entity. Unlike the federal Anti-Kickback Statute, the 
Stark Law is not a criminal statute. The Stark Law may be violated even if the parties do not 
intend to violate the law. The Office of the Inspector General (OIG) for the Department of 
Health and Human Services ("HHS") can pursue a civil action against Stark Law violators under 
the civil monetary penalties law. Stark Law violations can result in penalties of up to $15,000 
for each billed service that is based on a prohibited referral, plus three times the amount of the 
government overpayment. Violations of the Stark Law may result in the exclusion of any party 
from Medicaid and Medicare programs. 

8. Civil False Claims Act (FCA) - The False Claim Act is a federal law that makes it a crime for 
any person or organization to knowingly make a false record or file a false claim regarding any 
federal health care program, which includes any plan or program that provides health benefits, 
whether directly, through insurance or otherwise, which is funded. 

9. Sarbanes-Oxley Act (SOX) - The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 is a federal law that established 
sweeping auditing and financial regulations for public companies. Lawmakers created the 
legislation to help protect shareholders, employees and the public from accounting errors and 

LD.P.1 Compliance Plan FY26. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19107920/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 6 of 28

Page 78 of 134



fraudulent financial practices. 

10. Anti-Kickback Statute- The federal Anti-Kickback Statute is a healthcare fraud and abuse 
statute that prohibits the exchange of remuneration—which the statute defines broadly as 
anything of value—for referrals for services or purchasing, leasing, ordering, or arranging for 
ore recommending the purchase, lease or ordering of any good, facility, service or item that are 
payable by a federal health care program. The Anti-Kickback Law requires the person to act 
willfully and knowingly. Violation of the Anti-Kickback law may result in criminal and civil 
penalties and exclusion from federal health care programs. 

11. Federal Trade Commission Act of 1914 – The Federal Trade Commission Act outlaws unfair 
methods of competition and outlaws unfair acts or practices that affect commerce. 

12. Tax Exempt Standards – The Tax Exempt Standards state all 501(c)(3) non-profit 
organizations may not pay more than "reasonable" compensation to a private individual or 
entity from which it purchases service or items. 

13. Other - Applicable Law" means any law, rule, regulation, condition, requirement, guideline, 
ruling, ordinance or order of or any legal entitlement issued by any Governmental Body and 
applicable from time to time to the performance of the obligations of the parties to an 
Agreement. 

IV. Seven Elements of The Harris Center's Compliance 
Plan 
Element 1: Written Policies and Procedures 

Policies establish formal guidance needed to coordinate and execute activity throughout the agency. 
When effectively deployed, policy statements help to focus attention and resources on high priority 
issues, thereby aligning and merging efforts to achieve the institutional vision. Procedures serve as the 
operational processes required to implement organizational policy. If policy is "what" the agency does 
operationally, then its procedures are "how" it intends to carry out those operating policy expressions. 

All policies and procedures shall adhere to state, federal, and any other applicable regulatory guidelines. 
The Harris Center will continue to develop and maintain policies and procedures, which defines internal 
management and operations. Maintenance of the agency's policies and procedures will be coordinated 
by The Compliance Department (Compliance) via an electronic management system and will include, but 
not be limited to periodic review, creation, and archiving of policies and procedures. Policies require 
approval by the Board of Trustees, while procedures are routed and reviewed internally, with approval by 
the Chief Executive Officer or his/her designee. 

A. Standards of Behavior for The Harris Center Personnel 

Based on each of the eight core values of The Harris Center, these guidelines establish clear 
expectations for how we interact with the people we serve and our fellow team members. As team 
leaders, we commit to follow these guidelines to help improve the way we carry out The Harris Center's 
mission of transforming the lives of people with behavioral health and IDD needs. 

LD.P.1 Compliance Plan FY26. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19107920/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 7 of 28

Page 79 of 134



1. Collaboration: 

We trust that teamwork and working together toward shared goals are essential to our success. 

I will: 

i. Offer my assistance to those who may need help, or find someone who can, to create the best 
outcome 

ii. Use respect and courtesy as I share messages and information 

iii. Recognize and celebrate the achievements and successes of others 

iv. Make new staff and people served feel welcomed and supported using positive verbal and 
non-verbal communication 

v. Acknowledge and value workplace diversity to strengthen our organizational culture 

vi. Share my expertise and work with community partners and outside entities to improve the 
lives of people served 

2. Compassion: 

We strive to make every encounter an opportunity to show care and kindness. 

I will: 

i. Show others that I want to listen and understand by giving my full attention (e.g., face the 
person when speaking and listening) 

ii. Contribute towards building a positive work environment by having positive and solution-
oriented interactions with colleagues and people served 

iii. Smile, make eye contact, and greet everyone with enthusiasm 

iv. Treat everyone with respect and dignity 

v. Have an open mind and make time to listen and guide those in need 

3. Excellence: 

We exhibit professionalism and exceed expectations by continuously improving our performance. 

I will: 

i. Strive to exceed expectations, not just meet them 

ii. Provide exceptional customer service to people served and contribute to build a supportive 
work environment with my colleagues 

iii. Be innovative, seeking new solutions to achieve organizational goals and to improve the lives 
of those whom I serve 

iv. Perform my duties to the best of my ability every day 

v. Present myself professionally by dressing in a neat and respectable manner with appropriate 
fit 

LD.P.1 Compliance Plan FY26. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19107920/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 8 of 28

Page 80 of 134



4. Integrity: 

We demonstrate honesty, trust, and sound moral and ethical principles. 

I will: 

i. Be fair, truthful, and honest at all times 

ii. Maintain a high level of composure in communication with co-workers, employees, and 
management 

iii. Maintain appropriate social boundaries because I am representing myself and The Harris 
Center 

iv. Take responsibility for my mistakes and offer solutions 

v. Behave professionally on a daily basis and assume full responsibility for my behavior 

vi. Welcome feedback and not respond defensively if I do not agree with what is being said 

5. Leadership: 

We inspire, take responsibility, and lead by example. 

I will: 

i. Strive to do my best every day to carry out the mission of The Harris Center and provide ideas 
to improve our organization's capability to positively impact the community 

ii. Be open-minded, supportive, respectful, and encouraging 

iii. Ask others for their opinions and acknowledge their contributions 

iv. Demonstrate the characteristics of a positive role model 

v. Deliberately seek learning opportunities to develop as a leader and to understand one's 
personal strengths and weaknesses 

vi. Strive to learn something every day by looking at myself and people around me 

6. Quality: 

We create an environment for high quality care and continuous enhancement of our performance 
standards. 

I will: 

i. Strive to provide the highest quality services to people served and staff every day 

ii. Continue to expand my knowledge in my area of responsibility so I am able to provide high 
quality services 

iii. Be proactive rather than reactive 

iv. Strive for accuracy in my work and actions 

7. Responsiveness: 

We communicate clearly, effectively, professionally, and in a timely manner. 

LD.P.1 Compliance Plan FY26. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19107920/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 9 of 28

Page 81 of 134



I will: 

i. Welcome feedback and address concerns in a timely manner 

ii. Respond to incoming communication in a timely manner (within 24-48 hours) 

iii. Respond clearly and directly to all forms of communication that I receive from people served 
and co-workers, providing an opportunity for others to seek clarification if needed 

iv. Thank my colleagues and people served for waiting and apologize for any delays or barriers 

v. Handle complaints and advice with care and without taking personal offense 

8. Safety: 

We think safe, act safe, and stay safe. 

i. Be alert and aware of my surroundings 

ii. Actively participate in keeping all work areas, meeting rooms, and public places clean, safe, 
and organized 

iii. Seek ways to reduce risks and report all errors and near-misses 

iv. Dispose of litter, clean up spills, and/or report them immediately to the appropriate department 

v. Hold myself, my colleagues, and leaders accountable for the safety of people served 

vi. Make the safety, health, privacy and welfare of people served my top priority 

B. Common Risk Areas. 

The Harris Center is committed to identifying, addressing and/or mitigating risks. Listed below are 
common risk areas that have been identified across behavioral health-care agencies as a whole: 

1. Medical Billing/Coding; 

2. Clinical Documentation Integrity (CDI); 

3. Contract compliance; 

4. Comprehensive Psychiatric Emergency Programs services; 

5. Credentialing; 

6. Agency security protocols; 

7. Rights Protection and Advocacy; 

8. Incident reporting; 

9. Jail Diversion Programs and Services; 

10. Investigations; 

11. HIPAA and HITECH Compliance; and 

12. Fraud, Waste, and Abuse. 

LD.P.1 Compliance Plan FY26. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19107920/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 10 of 28

Page 82 of 134



C. Claim Development and Submission Process 

The Harris Center will: 

1. Provide a mechanism for the billing or reimbursement of services provided; 

2. Provide for proper and timely documentation of all physician and other professional services 
prior to billing to ensure that only accurate and properly documented services are billed; 

3. Emphasize that claims will be submitted only when appropriate documentation supports the 
claims and only when such documentation is maintained, appropriately organized in legible 
form, and available for audit and review. The documentation, which may include patient 
records, should record the date and time the activity was conducted, the appropriate coding 
for the service, the identity of the individual providing the service including signature and 
credentials, the client to whom the service was provided, and the location of the service; 

4. Ensure service records and documentation used as a basis for a claim submission are 
appropriately organized in a fashion that allows for accessibility for review and auditing 
purposes; 

5. Ensure that the diagnosis and procedures reported on the reimbursement claim are based on 
the medical record and other authorized documentation; 

6. Establish a process for pre- and post-submission review of claims to ensure claims submitted 
for reimbursement accurately represent services provided, are supported by sufficient 
documentation and are in conformity with any applicable coverage criteria for reimbursement; 

7. Ensure all billing reflects true and accurate information and conform to all pertinent Federal 
and state laws and regulations. 

D. Integrity of Data Systems Procedures 

To ensure and maintain the accuracy and integrity of electronic data systems used for charting client 
data, claims submission, collections, credit balances and other relevant reports, The Harris Center will: 

1. Ensure data is backed up on a regular basis; 

2. Ensure regularly scheduled integrity checks are performed; 

3. Ensure electronic data is protected against unauthorized access or disclosure by limiting 
access to data systems to only authorized personnel (password protected) 

E. Retention of Records 

The Harris Center will: 

1. Hold employees accountable for the integrity and accuracy of The Harris Center 's documents 
and records, not only to comply with regulatory and legal requirements, but also to ensure that 
records are available to defend business practices and actions. 

2. Prohibit the tampering with, altering of, or falsification of information on any record or 
document. 

3. Ensure medical documents, business documents and records are retained in accordance with 

LD.P.1 Compliance Plan FY26. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19107920/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 11 of 28

Page 83 of 134



the law and service specific records retention policy. 

i. Medical and business documents include but are not limited to paper documents, 
computer-based or electronic information, and any other medium that contains 
information about The Harris Center or its business activities. 

F. Compliance as an Element of a Performance Plan 

The promotion of and adherence to the elements of this compliance program will be a factor in 
evaluating the performance of all employees. All agency managers and supervisors will: 

1. Discuss with all supervised employees and relevant contractors the compliance policies and 
legal requirements applicable to their function; 

2. Ensure employees are periodically trained in new compliance policies and procedures; 

3. Inform all supervised personnel that strict compliance with these guidelines, and policies of 
The Harris Center is a condition of employment; 

4. Disclose to all supervised personnel that The Harris Center will take disciplinary action up to 
and including termination for violation of these guidelines, policies or requirements; 

5. Be reprimanded for failure to instruct their subordinates adequately or for failure to detect 
noncompliance with applicable policies and legal requirements, where reasonable diligence on 
the part of the manager or supervisor would have led to the discovery of any problems or 
violations. 

Element 2: Designation of a Compliance Director and an Audit Committee 

Compliance strives to protect The Harris Center as an organization by detecting and preventing improper 
conduct while promoting adherence to the organization's legal and ethical obligations. As regulatory 
guidance and applicable laws change, the compliance plan will be reviewed and forwarded to the Chief 
Executive Officer (CEO) and the board of trustees. Review and updating of the compliance plan will occur 
as needed, but in any event shall be reviewed annually. 

Regulations, standards and/or regulatory bodies with which the agency must remain in compliance with 
include, but are not limited to the following: 

1. Anti-Kickback Statute 

2. Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) 

3. False Claims Act 

4. Federal Trade Commission Act of 1914 

5. Health and Human Service Commission (HHSC) 

6. Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (HITECH) 

7. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) 

8. Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) 

9. Office of Inspector General (OIG) 

10. Sarbanes-Oxley Act (SOX) 

LD.P.1 Compliance Plan FY26. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19107920/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 12 of 28

Page 84 of 134



11. Stark Law 

12. Texas Administrative Code (TAC) 

13. The Harris Center's Code of Conduct 

To ensure the effective operation of a compliance program, The Harris Center will designate a 
Compliance Director who is not assigned directly to any of The Harris Center's programs, who is 
responsible for the compliance department and compliance activities of THE HARRIS CENTER. The 
Compliance Director will report to General Counsel, who also has a duty to report to the Board of 
Trustees. 

A. Compliance Director 

The Harris Center's Compliance Director will: 

1. Oversee and monitor implementation of the Compliance Program. 

2. Review the program to ensure relevance and compliance with current local, state, and Federal 
laws and regulations. 

3. Ensure the components of the Compliance Program are implemented to reduce fraud, waste, 
abuse, and mismanagement agency wide. 

4. Ensure that contractors, vendors, and agents who furnish services to the facility are aware of 
the facility's compliance program and its respective coding and billing policies and procedures. 

5. Have the authority to access and review all documentation and other information relevant to 
agency compliance activities. 

6. Assist the business office, agency divisions/programs, and internal audit concerning 
compliance review activities related to service provision and/or revenue cycle within the 
agency. 

7. Investigate issues related to compliance. 

8. Assist in identifying processes for improvement and document compliance issues as 
necessary. 

9. Encourage the reporting of suspected fraud, waste, abuse, or mismanagement across agency 
staff without fear of retaliation through training and other means of communication. 

10. Notify employees of applicable regulations, procedures, and guidelines. 

11. Report to The Harris Center's General Counsel and The Harris Center's Board of Trustees on a 
regular basis regarding the results of any audits/reviews, Compliance activities, trainings, 
reports of fraud, waste, abuse, reportable investigations, and any resulting employee 
discipline. 

B. Audit Committee 

The Audit Committee is established to assist the Compliance Director in the development, 
implementation and monitoring of compliance activities. 

The Harris Center Audit Committee will: 

LD.P.1 Compliance Plan FY26. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19107920/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 13 of 28

Page 85 of 134



1. Advise the Compliance Director and assist in the implementation of the compliance program. 

2. Assess compliance violation investigations to determine whether a violation of the compliance 
plan actually exists. 

3. Continually assess current policies and procedures to ensure compliance, relevance, and 
practicability. 

4. Work with appropriate personnel to develop standards of conduct and policies to promote 
adherence to The Harris Center compliance program. 

5. Monitor internal controls to implement the program and recommend changes as needed. 

6. Ensure periodic audits of claims development and claims processing procedures are 
performed and that internal fiscal and administrative controls are implemented and 
maintained. 

Element 3: Conducting Effective Training and Education 

Education and training are critical elements of the compliance plan. Every employee is expected to be 
familiar with and knowledgeable concerning the regulations governing The Harris Center's activities and 
have a solid working knowledge of his or her responsibilities under the plan. Compliance related policies 
and procedures will be communicated to all employees through required training programs and 
electronic communications. 

1. Compliance shall collaborate with all agency departments, including the Education and 
Development (E&D)Organizational department, and agencyHarris Center committees to ensure 
staff training and development align with state and federal regulations. 

2. Compliance trainings will be appropriate to specific position responsibilities. All employees of 
The Harris Center will receive annual compliance training to ensure commitment to the 
agency's high ethical standards of professional and business conduct. 

3. Compliance will collaborate with The Harris Center's training department to relay the 
objectives of Compliance in New Employee Orientation (NEO) classes. Compliance will also 
collaborate with The Harris Center's training department to ensure that annual compliance 
training is provided to the agency. The trainings will include but not be limited to: 

i. An overview of the Compliance Plan. 

ii. The role of Compliance within the agency. 

iii. Code of conduct. 

iv. Reporting of suspected fraud, waste and abuse, and violations of laws and 
regulations 

4. All employees will have access to in person and on-line compliance training through the 
agencyHarris Center's training system and receive notifications of upcoming trainings. 
Management is responsible for ensuring their employees are familiar with regulations, are 
aware of issues affecting their units, and are updated with information provided by 
Compliance. Compliance will provide periodic trainings on compliance with regulations, the 
compliance plan and the compliance department's activities. Such training shall occur as often 
as appropriate, but at least once annually. 

LD.P.1 Compliance Plan FY26. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19107920/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 14 of 28

Page 86 of 134



Element 4: Developing Effective Lines of Communication. 

Staff members will have the ability to communicate compliance issues without the fear of retaliation. 
Staff members shall be able to ask for clarification when they're unsure about a policy, procedure or 
potential compliance violation. 

1. If an employee has a compliance related question or has any reason to believe that anyone 
(including the employee himself or herself) is engaging in false billing practices, that employee 
shall immediately report the practice to his or her immediate supervisor and the Compliance 
Director at 713.970.3432. Reports to the Compliance Director remain confidential. 

Element 5: Enforcing Standards through Well-Publicized Disciplinary Guidelines. 

Disciplinary action will be applicable to all individuals within The Harris Center who fail to comply with 
their obligations in accordance with The Harris Center's policies and procedures. When there is 
information of potential violations or misconduct, the Compliance Director has the responsibility of 
conducting an internal investigation. An internal investigation would include interviews and a review of 
individual records, billings, and other relevant documents. 

1. New employees to The Harris Center or employees new to a position will be trained to ensure 
that their work is consistent with standards to prevent fraud, waste, abuse, or 
mismanagement. The Harris Center is responsible for providing the same training to 
employees providing services for The Harris Center as contractors or affiliates of The Harris 
Center. 

2. Employees shall be informed of disciplinary action and the nature of the offense that was 
violated, noting the specific incident(s), the date(s) of the incident(s), actions necessary to 
correct the problem, period in which improvements must be made, and the consequences for 
not correcting or repeating the offense. 

An agency-approved form should be used to document the type of disciplinary action being issued the 
employee dated and signed by both the supervisor and employee, then forwarded to the Department of 
Human Resources. 

Corrective Discipline: 

The Harris Center's best interest lies in ensuring fair treatment of all employees and in making certain 
that disciplinary actions are prompt, uniform, and impartial. The major purpose of any disciplinary action 
is to correct the problem, prevent recurrence, and prepare the employee for satisfactory service in the 
future. 

Although employment with the The Harris Center is based on mutual consent and both the employee 
and the The Harris Center have the right to terminate employment at will, with or without cause or 
advance notice. The Harris Center may use corrective discipline in accordance with Harris Center 
policies and procedures. 

Corrective action should take into account the seriousness of the problem, past performance, previous 
warnings and the result of prior corrective steps. Depending on circumstances of individual cases, 
corrective actions ranging from verbal warning to involuntary termination may be appropriate as an initial 
or repeated step; the order of disciplinary steps listed below need not be followed in all cases. Corrective 

LD.P.1 Compliance Plan FY26. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19107920/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 15 of 28

Page 87 of 134



action may also involve demotion, or reassignment. Salary increases are not granted during any 
corrective discipline probationary period. 

Written Warning: 

A Written Warning serves to notify the employee of a serious job performance or work-related conduct 
problem which cannot be permitted to continue, worsen or recur. Continued unacceptable conduct will 
lead to further disciplinary conduct up to and including termination. 

Administrative Leave: 

Administrative leave with or without pay may be appropriate during an investigation, as an initial or 
follow-up action when the continued presence of the employee may threaten safety, property, operations, 
investigations or Harris Center reputation, allegations of abuse, neglect and exploitation have been 
reported or when a serious job performance or conduct problem occurs. 

Disciplinary Probation: 

An employee may be placed on disciplinary probation for a designated period of time for significant 
performance deficiencies which are determined to be within the employee's ability and intent to correct. 
A supervisor may also put an employee on probation until they resolve a problem with credentials that 
are required for their position. 

Involuntary Termination: 

Involuntary Termination may be appropriate when the employee fails to demonstrate sustained 
improvement, sufficient ability or intent to meet job expectations or has engaged in conduct which 
violates Agency policies and procedures. 

Prosecution may be pursued as determined by the AgencyHarris Center's management. 

Element 6: Auditing and Monitoring 

Ongoing auditing and monitoring efforts should include: 

1. Monitoring the agencyHarris Center's compliance with specific rules and policies that have 
been the focus of particular attention by The Health and Human Services (HHS), Centers for 
Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), Managed Care Organizations (MCO), The Office of the 
Inspector General (OIG), OIG audits and evaluations, Special Fraud Alerts, internal or external 
reporting, law enforcement initiatives, etc. 

2. On-site visits, interviews with management responsible for the operations (e.g., coding, claims 
development and submission, patient care, and other related activities). 

3. Reviews of medical and financial records and/or other source documents that support claims 
for reimbursement in order to ensure the accuracy of claims. 

4. Questionnaires or surveys were developed to solicit impressions of a broad cross-section of 
the employees and staff about compliance issues. 

5. Results of ongoing auditing and monitoring must specifically identify areas where corrective 
action plans (CAP) are needed to prevent problems from recurring. When monitoring discloses 
program deficiencies, appropriate immediate corrective action measures must be 

LD.P.1 Compliance Plan FY26. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19107920/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 16 of 28

Page 88 of 134



implemented. 

6. When a CAP is required, Compliance will review and validate the corrective measures and will 
reassess the program at a designated time to ensure that the corrective actions have been 
implemented and are effective. If it is determined that a program is out of compliance after a 
CAP has been implemented, Compliance will close the review and recommend that the 
program to collaborate with the Clinical Transformation & Quality AssuranceDepartment to 
establish a plan of improvement (POI). Within one hundred eighty (180) days of the 
implementation of the POI, Compliance will reassess the program. 

7. Compliance will maintain records of reviews conducted. 

8. Review of relationships with third-party contractors, specifically those with substantive 
exposure to government enforcement actions. 

9. Any correspondence from any regulatory agency charged with administering a federally, state, 
or locally- funded program received by any department of the agency shall be immediately 
copied and forwarded to the Compliance Director for review. 

10. Immediate notification of the Compliance Director of any visits, audits, investigations, or 
surveys by any federal, state, or county agency or authority. 

Individual Program Divisions may have specific monitoring requirements outlined in performance 
contracts with Health and Human Services, other regulatory bodies, or as established internally through 
other agency programs. 

In regard to IDD services, the IDD Division will develop measurements, monitoring plans, and 
improvement actions as needed for: 

• LIDDA authority functions (Intake and Eligibility, Service Coordination) 

• Access to, capacity of, and the improvement of LIDDA services; 

• Timeliness and accuracy of LIDDA data submission; 

• Actions related to responses to circumstances surrounding critical incident reports; 

• Actions related to the reduction of instances of abuse, neglect or exploitation of individuals 
served; 

• Assessing and improving the rights restriction review process. 

The Compliance Plan is also reviewed by The Harris Center Board of Trustees and posted on THE 
HARRIS CENTER website: www.TheHarrisCenter.org. 

Element 7: Responding to Detected Offenses and Developing Corrective Action 
Initiatives 

A. Violations: 

1. Common compliance violations that can result in disciplinary action. 

2. Involvement in non-compliant conduct and/or activity; 

3. Failure to report known non-compliant conduct and/or activity. 

4. Supervisors who were aware or should have been aware of non-compliant conduct or activity 

LD.P.1 Compliance Plan FY26. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19107920/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 17 of 28

Page 89 of 134

http://www.theharriscenter.org/


and failed to correct deficiencies. 

B. Investigations and Reporting Procedures: 

All Compliance related violations will be assessed by The Harris Center's Compliance Department to 
determine whether a violation of the compliance plan actually exists. When a violation has been 
confirmed, Compliance will then have to determine if the conduct was due to negligence and was 
inadvertent or if it was willful and done knowingly. All personnel disciplinary actions taken related to 
compliance violations are at the discretion of the Personnel's direct Supervisor, and/or designee, with 
assistance from the Human Resources Director. 

1. Negligence and/or Inadvertent Conduct or Gross Negligence : If it is determined after 
investigation that non-compliant conduct occurred because of negligence, inadvertence or 
Gross Negligence, the matter shall be handled by the appropriate supervisor, who shall inform 
The Harris Center's Compliance Director of the Corrective action taken to address the problem. 
All final Corrective Actions shall be documented in the employee electronic personnel file. 

2. Any individual dissatisfied with the corrective action related to the imposition of a 
Performance Improvement Plan, Probation or termination may appeal the decision within five 
(5) business days from the date of imposition of the corrective action. 

C. Corrective Actions: 

Appropriate corrective action measures shall be determined on a case-by-case basis. Disciplinary action, 
if required, and in the support of The Harris Center's Compliance Program, will be managed in 
accordance with the Harris Center disciplinary policies and procedures. . 

D. Audit Performance Escalation Pathway: 

See attached “Audit Performance Escalation Pathway for Programs Failing to Meet Compliance 
Thresholds” for full detail. 

The Harris Center requires all programs to maintain a minimum audit score of 95%. When programs fall 
below this standard, a structured Audit Performance Escalation Pathway is initiated to ensure timely 
corrective action, increased oversight, and accountability. The escalation model consists of four 
progressive levels based on audit performance, repeated deficiencies, and the severity of 
noncompliance. 

Level 1 – Initial Non‑Compliance 
Triggered by the first audit score below 95%. Programs must develop a Corrective Action Plan (CAP) 
within 7 business days, implement corrective steps within 90 days, and demonstrate progress through a 
follow‑up audit. Program leadership is responsible for training, resource allocation, and remediation 
efforts. 

Level 2 – Repeat Non‑Compliance 
Initiated when a second audit fails within the audit cycle or when a Level 1 CAP follow‑up review is 
unsuccessful. Programs enter Heightened Monitoring, develop a structured Performance Improvement 
Plan (PIP), undergo targeted training and weekly/biweekly reviews, and are subject to monthly focused 

LD.P.1 Compliance Plan FY26. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19107920/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 18 of 28

Page 90 of 134



audits for at least six months. Leadership involvement and accountability increase significantly. 

Level 3 – Sustained or High-Risk Non‑Compliance 
Applies when programs fail three audits within 12 months, do not meet Level 2 improvement 
benchmarks, or demonstrate systemic/high‑risk deficiencies (e.g., billing integrity, safety, regulatory 
issues). Programs are placed under Comprehensive Compliance Oversight (CCO) for 6–12 months and 
must complete an executive‑level Remediation and Accountability Plan with CEO, General Counsel, and 
Audit Committee review. 

Level 4 – Critical or Willful Non‑Compliance 
Reserved for persistent failures, negligence, or conduct that places the agency at financial, legal, or 
operational risk. Consequences may include suspension of billing privileges, program restructuring or 
closure, leadership or personnel changes, HR disciplinary action, and required reporting to external 
regulatory bodies. 

Return to Compliance 

Programs may return to routine monitoring after achieving: 

• Two consecutive audits scoring ≥95% 

• Verified completion of all CAP/PIP requirements 

• Evidence of sustained corrective practices 

• No new significant compliance issues 

Documentation & Reporting 

Compliance maintains all records related to escalations, CAPs, PIPs, audits, and monitoring activities. 
Escalation status is reported quarterly to General Counsel and semi‑annually to the Audit Committee. 
Program leadership must ensure that all documentation is submitted to the designated compliance 
repository in a timely manner. 

V. The Harris Center's Compliance Program 
Effectiveness. 
1. Code of Conduct 

This Code of Conduct has been adopted by the Board of Directors of The Harris Center to provide 
guidance to The Harris Center's employees as it relates toregarding documentation, billing, and other 
claims -related issues. This code adheres to and takes the stanceaffirms that adherence withto The 
Harris Center's mission, vision, and core values is required of all staff at all times. 

The principles set forth in this Code of Conduct shall be distributed to all employees upon hire and 
periodically thereafter. All employees are responsible to ensurefor ensuring that their behavior and 
activities are consistent with this code and understand that failure to maintain this codedo so may result 
in termination of employment. 

As used in this Code of Conduct, the terms "officer," "director," "employee," and "volunteer" include any 

LD.P.1 Compliance Plan FY26. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19107920/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 19 of 28

Page 91 of 134



persons who fill such roles or provide services on behalf of The Harris Center or any of its divisions, 
subsidiaries, or operating or business units. 

Principle 1 – Legal Compliance 

The Harris Center will strive to ensure all activityactivities by or on behalf of the agency compliescomply 
with all applicable laws. 

Principle 2 – Business Ethics 

In furtherance of The Harris Center's commitment to the highest standards of business ethics and 
integrity, employees will accurately and honestly represent The Harris Center and will not engage in any 
activity or scheme intended to defraud anyone of money, property, or honest services. 

Principle 3 – Confidentiality 

THE HARRIS CENTER employees shall strive to maintain the confidentiality of patients and other 
confidential information in accordance with applicable legal and ethical standards. 

Principle 4 – Conflicts of interest 

Directors, officers, committee members, and all employees owe a duty of loyalty to the organization. 
Persons holding such positions may not use their positions to profit personally or to assist others in 
profiting in any way at the expense of the organization. 

Principle 5 – Business Relationships 

Business transactions with vendors, contractors, and other third parties shall be transacted free from 
offers or solicitation of gifts and favors or other improper inducements in exchange for influence or 
assistance in a transaction. 

Principle 6 – Protection of Assets 

All employees will strive to preserve and protect THE HARRIS CENTERCenter's assets by making prudent 
and effective use of THE HARRIS CENTERCenter's resources and properly and accurately reporting its 
financial condition. 

Employee Code of Conduct 
Quality of Care & Service 

We are committed to providing high -quality, caring, ethical, and professionally competent services to our 
clients and their families, our community partners/stakeholders, and our community service areas. 

We: 

• Apply sound behavioral health principles in our daily work and activities with an emphasis on 
evidence-based treatment. 

• Participate in activities that promote quality improvement and bring deficiencies to the 
attention of those who can assess and resolve the problems. 

• Treat clients and constituents in a manner appropriate to their backgroundbackgrounds, 

LD.P.1 Compliance Plan FY26. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19107920/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 20 of 28

Page 92 of 134



culturecultures, religionreligions, and heritage and are, and be mindful of individual differences. 

• Do not deny care based on race, gender, gender identity, religion, creed, color, economic status, 
sexual orientation, disability, marital status, age, national origin, or any other discriminatory 
characteristic. 

• Will promote the rights of the consumers to be free from humiliation and the right to informed 
consent or, refusal, or expression of choice regarding the composition of the service delivery 
team. 

• Ensure that the source or amount of payment for client services shall not affect the quality of 
care or service. 

• Provide clients with the information needed to make fully informed decisions. Clients have the 
right to receive information about The Harris Center's services, policies, procedures, fees, 
network provider list, and confidentiality requirements. Clients are informed of their treatment 
options, goals, and expected length of care. 

• Strive to enhance clients' capacity and opportunity to change and address their own needs by 
including them in developing treatment goals and plans to every extent possible. 

• Provide competent services within the boundaries of our education, training, license, 
certification, consultation received, experience, or other relevant professional experience. 

• Document all client service encounters in The Harris Center record accurately, completely, and 
following established documentation guidelines. 

Workplace Conduct 

We ensure our work environment supports high standards of professional behavior and promotes 
dignity, integrity, fairness, respect, teamwork and safety. 

We: 

• Respect the basic rights, dignity, and values of clients and staff, including, but not limited to, 
race, gender, gender identity, religion, creed, color, economic status, sexual orientation, 
disability, marital status, age, national origin, or any other discriminatory characteristic. 

• Use work hours to accomplish The Harris Center duties and assignments in a productive and 
professional manner. 

• Promote a positive image for The Harris Center, its employees and services. 

• Take personal responsibility for performing duties in good faith and exercise sound judgment. 

• Strive for positive and cooperative relationships within The Harris Center by treating our 
colleagues with respect, dignity, fairness, and courtesy. 

• Maintain a working environment free from all forms of harassment or intimidation – verbal, 
sexual, or otherwise. The Harris Center has zero tolerance for discriminatory treatment, abuse, 
violence or intimidation. 

• Comply with work and safety policies in accordance with The Harris Center policies, including, 
but not limited to, the mandated non-smoking/tobacco -free policy in and near The Harris 
Center buildings and vehicles, as well as the drug and alcohol policy prohibiting the use of 
alcohol or illicit drugs in the workplace. Over-the-counter medications and prescriptions 
ordered by a physician are used in the dosage and frequency described on the medication or 
package insert unless specified otherwise by the prescribing physician. Follow The Harris 

LD.P.1 Compliance Plan FY26. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19107920/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 21 of 28

Page 93 of 134



Center, weapons policy and our zero-tolerance policy for violence or harassment in the 
workplace. 

• Cooperate in achieving The Harris Center commitment to maintain a work environment that 
promotes the prevention, to detection, reporting and resolution of conduct that may not 
conform to codes of ethics and standards of The Harris Center and our respective 
professions. 

• Require staff who oversee or supervise the work of others to 1) provide clear direction about 
what is expected of staff regarding both job responsibilities and workplace conduct and 2) 
ensure no employee is required to compromise their professional integrity, standards, 
judgment or objectivity in the performance of their duties. 

Staff-Client Relationships 

We are committed to providing services by qualified staff that is compassionate, courteous, culturally 
competent, fiscally responsible, ethical and effective. 

We: 

• Conduct ourselves in a manner that shows concern and respect for theclients' dignity of 
clients, treating them in a manner appropriate toappropriately based on their background, 
culture, religion, and heritage. The welfare of clients and their families is placed above all other 
concerns unless, except when one's safety is threatened. 

• Do not take unfair advantage of the professional relationship with current or former clients or 
exploit them to further our personal, religious, political, social, or business interests. Dual or 
multiple relationships include when the client is also a student, friend, family member, 
employee or business associate of the therapist/service provider. Because of the risk of 
exploitation or potential harm to the client, such relationships are prohibited for two (2) years 
after a client is discharged from services or the date of the last professional contact or per 
licensing standards. 

• Understand that in the course of events, there is the possibility that a dual relationship may be 
discovered and/or is unavoidable. In such instances, the details of the relationship and any 
potential conflicts will be immediately disclosed to the supervisor for guidance regarding the 
conflict. We are responsible to setfor setting clear, appropriate, and culturally sensitive 
boundaries. 

• Respect clients' right to privacy and protect clients'their confidentiality by adhering to all rules, 
regulations, professional practices and, and privacy and confidentiality standards of privacy 
and confidentiality. We avoid discussing confidential information in public or semipublic areas 
such as hallways, front/reception desk, waiting rooms, rest roomsrestrooms, elevators, and 
restaurants. Confidential information is never used for personal benefit or for the benefit of any 
other person, including other employees, as the confidential information requiresunless there 
is a need to know. 

• Do not knowingly disclose confidential client information to others without the express written 
consent of the client or pursuant to a court order and in accordance with others without 
express written consent of the client or pursuant to court order and in accordance with the 
applicable law. Information should be shared only be shared on a need-to-know basis and 
under certain circumstances as allowablepermitted by Federal and State regulations. 

• Provide clients with reasonable access to their medical records followingin accordance with 

LD.P.1 Compliance Plan FY26. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19107920/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 22 of 28

Page 94 of 134



policy based onand regulations. Where there is concern a client's access to his/her record 
could cause misunderstanding or harm, clinical staff assist the client in interpreting the 
records as explained in agency policies, procedures, and rights handbooks 

• Do not involve clients, families, or other service providers in your/other staff criticism or 
controversy related to The Harris Center's internal policies, practices, staff actions, or 
personalities. In no case is this information ever part of the medical record. 

Adhering to Laws and Regulations 

We follow the letter and the spirit of applicable laws and regulations and conduct business ethically and 
honestly. 

We: 

• Comply with all applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards, and other requirements of the 
federal, state, and local governments. We comply with all federal mental health care and 
alcohol and drug program statutes, regulations, and guidelines governing mental health care 
and alcohol and drug programs. 

• Do not engage in any practice that involves unethical or illegal activity. If unsure of the 
meaning or application of a statute, regulation, policy, or legality, we seek guidance from our 
supervisor or the Compliance Officer. 

• Strive to ensure no false, fraudulent, inaccurate, or fictitious claims for payment or 
reimbursement of any kind are submitted. These claims include, but are not limited to 
timecards, time cards/reports, travel claims, Progress Notes, claims, and cost reports. 

• Take reasonable precautionprecautions to ensure billing and coding of claims are prepared 
and submitted accurately, timely, and are consistent with federal, state, and local laws and 
regulations, as well as The Harris Center policies and procedures and/or agreements with third
-party payers. This includes federal health care program regulations and procedures, oras well 
as instructions otherwise communicated by regulatory agencies such as the Centers for 
Medicare and& Medicaid Services or their agents. 

• Bill only for eligible services actually rendered, reported to the minute, and fully documented. 
When services must be coded, we use only billing codes that accurately describe the services 
provided. 

• Act promptly to investigate and correct problems if errors in claims or billings are discovered. 
Alert your Supervisor and the Compliance Officer to these issues/problems. 

• Voluntarily disclose to third -party law enforcement or regulatory agencies violations of law, 
regulations, or standards during investigations and audits, and audits where appropriate and 
legally required. 

• Do not intimidate, threaten, coerce, discriminate against, noror take other retaliatory action 
against any client, constituent, contractor, or employee who exercises the right to file a 
complaint or who participates in an investigation or proceeding relative to a complaint. 

Conflicts of Interest 

We avoid conflicts of interest or the appearance of conflicts between our own personal interests and the 
best interests of THE HARRIS CENTER. 

LD.P.1 Compliance Plan FY26. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19107920/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 23 of 28

Page 95 of 134



We: 

• Avoid commitments that interfere with our ability to properly perform our duties for The Harris 
Center or any activity that conflicts with the known interests of The Harris Center, its clients, or 
constituents. Examples include but are not limited to: 1) the use of The Harris Center's time, 
facilities, or equipment for private gain or advantage for oneself or another; and 2) the 
solicitation of future employment with a company doing business with The Harris Center over 
which the employee has some control or influence in his/her official capacity. 

• Report any potential conflicts of interest for ourselves or others to the appropriate supervisor, 
manager, Compliance Director, or the General Counsel. 

• Prohibit individual staff in private practice from referring clients to themselves or actively 
engaging in any relationship with other staff to promote referrals to their private practices. 

• Do not accept or provide any gift of more than nominal value or any hospitality or 
entertainment, which, because of its source or value, might influence independent judgment in 
transactions involving The Harris Center, including lunches. 

• You may not engage in outside employment or activities that conflict with your duties and 
responsibilities to The Harris Center. The Outside Employment Policy requires each employee 
to notify, provide relevant information, and receive approval from the proper authority before 
accepting employment with another employer. 

• Voluntarily disclose to your immediate supervisor, the Compliance Director, or the General 
Counsel any financial interest, official position, ownership interest or any other relationship an 
employee or member of his/her immediate family has with The Harris Center vendors, 
contractors or referral sources. 

External Relationships 

We continually strive to honor, uphold and promote the public trust in all our activities. 

We: 

• Carry out our duties in a way that encourages participation and access to The Harris Center 
programs and resources and that enhances The Harris Center standing in the community. 

• Are honest and forthright in providing information to clients, vendors, payers, other agencies 
and the community within the constraints of privacy and confidentiality requirements and as 
allowed by law. 

• Seek helpful and cooperative relationships with external agencies and community groups to 
enhance services and resources available to the public. 

• Ensure all legally required reports or other information provided to any external entity including 
federal, state and local government agencies are accurate and submitted timely. Only 
authorized staff or their official designee sign reports requiring certifying signatures. 

Records Maintenance 

We are conscientious in maintaining accurate and appropriate records in accordance with all federal, 
state and local laws and regulations and THE HARRIS CENTER policies and procedures. 

We: 

LD.P.1 Compliance Plan FY26. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19107920/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 24 of 28

Page 96 of 134



• Maintain complete, accurate, timely and thorough client and administrative records. 

• Follow all privacy and security policies and procedures to the letter to guard again internal and 
external privacy breaches. 

• Abide by professional, legal and ethical codes governing confidentiality to ensure all records in 
any medium and at all service locations are maintained in a manner to protect employee and 
client privacy rights and to provide factual information. 

• Maintain, train and monitor adherence to documentation and record keeping guidelines 
following legal requirements. Records are maintained for at least the minimum period required 
by laws and regulations. 

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR CONTRACTORS 
The Harris Center for Mental Health & IDD is firmly committed to full compliance with all federal, state, 
and local laws, regulations, rules and guidelines that apply to the provision and payment of behavioral 
health services. The Harris Center's contractors and the manner in which they conduct themselves are a 
vital part of this commitment. 

To ensure contractors share in The Harris Center dedication to honesty, fairness and integrity, The Harris 
Center contractors and their employees are required to abide by The Harris Center Code of Ethical 
Conduct for Contractors as a condition of contractual arrangement. 

This code is not intended to be an exhaustive list of all standards by which The Harris Center contractors 
are to be governed. Rather, its intent is to convey The Harris Center commitment to the high standards 
set for its contractors. All contractors are expected to perform their duties in good faith and in a manner 
reasonably believed to be in the best interest of The Harris Center and the public it serves. Contractor 
and its employees will: 

• Comply with all applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards, and other requirements of 
federal, state and local government. 

• Conduct themselves with honesty, integrity, courtesy and fairness in their professional 
dealings related to their contract with The Harris Center and avoid any conduct that could 
reasonably be expected to reflect adversely upon the integrity of The Harris Center. 

• Treat all The Harris Center employees, consumers, and other contractors fairly and with 
respect. 

• Not engage in any activity in violation of The Harris Center Compliance Program, nor engage in 
any other conduct which violates any federal, state, or local law, regulation, rule or guideline. 

• Take precautions to ensure claims are prepared and submitted accurately, timely and are 
consistent with federal, state and local law, regulation, rule or guideline. 

• Ensure no false, fraudulent, inaccurate or fictitious claims for payment or reimbursement of 
any kind are submitted. 

• Bill only for eligible services actually rendered and fully documented. Use billing codes that 
accurately describe the services provided. 

• Act promptly to investigate when errors in claims or billing are discovered, make needed 
corrections and notify The Harris Center of these incidents. 

LD.P.1 Compliance Plan FY26. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19107920/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 25 of 28

Page 97 of 134



• Promptly report to The Harris Center Compliance Officer any activity involving financial 
improprieties as it relates to The Harris Center contract, past or present. 

• Promptly report to The Harris Center Compliance Director any suspected violation of this Code 
of Ethical Conduct for Contractors by The Harris Center employees or other The Harris Center 
contractors. 

• Consult with The Harris Center Compliance Director if uncertain about any requirements of the 
Code of Ethical Conduct for Contractors or other applicable law, regulation, rule or guideline, 
privacy, confidentiality and access. 

2. Regular Review of Compliance Program Effectiveness 

The Harris Center's Compliance Plan is intended to be flexible and readily adaptable to changes in 
regulatory requirements and in the health care system as a whole. This plan shall be reviewed as often 
as necessary and modified/updated at least annually. This The Harris Center's Compliance Plan shall be 
certified by Thethe Harris Center's CEO upon implementation and whenupon the occurrence of major 
revisions are required. 

VI. SELF-REPORTING. 
Regulations require that THE HARRIS CENTERThe Harris Center self-disclose certain errors we discover, 
and refund identified over-payments, or THE HARRIS CENTERThe Harris Center can be held accountable 
for intentional fraud. The regulations limit response time to sixty (60) days after the issue is identified, so 
timely reporting of errors is critical. Any errors or over-payments discovered as a result of the ongoing 
auditing and monitoring will result in the prompt return of any overpayment, with appropriate 
documentation and a thorough explanation of the reason for the refund, of which will be reported to the 
CEO. 

If credible evidence of misconduct is discovered and, after reasonable inquiry, it is determined that this 
misconduct may have violated criminal, civil, or administrative law, The Harris Center's legal office/
counsel should be contacted promptly to determine self-reporting requirements. 

VII. CONCLUSION. 
Compliance is everyone's responsibility. Ignorance of the rules is not a defense for non-compliance in the 
eyes of the government. The rules are widely published and available, and we have a responsibility to 
understand and follow them to the best of our ability. Only with the commitment of all The Harris 
Center's personnel and affiliates can we ensure our compliance with the various laws, standards, and 
regulations that govern us. Please share your commitment to compliance with those around you and do 
not hesitate to contact your supervisor or the compliance department with questions – they are there to 
assist you with understanding the rules and providing guidance on their implementation. 

The compliance plan, as presented in this document, establishes a framework for effective billing and 
legal compliance by The Harris Center. It does not identify all of The Harris Center's substantive 
programs and policies that are designed to achieve compliance. The Harris Center works diligently to 
ensure the presence of and adherence to policies and procedures. Policies and procedures also help to 
shape the agency's overall commitment to compliance and the enforcement thereof. 

LD.P.1 Compliance Plan FY26. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19107920/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 26 of 28

Page 98 of 134



ATTESTATION 
Where applicable to my role, 

I will: 

• Respect the basic rights and values of all staff, clients and volunteers treating everyone with 
consideration, patience, dignity, courtesy and integrity. 

• Support The Harris Center efforts to provide culturally competent services. 

• Promote a positive image for The Harris Center. 

• Be honest and fair following the letter and spirit of applicable laws. 

• Appreciate that staff have a responsibility to care for their clients. This duty cannot be 
delegated or transferred to others. 

• Acknowledge that the CEO/Executive Director is the only OFFICIAL spokesperson for The 
Harris Center. 

• Not bind The Harris Center to any legal or contractual obligations by offering assurances either 
verbally or in writing. 

• Observe strict confidentiality with respect to all client information and any other information 
that is confidential to The Harris Center gained through participation at The Harris Center. 

• Accept and follow directions from the Director and job supervisor seeking guidance through 
clarification as needed. 

• I will familiarize myself with The Harris Center policies and procedures as required to carry out 
my assignments. 

• Take personal responsibility for performing duties in good faith, strive for cooperation and 
teamwork, and exercise sound judgment. 

• Comply with work and safety practices avoiding unnecessary risks, apply reasonable 
instructions given by supervisors and report any hazard or hazardous practice in the 
workplace. 

• Not smoke or use tobacco products (except on breaks) or be under the influence of alcohol or 
illegal drugs when on the job/assignment. 

• Report any problems as they arise to the job supervisor including incidents, injury, suspected 
or known unethical or illegal conduct. 

• Avoid waste or extravagance and make proper use of The Harris Center resources. This 
includes the fax machines, the computer, the copier, office supplies, etc. 

• Respect clients' right to privacy and protect clients' confidentiality by adhering to all rules, 
regulations, and professional practices and standards of privacy and confidentiality. Avoid 
discussing confidential information in public or semi-public areas such as hallways, front/
reception desk, waiting rooms, rest rooms, elevators and restaurants. Confidential information 
is never used for personal benefit or the benefit of any other person, including other 
employees. The Consumer's record/chart and treatment is confidential information is on a 
need to know. 

LD.P.1 Compliance Plan FY26. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19107920/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 27 of 28

Page 99 of 134



Attachments 

  Audit Performance Escalation Pathway_.pdf 

  External Review Procedure.docx 

  FY2026 Audit Schedule.pptx 

Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Wayne Young: Exec 02/2026 

2nd Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 01/2026 

1st Legal Review Bijul Enaohwo 10/2025 

Compliance Director Review Demetria Luckett 10/2025 

Compliance 1st Review Christopher Webb: Audit 10/2025 

Initial Christopher Webb: Audit 10/2025 

LD.P.1 Compliance Plan FY26. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19107920/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 28 of 28

Page 100 of 134

https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/public/fff6ac02a41a99abdbb6d02b06b68717cde999b54ccad9d6b004bfad/Audit%20Performance%20Escalation%20Pathway_.pdf
https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/public/5987ac012fda43d1f623045f128cc0170b2f6ac758b09fbfe7d8833d/External%20Review%20Procedure.docx
https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/public/0ae23adc93b88999fe17e1967a28b05bd970a04de1eb4348d89e4128/FY2026%20Audit%20Schedule.pptx


EXHIBIT G-25



Status Pending PolicyStat ID 18412535 

Origination 08/2024 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 02/2026 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Lauren Kainer: 
RPh 

Area Medical Services 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

MED.PHA.A.13 Drug Diversion Reporting and Response 
Policy 

1. PURPOSE: 
The purpose of this policy is to properlyestablish a standardized process to identify, report, and 
investigate suspected drug diversion. Examples of drugDrug diversion may include, but areis not limited 
to theft of medication theft, using or taking possession or use of a medication without a valid order or 
prescription, forging or inappropriately modifying a prescription and using or taking, and unauthorized 
use or possession of medication waste. 

2. POLICY: 
It is the policy of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD to provide a systematic, coordinated, and 
timely approach to identificationidentifying, reporting and investigation of, and investigating suspected 
drug diversion byinvolving The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD employees, patients, and visitors. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD employees, patients and visitors. 

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference 
only): 
Pharmacy and Unit Medication/Drug Inventory PolicyMED.PHA.A.4 - Pharmacy and Unit Medication/
Drug Inventory 

MED.PHA.A.13 Drug Diversion Reporting and Response Policy. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18412535/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 3

Page 101 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4196198
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4196198
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14490077/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14490077/latest


Pharmacy Operations and Prescription Processing Policy 

5. PROCEDURE: 
Pharmacy Texas PMP (Prescription Monitoring Program) Review Procedure 

MED.PHA.B.5.34 Pharmacy Controlled Substances Procedure 

Pharmacy Prescription Forgery ProcedureMED.PHA.B.5.10 Pharmacy Drug Destruction Procedure 

Pharmacy Security ProcedureMED.PHA.B.40 Pharmacy Guide to Prescription Fraud & Forgery Procedure 

Pharmacy Drug Destruction ProcedureMED.PHA.B.5.18 Pharmacy Security Procedure 

Pharmacy Controlled Substances ProcedureMED.PHA.B.5.32 Pharmacy Texas PMP (Prescription 
Monitoring Program) Review Procedure 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 
USDOJ DEA Diversion Control Division Pharmacists Manual Appendix D 

EO-DEA154R1, 

DEA-DC-046R1 

Code of Federal Regulations 21 Part 1300 and CFR §1306.04 (a) 

Controlled Substance Act 21 U.S.C Parts 802 & 803 §§827, 842, 958(d) 

Texas State Board of Pharmacy Rules and Regulations DEA Pharmacist Manual, Section IX 

Definitions Relating to Controlled Substances, 21 C.F.R. § 1300. 

Purpose of Issue of Prescription, 21 C.F.R. §1306.04 (2025). 

Definitions, 21 U.S.C. §802 (2025). 

Records and Reports of Registrants, 21 U.S.C. §827 (2022). 

Order Forms, 21 U.S.C. §828 (2010). 

Penalties for Simple Possession, 21 U.S.C. §844 (2010). 

CARF Section 2E 

Drug Enforcement Administration Pharmacist's Manual 

Inventory Requirements, 22 Tex. Admin. Code § 291.17 (2025). 

TexasRecords, 6 Tex. Health & Safety Code §481.067, §481 (2016).074 and § 481.075 

The Controlled Substances Act, DEA United States Drug Enforcement 
Administration.https://www.dea.gov/ drug-in formation/csa 

MED.PHA.A.13 Drug Diversion Reporting and Response Policy. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18412535/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 3

Page 102 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14784773/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14308134/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/15735558/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/12595385/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/12595385/latest
http://www.dea.gov/


Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO/Board Approval Wayne Young: Exec 02/2026 

Legal 2nd Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 01/2026 

Legal 1st Review Bijul Enaohwo 12/2025 

Compliance Director Demetria Luckett 12/2025 

Pharmacy and Therapeutic 
Committee 

Holly Cumbie: RPh 11/2025 

CMO Review Luming Li: Chief Medical Ofcr 
(1101 1817) 

11/2025 

Pharmacy Department Review Lauren Kainer: RPh 11/2025 

Initial Lauren Kainer: RPh 11/2025 

Texas Administrative Code §291.17 

The Harris Center's Policy and Procedure Handbook CARF Section 2E 

Prescriptions, 6 Tex. Health & Safety Code §481.074 (2019). 

Schedule II Prescriptions, 6 Tex. Health & Safety Code § 481.075 (2019). 

MED.PHA.A.13 Drug Diversion Reporting and Response Policy. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18412535/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 3 of 3

Page 103 of 134



EXHIBIT G-26



Status Pending PolicyStat ID 18380953 

Origination 07/2008 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 10/2025 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Lauren Kainer: 
RPh 

Area Medical Services 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

MED.PHA.A.4 - Pharmacy and Unit Medication/Drug 
Inventory 

1. PURPOSE: 
ToThe purpose of this policy is to establish a uniform policy tostandardized process to ensure proper 
control and account for, accountability, and documentation of all medications received, dispensed, and 
destroyed by the pharmacyThe Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The Harris Center) pharmacies. 

2. POLICY 
It is the policy of The Harris Center to account for stock supplies of prescription drugs and at a 
minimum, conduct inventory twice per year. The Harris Center pharmacies shall maintain records of all 
pharmacy transactions in accordance with legal requirements. In order to control and account for all 
medication, these records shall include documentation of the receipt and, delivery, dispensing, and 
destruction of prescription drugs as well as those dispensed. 

The Harris Center units may maintain stock supplies of medications for consumer use as deemed 
appropriate by The Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee. Any medication stocked by a unit will be the 
responsibility of the Unit's Lead Psychiatrist. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE 
All Harris Center mental health and IDD service sites, clinics, treatment programs, residential care 
programs and pharmacies. 

MED.PHA.A.4 - Pharmacy and Unit Medication/Drug Inventory. Retrieved 01/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18380953/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 3

Page 104 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4196198
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4196198
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470


Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO/Board Approval Wayne Young: Exec 01/2026 

4. PROCEDURES 
A. Clinic Pharmacies Inventory (AMH) 

B. Clinic Nurses' Station Inventory (AMH) C. IDD Residential Units' Inventory 

MED.PHA.B.5.34 Pharmacy Controlled Substances Procedure 

MED.PHA.B.9 Pharmacy PAP Haldol Injection Procedure 

MED.PHA.B.5.26 Multi Dose Vials Procedure 

5. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS: 
Clinic Pharmacies Inventory (AMH) 

Clinic Nurses' Station Inventory (AMH) 

IDD Residential Units' Inventory 

MED.PHA.A.2 Medication Storage, Preparation, and Administration Areas 

6. REFERENCES/RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 

• Controlled Substances Act, 21 U.S.C. §§827, 842, 958(d) 

• Tex. Controlled Substances Act, Tex. Health & Safety Code §481.067 

• Pharmacies-AII Classes of Pharmacies-lnventory Requirements, 22 Tex. Admin. Code §291.17 

• The Harris Center's Policy and Procedure Handbook CARF Section 2E 

CARF Section 2E 

Controlled Substances Act, 21 U.S.C. §§827, 842 

Pharmacies-AII Classes of Pharmacies-lnventory Requirements, 22 Tex. Admin. Code §291.17 (2019) 

Tex. Controlled Substances Act, Tex. Health & Safety Code §481.067 (2016) 

MED.PHA.A.4 - Pharmacy and Unit Medication/Drug Inventory. Retrieved 01/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18380953/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 3

Page 105 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14784773/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13735567/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/15922177/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11650547/latest


Legal 2nd Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 12/2025 

Legal 1st Review Bijul Enaohwo 10/2025 

Compliance Director Demetria Luckett 10/2025 

Pharmacy and Therapeutic 
Committee 

Holly Cumbie: RPh 10/2025 

CMO Review Luming Li: Chief Medical Ofcr 
(1101 1817) 

08/2025 

Pharmacy Department Review Lauren Kainer: RPh 08/2025 

Initial Lauren Kainer: RPh 08/2025 

MED.PHA.A.4 - Pharmacy and Unit Medication/Drug Inventory. Retrieved 01/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18380953/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 3 of 3

Page 106 of 134



EXHIBIT G-27



Status Pending PolicyStat ID 18380077 

Origination 06/2008 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 02/2026 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Lauren Kainer: 
RPh 

Area Medical Services 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

MED.PHA.A.5 Pharmacy Services and Outpatient 
Prescriptions Policy 

1. PURPOSE: 
To provide pharmaceutical services to thepersons served by The Harris Center patients via for Mental 
Health and IDD (The Harris Center or contractual pharmacies), either directly through The Harris Center 
pharmacy or through its contracted pharmacy providers. 

2. POLICY: 
It is the goal of The Harris Center to ensure all consumerspersons served in need of "all medications" or 
"psychoactive and other medications" receive those medications. To this end, The Harris Center shall 
maintain pharmacy services, which will be available either at The Harris Center program sites or through 
contractual agreements. The Harris Center Pharmacies shall be licensed by the Texas State Board of 
Pharmacy and shall operate in accordance with all applicable state and federal laws. A licensed 
pharmacist will staff The Harris Center Pharmacies. Medication prescribed by an Agencyagency or 
contract prescriber will be provided to the consumer at a cost based on the consumer's ability to pay. 

The Harris Center pharmacy program will primarily dispense prescriptions written by The Harris Center 
prescribers or contractual prescribers based onin accordance with the agency's established formulary. 
The Harris Center Formulary(s)Pharmacy is also authorized to dispense prescriptions issued by external 
prescribers, as well as non-formulary medications, when such dispensing is clinically appropriate and in 
accordance with agency policy and procedures. 

MED.PHA.A.5 Pharmacy Services and Outpatient Prescriptions Policy. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18380077/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 3

Page 107 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4196198
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4196198
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470


3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
The Harris Center Pharmacies and contracted pharmacies. 

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference 
only): 
The Harris Center Fee Manual 

Harris Center Prescription Form PHAR: 2.001 

ACC.A.11 Financial Assessment 

5. PROCEDURES: 
Pharmacy Services and Outpatient Prescription Purchase Plan 

MED.PHA. B.52 Pharmacy 2nd Generation Antipsychotic LAI Clinical Criteria 

MED.PHA.B.15 Pharmacy Early Prescription Refill Procedure 

MED.PHA.B.25 Pharmacy External Provider Prescription Procedure 

MED.PHA.B.5.25 Pharmacy Formulary Development 

MED.PHA.B.5.30 Pharmacy Mailing Prescriptions to Patients 

MED.PHA.B.9 Pharmacy PAP Haldol Injection Procedure 

MED.PHA.B.5 Pharmacy Services and Outpatient Prescription Procedure 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 
General Provisions. Pharmacy and Pharmacists, Title 3. Tex. Occ. Code, Subtitle J, Chapters 551-569 

Administrative Practice and Procedures. Title 22. Tex. Admin. Code, Chapters 281-315 

Texas Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act. Title 6. Tex. Health & Safety Code, Chapters 431-486 

Texas State Board of Pharmacy, 22 Tex. Admin. Code §§ 281-315. 

CARF Section 2E 

General Provisions Pharmacy and Pharmacists, 3. Tex. Occ. Code § 551. 

Practice by License Holder Pharmacy and Pharmacists, 3. Tex. Occ. Code §§ 562.001 - 561.005. 

Prescription Requirements; Delegation of Administration and Provision of Dangerous Drugs, 3 Tex. Occ. 
Code §§ 563.001- 563.054. 

MED.PHA.A.5 Pharmacy Services and Outpatient Prescriptions Policy. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18380077/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 3

Page 108 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/17150387/latest/
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13592843/latest/
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/15664075/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/15393009/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14205214/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/15910861/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13740010/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13735567/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/17042870/latest/


Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO/Board Approval Wayne Young: Exec 02/2026 

Legal 2nd Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 01/2026 

Legal 1st Review Bijul Enaohwo 12/2025 

Compliance Director Demetria Luckett 12/2025 

Pharmacy and Therapeutic 
Committee 

Holly Cumbie: RPh 11/2025 

CMO Review Luming Li: Chief Medical Ofcr 
(1101 1817) 

11/2025 

Pharmacy Department Review Lauren Kainer: RPh 11/2025 

Initial Lauren Kainer: RPh 11/2025 

Texas Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, 6 Tex. Health & Safety Code § 431. 

MED.PHA.A.5 Pharmacy Services and Outpatient Prescriptions Policy. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18380077/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 3 of 3

Page 109 of 134



EXHIBIT G-28



Status Pending PolicyStat ID 18489362 

Origination 09/2024 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 02/2026 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Lauren Kainer: 
RPh 

Area Medical Services 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

MED.PHA.A.38 Prescription Monitoring Program (PMP) 
Policy 

1. PURPOSE: 
The purpose of this policy is to ensure that all applicable employees at The Harris Center for Mental 
Health and IDD (The Harris Center) evaluate the appropriate dispensing of controlled substances to 
consumerspatients and report Texas Prescription Monitoring Program (Texas PMP) data. 

2. POLICY: 
Its it the Policy of theIt is the policy of The Harris Center to value the safety of all patients and to follow 
all legal requirements set forth by governing bodies. Before prescribing and dispensing certain 
medications, all applicable staff will check the Texas Prescription Monitoring Program (PMP), a 
statewide database that tracks prescription data of controlled substances and medications with misuse 
potential. These medications include opioids, benzodiazepines, barbiturates, stimulants, sedatives, and 
muscle relaxers. The Harris Center shall submit dispensing data for all required controlled substances to 
the Texas PMP in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
All individuals employed by the Harris Center with Prescribing Authorityprescribing authority including 
interns, externs, residents, and all pharmacy staff. 

MED.PHA.A.38 Prescription Monitoring Program (PMP) Policy. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18489362/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 3

Page 110 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4196198
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4196198
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470


4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference 
only): 
MED.PHA.A.5 Pharmacy Services and Outpatient Prescription Purchase Plan 

MED.PHA.A.5The Harris Center Professional Review Committee Policy 

MED.PHA.A.6 The Harris Center Pharmacy Peer Review Policy 

MED.PHA.A.13 Drug Diversion Reporting and Response Policy 

How to Register for TX PMP AWARE.docx How to Register for PMP AWARxE 

5. PROCEDURE: 
Pharmacy Texas PMP (Prescription Monitoring Program) Review ProcedureMED.PHA.B.38.Pharmacy 
Texas PMP (Prescription Monitoring Program) Review Procedures 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 
About - Texas Prescription Monitoring Program (txpmp.org) 

Texas State Board of Pharmacy Rules and Regulations DEA Pharmacist Manual, Section IX 

21 C.F.R. §1306.04 (2020) 

21 U.S.C. §802 (2025) 

Access Requirements, 22 Tex. Admin. Code § 315.15 (2021) 

Drug Enforcement Administration Pharmacist's Manual 

Pharmacy Responsibility - Electronic Reporting, 22 Tex. Admin. Code § 315.6 (2023) 

Prescriptions, 22 Tex. Admin. Code § 315.3 (2021) 

Professional Responsibility of Pharmacists, 22 Tex. Admin. Code § 291.29 (2022) 

Prescriptions, TexasTex. Health & Safety Code §481.074 (2019) 

Schedule II Prescriptions, TexasTex. Health & Safety Code §481.075 (2019) 

The Controlled Substances Act, DEA United States Drug Enforcement Administration. 
https://www.dea.gov/drug-information/csa 

Persons Entitled to Fill Prescriptions, 21 CFR §1306.04 (a) 

MED.PHA.A.38 Prescription Monitoring Program (PMP) Policy. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18489362/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 3

Page 111 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/12714275/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13574524/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/12680522/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/14996032/latest/
https://theharriscenter.sharepoint.com/:w:/r/sites/Harrisphere_Pharmacy/OrgDocs/Training%20Tools/How%20to%20Register%20for%20TX%20PMP%20AWARE.docx?d=w118d1912f75841609ab69f7ba5d38004&csf=1&web=1&e=qm3xbG
https://pmpawarxe.zendesk.com/hc/en-us/articles/26850914121107-How-to-Register-for-a-PMP-AWARxE-Account
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/12595385/approve
https://txpmp.org/about
https://www.dea.gov/drug-information/csa


Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO/Board Approval Wayne Young: Exec 02/2026 

Legal 2nd Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 01/2026 

Legal 1st Review Bijul Enaohwo 12/2025 

Compliance Director Demetria Luckett 12/2025 

Pharmacy and Therapeutic 
Committee 

Holly Cumbie: RPh 10/2025 

CMO Review Luming Li: Chief Medical Ofcr 
(1101 1817) 

09/2025 

Pharmacy Department Review Lauren Kainer: RPh 08/2025 

Initial Lauren Kainer: RPh 08/2025 

MED.PHA.A.38 Prescription Monitoring Program (PMP) Policy. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18489362/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 3 of 3

Page 112 of 134



EXHIBIT G-29



Status Pending PolicyStat ID 19152350 

Origination 02/2019 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 01/2026 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Lance Britt: Dir 

Area Assessment, 
Care & Continuity 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

ACC.A.4 Screening and Assessment for Mental Health, 
Substance Use and Intellectual and Development 

Disabilities (IDD) Services 

1. PURPOSE: 
The purpose of the admission policy is to have a uniform method and efficient guidelines to ensure 
consistency by providing a framework for operations for admitting clients into services and to identify 
individual needs to plan the most appropriate intervention. 

2. POLICY: 
It is the policy of The Harris Center For Mental Health and IDD (The Harris Center) that all individuals 
seeking services will be evaluated by credentialed and knowledgeable staff able to assess the specific 
needs of the persons served, trained in the use of applicable tools, tests or instruments prior to 
administration and be able to communicate with clients. The Harris Center strictly prohibits and does not 
discriminate against individuals accessing or receiving treatment services at The Harris Center because 
of race, color, religion, creed, national origin, ethnicity, sex (including gender, pregnancy, sexual 
orientation, and gender identity), age, disability, citizenship, genetic information or any other 
characteristic protected under applicable federal, state, or local law.  Individuals will be evaluated 
through a screening and assessment process designed to maximize opportunities for the client to gain 
access to The Harris Center programs and services.  If the client's needs are beyond the scope of 
services offered by The Harris Center, the client will be referred to an agency that can address the 
individual needs. Services will not be denied to individuals based on their ability to pay. The Harris Center 
encourages the involvement and participation of family, significant others, and caregivers in the recovery 

ACC.A.4 Screening and Assessment for Mental Health, Substance Use and Intellectual and Development Disabilities (IDD)
Services. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19152350/. Copyright © 2026 The
Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 3

Page 113 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195433
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195433
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81296
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81296
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470


process. Services are subject to all state standards for the provision of both voluntary and court-ordered 
services. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
This applies to all The Harris Center Programs/Units providing services. 

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS: 
• Demographic Form 

• Intake Questionnaire Form 

• Intake Assessment Form 

• Risk Assessment Form 

• Fee Assessment Form 

• Consumer Benefits Screening Form 

• Uniform Assessment/Diagnostic Interview/Diagnostic Form 

• Informed Consent, Notification of Client Rights, Notification of Right to Appeal a Decision Form 

• Deny or Involuntarily Terminate Services, Authorization for Release of Information (if needed), 
Telemedicine Consent, client orientation Form 

• Voter Registration Application Form 

• Additional SUD Forms: 

◦ Screening Form/ SUD Screening Form 

◦ SUD Consent and Orientation Form 

◦ Initial Discharge Form 

• Additional IDD Forms: 

◦ ICAP 

◦ Explanation of MR Services and Supports 

◦ Initial Identification of Preferences 

◦ HCS Interest List 

◦ Service Coordination Assessment 

◦ IDD Supplemental Diagnosis 

5. PROCEDURES: 
ACC.B.4 Screening and Assessment for Mental Health, Substance Use and Intellectual and Development 
Disabilities (IDD) Services 

ACC.A.4 Screening and Assessment for Mental Health, Substance Use and Intellectual and Development Disabilities (IDD)
Services. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19152350/. Copyright © 2026 The
Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 3

Page 114 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13592844/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/13592844/latest


Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 02/2026 

Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 01/2026 

Compliance Director Review Demetria Luckett 12/2025 

1st Legal Review Bijul Enaohwo 11/2025 

Departmental Review Keena Pace: Exec 11/2025 

Compliance 1st Review Christopher Webb: Audit 11/2025 

Initial Assignment Lance Britt: Dir 11/2025 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 

• Mental Health Community Service Standards, 26 Tex. Admin. Code §§ 301.301- 301.363 

• Behavioral Health Delivery System, 26 Tex. Admin. Code Ch. 306 (2020). 

• Lidda Role and Responsibilities, 26 Tex. Admin. Code Ch. 330 (2024). 

• Standard of Care Applicable to All Providers, 26 Tex. Admin. Code § 564.4 (2024). 

ACC.A.4 Screening and Assessment for Mental Health, Substance Use and Intellectual and Development Disabilities (IDD)
Services. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19152350/. Copyright © 2026 The
Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 3 of 3

Page 115 of 134



EXHIBIT G-30



Status Pending PolicyStat ID 18455943 

Origination 03/2005 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised 12/2025 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Mustafa 
Cochinwala: Dir 

Area Information 
Management 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

HIM.IT.A.1 Workforce Member Network Internet Use Policy 

1. PURPOSE: 
The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The Harris Center) recognizes that the use of the agency's 
network, Internet, and email has many benefits and can make conducting Harris Center business and 
workplace communication more efficient and effective. Therefore, workforce members are encouraged 
to use the Internet and email systems for job-related purposes, in accordance with Workforce Member 
Network and Internet Use Procedures. 
Unacceptable use of the Internet and e-mail can place The Harris Center and others at risk and is 
prohibited. The Harris Center complies with all applicable federal, state, and local laws as they concern 
the employer/employee relationship and nothing contained herein should be construed to violate any of 
the rights or responsibilities contained in such laws. 

2. POLICY: 
It is the policy of the Harris Center to provide employees with access to The Harris Center's policy to 
provide employees withcomputers, network communication system, and other IT resources for business 
purposes only, which includes access to The Harris Center's computers, network communication 
system, and other IT resources for business purposes only, which includes access to the Internet, email, 
intranet services, and internal & external web services. All communication, data, and information created, 
transmitted by, received from, stored, or processed on The Harris Center network and computing devices 
is Harris Center property and, as such, is intended to be used for job-related purposes. Therefore, 
employees shall have no expectation of privacy whatsoever in any message, file, data, document, 
facsimile, or any kind or form of information or communication transmitted to, received, printed from, 
stored, or recorded on the Harris Center's electronic information and communication systems. 

HIM.IT.A.1 Workforce Member Network Internet Use Policy. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18455943/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 3

Page 116 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195560
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195560
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81298
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81298
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470


3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
This policy must be followed in conjunction with other Harris Center policies governing appropriate 
workplace conduct and behavior. This policy applies to all Harris Center employees, interns, contractors, 
volunteers, and partners who access our network and computers. This policy governs all IT resources 
and communications systems owned by or available at The Harris Center, and all use of such resources 
and systems when accessed using personally owned resources, including but not limited to: 

• Email systems and accounts 

• Internet and Intranet access 

• Telephones, cell phones, voicemail systems 

• Printers, photocopiers, and scanners 

• Face machines, e-fax machines 

• All other associated computer, network, and communication systems, hardware, and software. 

INAPPROPRIATE USE OF HARRIS CENTER IT RESOURCES AND COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS 

The Harris Center management and its employees, interns, contractors, volunteers, and partners with 
access to the Harris Center IT system will cooperate fully with Human Resources, the Harris Center 
Information Security team, and local, state, or federal officials in any investigation concerning or relating 
to any illegal activities allegedly conducted through the Harris Center's IT system. 

DISCIPLINE 

In the event there is an allegation that an employee has violated The Harris Center Network and Internet 
Use Policy, the employee will be provided with a written notice of the alleged violation and an opportunity 
to present an explanation to Harris Center management. Employee violations of this policy will be 
handled in accordance with currently established disciplinary procedures. Violations of this policy can 
lead to disciplinary action, up to and including, revocation of access and/or termination. 

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference 
only): 
5. PROCEDURE: 
HIM.IT.B.1 Workforce Member Network Internet Use Procedure 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 

• HIPAA-SecurityStandardsforthe Protection of Electronic Protected Health Information, 45 CFR 
Part 164, Subpart C 

• NIST SP 800-53 Rev. 4 AT-2, PM-13 

HIM.IT.A.1 Workforce Member Network Internet Use Policy. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18455943/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 3

Page 117 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/11321660/latest


Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 02/2026 

Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 01/2026 

Compliance Director Review Demetria Luckett 12/2025 

Department Review Mustafa Cochinwala: Dir 11/2025 

Initial Assignment Mustafa Cochinwala: Dir 11/2025 

• CARF: Section 1., Subsection J., Technology 

HIM.IT.A.1 Workforce Member Network Internet Use Policy. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18455943/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 3 of 3

Page 118 of 134



EXHIBIT G-31



Status Pending PolicyStat ID 19238401 

Origination N/A 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised N/A 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Wesley Farris: 
ITSecOfcr 

Area Information 
Management 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

Artificial Intelligence Acceptable Use and Work Productivity 
Policy 

1. PURPOSE: 
The purpose of this policy is to define acceptable use of artificial intelligence (AI) technologies to 
support work productivity, promote responsible and ethical use, and safeguard The Harris Center’s 
 assets and data.. 

2. POLICY: 
A. This policy is guided by the following principles and values.  Adherence aims to promote 

ethical AI adoption, protect The Harris Center and Customer interests, and foster trust in AI 
technologies within our ecosystem. 

1. Fairness:  Striving for impartial and unbiased AI systems. 

2. Transparency:  Maintaining openness about AI processes and decision-making. 

3. Accountability:  Assigning responsibility for AI-driven outcomes. 

4. Privacy and Security:  Protecting The Harris Center’s data and ensuring the security 
of AI applications. 

B. Uses of AI will be for limited functions and maintain human oversight to mitigate risks with 
accountability and the protection of The Harris Center and Customer data. 

C. AI tools intended to enhance work productivity must receive prior approval from The Harris 
Center’s Security Officer, Privacy Officer, or designee authority before being used. 

D. Vendors providing AI solutions must be assessed in accordance with The Harris Center’s Third 

Artificial Intelligence Acceptable Use and Work Productivity Policy. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19238401/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 3

Page 119 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195746
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195746
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81298
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81298
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470


Party Risk Management Policy and Procedure. 

E. The Information Security Officer will periodically provide guidance and recommendations for 
data governance, security, and privacy protections are maintained, as applicable to: 

1. Compliance with HIPAA, state laws, and other relevant regulations. 

2. Data security through the implementation of encryption, de-identification, and 
anonymization practices. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
This policy applies to all The Harris Center workforce members, information systems, data, and networks 
and any person or device that gains access to The Harris Center’s systems or data. 

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference 
only): 
 

5.  PROCEDURE: 
Artificial Intelligence Acceptable Use and Work Productivity Procedure 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 
Framework: 

• AI Risk Management Framework Resources 

Internal: 

• Artificial Intelligence Acceptable Use and Work Productivity Procedure 

• Data Governance and Data Classification Policy and Procedure 

External: 

• Current e-CFR Part 164, Security, Breach, and Privacy Regulations 

• OCR Guidance:  Use of Online Tracking Technologies by HIPAA Covered Entities and Business 
Associates 

Artificial Intelligence Acceptable Use and Work Productivity Policy. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19238401/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 3

Page 120 of 134

https://www.nist.gov/itl/ai-risk-management-framework
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-45/part-164
https://www.hhs.gov/hipaa/for-professionals/privacy/guidance/hipaa-online-tracking/index.html
https://www.hhs.gov/hipaa/for-professionals/privacy/guidance/hipaa-online-tracking/index.html


Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 02/2026 

Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 01/2026 

Compliance Director Review Demetria Luckett 12/2025 

Department Review Mustafa Cochinwala: Dir 11/2025 

Initial Assignment Wesley Farris: ITSecOfcr 11/2025 

Artificial Intelligence Acceptable Use and Work Productivity Policy. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at
http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19238401/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 3 of 3

Page 121 of 134



EXHIBIT G-32



Status Pending PolicyStat ID 19461610 

Origination N/A 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised N/A 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Nicole Lievsay: 
Dir 

Area General 
Administration 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

Canva Use Policy 

1. PURPOSE: 
The purpose of this policy is to establish standards, access requirements, and approval expectations for 
the use of Canva for design, publishing, and distribution of agency-related content. The goal is to 
maintain consistent branding, protect agency identity, ensure equitable access to limited Canva licenses, 
and mitigate risk associated with visual communications. 

2. POLICY: 
It is the policy of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The Harris Center) to provide access to 
Canva on a limited-license basis for the creation of official agency flyers, brochures, signage, social 
graphics, digital assets, presentations, and related visual materials. Use of Canva must support business 
needs and align with Communications brand standards, accessibility guidance, and copyright 
requirements. Access and approval processes are required to ensure quality, compliance, and 
consistency. Access through Okta does not guarantee access to The Harris Center Canva Team. 
Licenses are centrally managed by Communications, and seat assignments may be revoked or 
reassigned when necessary to maintain fair usage and support operational priorities. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
This policy applies to all Harris Center employees, contractors, interns, and volunteers who create or 
manage agency-related visual or digital content using Canva. 

Canva Use Policy. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19461610/. Copyright ©
2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 2

Page 122 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4196295
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4196295
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81302
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81302
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470


Attachments 

  Feb 2022_Brand Guidelines.pdf 

Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 02/2026 

Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 01/2026 

Compliance Director Review Demetria Luckett 01/2026 

Department Review Keena Pace: Exec 12/2025 

Initial Assignment Nicole Lievsay: Dir 12/2025 

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS: 
 

5.  PROCEDURE: 
Canva Access and Content Procedure 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 
Brand Standards Guidelines (2022) 

Canva Use Policy. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19461610/. Copyright ©
2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 2

Page 123 of 134

https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/public/f684c29bc459bd683365bf503df4ea919db6e97e0749b7f8d5c1bad3/Feb%202022_Brand%20Guidelines.pdf


EXHIBIT G-33 ·



Status Pending PolicyStat ID 18814775 

Origination N/A 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised N/A 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Danyalle Evans 

Area Medical Services 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

MED.A.9 Delegation of Medical Acts 

1. PURPOSE: 
The purpose of this policy is to define the process that The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The 
Harris Center) complies with rules established by the Texas Medical Board delegating or assigning 
certain medical acts. Physicians are responsible for ensuring compliance with the Texas Medical Board, 
Texas Occupational Code and 22 Tex Admin. Code Ch. 169. It is not the intent to describe every situation 
in which an act may be delegated, but the procedure is designed to provide the framework necessary to 
delegate and /or assign certain acts in a safe and appropriately supervised manner. 

2. POLICY: 
A credentialed, actively practicing Harris Center physician may delegate to a qualified and properly 
trained individual any medical act within the scope of sound medical judgment to delegate. Medical acts 
that can be delegated must comply with the requirements of the Texas Medical Board, Texas 
Occupational Code, Texas Administrative Code, and other applicable laws. The delegated acts must be 
performed by qualified and properly trained person, and each of the conditions specified at section 
157.001 of the Texas Occupations Code must be met. 

The Harris Center will comply with all rules and regulations that govern this arrangement including those 
set forth by the Texas Medical Board (TMB) as applicable for delegation The Harris Center physician 
entering into an agreement to supervise will complete and sign The Harris Center Delegation Protocol 
and the Prescriptive Authority Agreement or Collaborative Drug Therapy Management Protocol which 
outline the scope of medical practice and prescription/drug prescribing parameters. These agreements 
shall be individualized and based upon the experience and training of the person, as determined by the 
supervising physician. The Harris Center will set expectations regarding the frequency of supervision 

MED.A.9 Delegation of Medical Acts. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/
18814775/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 4

Page 124 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=7649937
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=7649937
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=87440
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470


and the number of monthly chart reviews completed by the supervising physician. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
All Harris Center programs providing medical services. 

The general delegation clause, containing the required conditions, is as follows: 

General Authority of Physician to Delegate 

A physician may delegate to a qualified and properly trained person acting under the physician’s 
supervision any medical act that a reasonable and prudent physician would find within the scope of 
sound medical judgment to delegate if, in the opinion of the delegating physician: 

A. The act 

1. Can be properly and safely performed by the person to whom the medical act is 
delegated. 

2. Is performed in its customary manner; and 

3. Is no in violation of any other statue; and 

B. The person to whom the delegation is made does not represent to the public that the person is 
authorized to practice medicine 
The delegating physician remains responsible for the medical acts of the person performing 
the delegated medical acts. 

C. The board may determine whether: 
An act constitutes the practice of medicine, not inconsistent with this chapter; and 
A medical act may be properly or safely delegated by physicians. 

1. An act constitutes the practice of medicine, not inconsistent with this chapter; and 

2. A medical act may be properly or safely delegated by physicians. 

The scope of what a physician may delegate to a non-physician is governed by this general rule. 
Regardless of that person’s title, the law specifies that the person to whom the act is delegated must be 
“qualified and properly trained.” The person’s title merely provides some indication that the person has 
met some set of qualifications and training. 

The physician must nevertheless determine if the skill set underlying those certifications or licenses 
makes the person qualified and trained to perform the delegated medical activity. Conversely, persons 
without licenses or certifications may have the qualifications and training to perform some delegated 
medical acts. 

4. PROCEDURES 
MED.B.1 Medical Services 

MED.B.9 Delegation of Medical Acts 

MED.PHA.B.5.5 Clinical Pharmacy Specialist Procedure 

MED.A.9 Delegation of Medical Acts. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/
18814775/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 4

Page 125 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18815056/approve
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18375676/latest


Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

HR.B.35 Credentialing, Re-Credentialing and Privileging Guideline and Procedure 

 

5. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS: 
Prescriptive Authority Agreement 

Physician Assistants (PA), Advanced Practice Registered Nurses Delegation Protocol 

Collaborative Drug Therapy Management Protocols 

MED.A.1 Medical Services 

MED.NUR.A.4 Delegation and Supervision of Certain Nursing Acts 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 
Authority of Physician to Delegate Certain Medical Acts,  Tex. Occ. Code Ch. 157. 

Physician Assistants- Licensing Requirements, Exemptions, and Renewal, Tex Occ. Code, §§ 204.151- 
204.353. 

Nursing Practice Act, Tex. Occ. Code § 301.154. 

Delegation, 22 Tex. Admin. Code Ch. 169 

Physician Assistants, 22 Tex. Admin. Code Ch. 183. 

Drug Therapy Management by a Pharmacist under Written Protocol of a Physician, 22 Texas Admin. 
Code § 295.13. 

Texas Board of Nursing: https://www.bon.texas.gov/index.asp.html 

Texas State Board of Pharmacy: https://www.pharmacy.texas.gov/ 

Texas Medical Board: https://www.tmb.state.tx.us/ 

Notification and Appeals Process, 26 Tex. Admin. Code § 301.55 (2024). 

MED.A.9 Delegation of Medical Acts. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/
18814775/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 3 of 4

Page 126 of 134

https://www.bon.texas.gov/index.asp.html
https://www.pharmacy.texas.gov/
https://www.tmb.state.tx.us/


CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 02/2026 

Final Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 01/2026 

1st Legal Review Bijul Enaohwo 12/2025 

Compliance Director Demetria Luckett 12/2025 

3rd Department Review Luming Li: Chief Medical Ofcr 
(1101 1817) 

11/2025 

2nd Department Review Kia Walker: Chief Nursing 
Officer 

10/2025 

1st Department Review Danyalle Evans 10/2025 

Initial Assignment Danyalle Evans 10/2025 

MED.A.9 Delegation of Medical Acts. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/
18814775/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 4 of 4

Page 127 of 134



EXHIBIT G-34



Status Pending PolicyStat ID 19333412 

Origination N/A 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised N/A 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Eunice Davis: Dir 

Area Human 
Resources 

Document 
Type 

Agency 
Procedure 

Drug/Alcohol Testing - Post-Employment/For Cause 

1. PURPOSE: 
To establish a clear and consistent procedure for conducting drug and alcohol testing of current 
employees of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The Harris Center) when there is reasonable 
suspicion of substance use, following workplace incidents, or as part of a return-to-duty or follow-up 
program. This supports The Harris Center’s commitment to a safe, drug-free workplace. 

2. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
This procedure applies to all employees of The Harris Center, including direct and contracted staff, 
interns, volunteers, and other learners. 

3. REGULATORY/REFERENCE DOCUMENTS: 
• Drug-Free Workplace, 41 U.S.C. § 8101 (2011). 

• Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq. (1990). 

• Employment Discrimination, 2 Tex. Lab. Code § 21. 

• Non-DOT Drug and Alcohol Testing Regulations (if applicable) 

4. DEFINITIONS: 
• For Cause Testing: Drug/alcohol testing conducted when there is reasonable suspicion that an 

employee is under the influence while on duty or has violated the Drug-Free Workplace policy. 

• Post-Incident Testing: Testing conducted after a workplace accident or near-miss incident. 

Drug/Alcohol Testing - Post-Employment/For Cause. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/
policy/19333412/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 3

Page 128 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195640
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4195640
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81301
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81301
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=103694
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=103694


• Reasonable Suspicion: A belief based on specific, objective facts and rational inferences that 
an employee may be under the influence of drugs or alcohol. 

• Return-to-Duty Testing: Testing required before an employee returns to work following a 
violation of the drug/alcohol policy. 

• Follow-Up Testing: Unannounced testing conducted as part of a rehabilitation or disciplinary 
agreement. 

5. PROCEDURES: 
A. Reasonable Suspicion Testing 

1. Supervisors must document observable signs or behaviors (e.g., slurred speech, unsteady 
movement, odor of alcohol/drugs). 

2. At least two supervisory-level employees should confirm the observations when possible. 

3. Supervisor or Shift Leader will notify the Risk Management-Workers Compensation Coordinator 
for next steps.  The request should include the employee name, date of birth, location and the 
names of the 2 leaders confirming possible impairment. 

4. The employee will be escorted to a designated testing facility by a supervisor or a member of 
management. 

5. Refusal to comply with testing may result in disciplinary action up to and including termination. 

B. Post-Incident Testing 

A. Required when an employee is involved in a workplace accident that results in: 

1. Injury requiring medical attention, 

2. Damage to property or equipment, 

3. A near-miss with potential for serious harm. 

B. Testing should occur as soon as possible, ideally within 2 hours of the incident. 

C. The employee will be temporarily removed from duty pending test results. 

C. Return-to-Duty and Follow-Up Testing 

1. Employees returning from a leave related to substance use must undergo a return-to-duty test 
with a negative result. 

2. Follow-up testing will be conducted on a random, unannounced basis for up to 24 months, as 
determined by HR and/or the Employee Assistance Program (EAP). 

D. Confidentiality 

1. All test results and related documentation will be maintained in a secure, confidential file 
separate from the employee’s personnel file. 

2. Disclosure of test results is limited to those with a legitimate business or legal need to know. 

Drug/Alcohol Testing - Post-Employment/For Cause. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/
policy/19333412/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 3

Page 129 of 134



Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 02/2026 

2nd Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 01/2026 

1st Legal Review Bijul Enaohwo 12/2025 

Compliance Director Review Demetria Luckett 12/2025 

Compliance 1st Review Christopher Webb: Audit 11/2025 

Initial Assignment Eunice Davis: Dir 11/2025 

E. Consequences of Positive Test or Refusal 

1. A confirmed positive test or refusal to test may result in disciplinary action, including 
termination. 

2. Employees may be referred to the EAP for assessment and treatment recommendations. 

6. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS: 
HR.A.3 Drug/Alcohol Testing - Pre-Employment 

Drug/Alcohol Testing - Post-Employment/For Cause. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/
policy/19333412/. Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 3 of 3

Page 130 of 134



EXHIBIT G-35



Status Pending PolicyStat ID 19461863 

Origination N/A 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised N/A 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Nicole Lievsay: 
Dir 

Area General 
Administration 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

Viva Engage Use Policy 

1. PURPOSE: 
The purpose of this policy is to establish expectations for the appropriate, respectful, and professional 
use of Viva Engage as an internal communication and engagement platform for The Harris Center for 
Mental Health and IDD (The Harris Center). 

2. POLICY: 
It is the policy of The Harris Center to provide a secure, professional channel through Viva Engage for 
internal collaboration, knowledge sharing, recognition, announcements, and employee engagement. All 
users are responsible for ensuring posts are factual, courteous, and consistent with The Harris Center’s 
brand, privacy standards, and Codes of Conduct. Use of Viva Engage must support business operations 
and foster a productive work environment. Users should exercise good judgment, maintain professional 
tone, and avoid impropriety or the appearance of impropriety. Employees must not post confidential 
information, protected health information (PHI), consumer details, case notes, legally protected data, or 
personal identifying information. Communications may review and remove posts that are inaccurate, 
unprofessional, out of compliance, or inconsistent with agency brand and messaging standards. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
This policy applies to all Harris Center employees, contractors, interns, volunteers, and Board of Trustees 
members who access or use Viva Engage as part of their work with The Harris Center. 

Viva Engage Use Policy. Retrieved 01/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19461863/. Copyright
© 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 2

Page 131 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4196295
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=4196295
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81302
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81302
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470


Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 01/2026 

Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 01/2026 

Compliance Director Review Demetria Luckett 01/2026 

Department Review Keena Pace: Exec 12/2025 

Initial Assignment Nicole Lievsay: Dir 12/2025 

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS: 
LD.A.14 Social Media Use Policy 

HIM.EHR.A.11 Sanctions for Breach of Security and/or Privacy Violations of Health Information 

HIM.EHR.A.3 Confidentiality and Disclosure of Patient/ Individual Health Information 

5.  PROCEDURE: 
Viva Engage Posting and Moderation Procedure 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 
Employee Code of Conduct 

Communications Branding Standards 

Viva Engage Use Policy. Retrieved 01/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19461863/. Copyright
© 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 2

Page 132 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/17504194/latest
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18462784/latest


EXHIBIT G-36



Status Pending PolicyStat ID 18037667 

Origination N/A 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Effective Upon 
Approval 

Last Revised N/A 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Toby Hicks 

Area Human 
Resources 

Document 
Type 

Agency Policy 

HR.A.38 Workplace Bullying 

1. PURPOSE: 
The purpose of this policy is to ensure a safe and respectful work environment for all employees at The 
Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD. Workplace bullying can negatively impact employee health, 
morale, and productivity. This policy aims to prevent and address bullying behavior promptly and 
effectively. 

2. POLICY: 
The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD is committed to providing a workplace free from bullying. 
Workplace bullying is defined as repeated, unreasonable actions directed towards an employee or group 
of employees that create a risk to health and safety. This includes both physical and psychological 
abuse. The Harris Center will not tolerate any form of bullying and will take appropriate action to address 
and resolve complaints. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
This policy applies to all employees, contractors, volunteers, and visitors at The Harris Center for Mental 
Health and IDD. It covers behaviors that occur during work hours, at work-related events, and through all 
methods of communication, including face-to-face, email, text messaging, and social media platforms. 

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS: 
LD.P.1 Compliance Plan 

HR.A.38 Workplace Bullying. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18037667/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 1 of 2

Page 133 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?author=7537198
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81301
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?category=81301
https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=95470


Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Management of Board 
Approval 

Christopher Webb: Audit Pending 

CEO Approval Wayne Young: Exec 02/2026 

2nd Legal Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 01/2026 

1st Legal Review Bijul Enaohwo 12/2025 

Compliance Director Review Demetria Luckett 12/2025 

Department Review Kendra Thomas: Counsel 10/2025 

Initial Assignment Toby Hicks 10/2025 

5. PROCEDURE 
HR.B.38 Workplace Bullying Procedure 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/
STANDARDS: 
This policy is in accordance with the guidelines set forth by the Equal Employment Opportunity 
Commission (EEOC) and relevant federal laws, including: 

• Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 

• Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 (ADEA) 

• Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) 

These laws prohibit harassment and discrimination based on protected characteristics such as race, 
color, religion, sex, national origin, disability, age, and genetic information. 

HR.A.38 Workplace Bullying. Retrieved 02/2026. Official copy at http://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/18037667/.
Copyright © 2026 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Page 2 of 2

Page 134 of 134

https://theharriscenter.policystat.com/policy/19124723/approve


EXHIBIT G-37


	Agenda
	I. DECLARATION OF QUORUM
	II. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	A. Approve Minutes of the Board of Trustees Meeting Held on Tuesday, November 11, 2025

	IV. REVIEW AND COMMENT
	A. Employee Labor Organization

	V. CONSIDER AND RECOMMEND ACTION
	A. No Changes
	1. Continuing Employment Communication and Engagement Policy
	2. Accessibility Plan Policy
	3. Assurance of Individual Rights Policy
	4. Business Associate and Subcontractor Policy
	5. Cash Receipts & Bank Deposits Policy
	6. Charity Care Policy
	7. Corporate Card Policy
	8. Development and Management for Mental Health and IDD Service Wait/Interest List Policy
	9. Disposal of Fixed Assets Policy
	10. Dues and Membership Fees Policy
	11. Employment Policy
	12. Faxing & Emailing Patient Identifying Information Policy
	13. Patient/Individual Records Administration Policy
	14. Personal Property Policy
	15. Pregnant Workers and Accommodations Policy
	16. Return to In-Patient Care of Furloughed Patient Policy
	17. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act (The Act) Policy
	18. Subpoenas Policy
	19. Tenant Selection Policy

	B. Policy Changes
	1. Behavioral Crisis Safety and Intervention Policy
	2. Compliance Documentation and Claims Integrity Plan Policy
	3. Compliance Plan FY26 Policy
	4. Drug Diversion Reporting and Response Policy
	5. Pharmacy and Unit Medications/Drug Inventory Policy
	6. Pharmacy Services and Outpatient Prescriptions Policy
	7. Prescription Monitoring Program (PMP) Policy
	8. Screening and Assessment for Mental Health, Substance Use and Intellectual and Development Disabilities (IDD) Services Policy
	9. Workforce Member Network Internet Use Policy

	C. New Policy's
	1. Artificial Intelligence Acceptable Use and Work Productivity Policy
	2. Canva Use Policy
	3. Delegation of Medical Acts Policy
	4. Drug/Alcohol Testing Post-Employment/For Cause Policy
	5. Viva Engage use Policy
	6. Workplace Bullying Policy

	D. Audit Committee Members Election

	VI. EXECUTIVE SESSION
	•	As authorized by §551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the Board of Trustees reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at anytime during the course of this meeting to seek legal advice from its attorney about any matters listed on the agenda.

•	In accordance with §551.074 of the Texas Government Code, Discussion of Personnel Matters related to the Nomination of Individual Board members as members of the Audit Committee. Mr. James Lykes, Chair of the Governance Committee

	VII. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION                                                       
	VIII. CONSIDER AND TAKE ACTION AS A RESULT OF THE EXECUTIVE SESSION
	IX. ADJOURN
	



______________________________________
Veronica Franco, Board Liaison
Jim Lykes, Chairman
Governance Committee
The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD




